


T

Canada. Parliament. :
dJ Senate. Special Committee
103 on Mass Media, 1969/70.

H7 Proceedings\.‘ e
~1969/70




103

N7
\Qed [70
m=

A\
V.3

DATE DUE

194s

D 2001

%“;i v
ra il
,:éu

1 208

| GAYLORD

PRINTEDINUSA.



SR e g e 15 4










Second Session—Twenty-eighth Parliament
1969-70

THE SENATE OF CANADA
PROCEEDINGS

OF THE

SPECIAL SENATE COMMITTEE

MASS MEDIA

The Honourable KEITH DAVEY, Chairman
No. 31

FRIDAY, MARCH 13, 1970

WITNESSES:

C : e
ani}vdlan Association of Broadcasters: Mr. R. Crépault, President; Mr.
. D. McGregor, Vice-President, Television Section; Mr. J. Fenety,

Vice-President, Radio Section; Mr. T. J. Allard, Excutive Vice-
President.

214801



1969-70
MEMBERS OF THE SPECIAL SENATE COMMITTEE ON MASS MEDIA

The Honourable Keith Davey, Chairman

The Honourable L. P. Beaubien, Deputy Chairman

Beaubien McElman
Bourque Petten
Davey Phillips (Prince)
Everett Prowse
Hays Quart
Kinnear Smith
Macdonald (Cape Breton) Sparrow

Welch

(15 members)

Quorum 5



ORDERS OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Wednesday,
October 29th, 1969.

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator Davey moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Lang:

That a Special Committee of the Senate be appointed to consider
and report upon the ownership and control of the major means of mass
bublic communication in Canada, in particular, and without restricting
the generality of the foregoing, to examine and report upon the extent
and nature of their impact and influence on the Canadian public, to be
known as the Special Committee of the Senate on Mass Media;

That the Committee have power to engage the services of such
counsel and technical, clerical and other personnel as may be necessary
for the purpose of the inquiry;

That the Committee have power to send for persons, papers and
Tecords, to examine witnesses, to report from time to time and to print

such papers and evidence from day to day as may be ordered by the
Committee;

That the Committee have power to sit during adjournments of the
Senate and that Rule 76(4) be suspended in relation to this Special
Committee from 9th to 18th December, 1969, both inclusive, and the

Committee have power to sit during sittings of the Senate for that
beriod;

That the papers and evidence received and taken on the subject in
the breceding session be referred to the Committee; and

) That the Committee be composed of the Honourable Senators Beau-
bien, Davey, Everett, Giguére, Hays, Irvine, Langlois, Macdonald (Cape
B'reton), McEIman, Petten, Prowse, Sparrow, Urquhart, White and
Willis,

After debate, and—

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

N Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Thursday,
Ovember 6th, 1969,

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Smith:

That the names of the Honourable Senators Giguére and Urquhart
be removed from the list of Senators serving on the Special Committee
of the Senate on Mass Media; and

31:3
21480—13



That the names of the Honourable Senators Bourque, Smith and
Welch be added to the list of Senators serving on the said Special Com-
mittee.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Thursday,
December 18th, 1969.

With leave of the Senate,
The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Smith:

That Rule 76(4) be suspended in relation to the Special Committee
of the Senate on Mass Media from 20th to 30th January, 1970, and that
the Committee have power to sit during sittings of the Senate for that
period.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Friday, Decem-
ber 19th, 1969.

With leave of the Senate,
The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Honour-
able Senator Langlois:

That the names of the Honourable Senators Bélisle and Phillips
(Prince) be substituted for those of the Honourable Senators Welch and
White on the list of Senators serving on the Special Committee of the
Senate on Mass Media.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday, Feb-
ruary 3, 1970.

With leave of the Senate,
The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Langlois:

That Rule 76 (4) be suspended in relation to the Special Committee
of the Senate on Mass Media from 10th to 19th February, 1970, both

inclusive, and that the Committee have power to sit during sittings of
the Senate for that period.

After debate, and—

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.
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Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Thursday,
February 5, 1970.

With leave of the Senate,
The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Haig:

That the names of the Honourable Senators Quart and Welch be
substituted for those of the Honourable Senators Bélisle and Willis on the

list of Senators serving on the Special Committee of the Senate on Mass
Media.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday,
February 17, 1970.

With leave of the Senate,
The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Connolly (Halifax North):

That the name of the Honourable Senator Kinnear be added to the

11\‘1;Ist of Senators serving on the Special Committee of the Senate on Mass
edia.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

3 191'iz:§tra0t from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday, March

With leave of the Senate,
The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Honour-
able Senator Denis, P.C.:

That the name of the Honourable Senator Langlois be removed from
the list of Senators serving on the Special Committee of the Senate on
Mass Media.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

3 lglgaitract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday, March

With the leave of the Senate,
The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Denis, P.C.:

That Rule 76 (4) be suspended in relation to the Special Committee
of the Senate on Mass Media from 4th to 13th March, 1970, both inclusive,

and that the Committee have power to sit during sittings of the Senate
for that period.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.
ROBERT FORTIER,

Clerk of the Senate.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Fripay, March 13, 1970.
(31)

M Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Senate Committee on
ass Media met this day at 10.00 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators: Davey, (Chairman) ; Kinnear, McElman,
etten, Smith, Sparrow and Welch. (7)

In attendance: Miss Marianne Barrie, Director and Administrator; Mr.
Orden Spears, Executive Consultant; Mr. Yves Fortier, Counsel.'

The following witnesses, representing the Canadian Association of Broad-
Casters, were heard: g
Mr. R. Crepault, President, Canadian Association of Broadcasters;
President, Radio-Mutuelle Limitee, Montreal;
Mr. W. D. McGregor, Vice-President, Television Section, Canadian
Association of Broadcasters; Vice-President and General Manager,
CKCO, Kitchener;
Mr. J. Fenety, Vice-President, Radio Section, Canadian Association of
Broadcasters; Vice-President and General Manager, Radio-Atlantic
Limited, Station CFNB, Fredericton;
Mr. T. J. Allard, Executive Vice-President, Canadian Association of
Broadcasters.

The following witnesses were present but not heard:
Mr. H. Audet, Director, Canadian Association of Broadcasters; President,
CKTM-TV, Trois-Rivieres, Quebec;
Mr. Frank Murray, Director, Canadian Association of Broadcasters;

General Manager, Radio Stations CJBQ-AM and CJBQ-FM, Belle-
ville, Ontario;

Mr. R. Moffat, Director, Canadian Association of Broadcasters; President,
Moffat Broadcasting Company Limited; Stations CKY and CKY-
FM, Winnipeg, Manitoba;

Mr. O. Kope, Director, Canadian Association of Broadcasters; General
Manager, Stations CHAT and CHAT-TV, Medicine Hat, Alberta.

2%g %t 1.00 p.m. the Committee adjourned to Tuesday, March 17, 1970, at
30 p.m.

ATTEST.

Denis Bouffard,
Clerk of the Committee.
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SPECIAL SENATE COMMITTEE ON

MASS MEDIA

EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Friday, March 13, 1970

'eI';}e Special Senate Committee on Mass
1a met this day at 10.00 am.m.

Cf:i;lfator Keith Davey (Chairman) in the

W;rulhg 1_Chairman: Honourable Senators, I
Mornip ike to call this session to order. This
Canad'g we are receiving a brief from the
Derha lan  Association of Broadcasters and
Wi Ps even before I introduce the guests, it
S ;: DNecessary to underline that what we
o ﬁre this morning is not a poor man’s
Mission €aring, or a junior grade Royal Com-
cial Se, on broadqasting. Instead, it is a Spe-
I think ate Committee on the Mass Media and
context it is important that you realize the
it im Whlph we are looking at broadcast-
in the S specifically the role of broadcasting
think th‘;‘;eyall Canadian media spectrum. I
recorq 1s perhaps important to put on the
before we even begin.

N
ASS(;)(:?’ _the President of the Canadian
imme d"iizlon of Broadcasters, sitting on my

o 2 t}ie right is Mr. Raymond Crépault,
ers ap € president of the private broadcast-
Quebeg bWhO in real life is a prominent
cGre roadcaster. On my left is Mr. Bill
sion ngor who is the Vice-President, Televi-
CKCo the C.AB., whose own station is
€mbary, elevision; and at the possible risk of
that i tshsmg Mr. McGregor I should mention
Was the o first job I had in broadcasting, he
€ chief engineer when I was a lowly

Salesman
- CKCO is i i 2
aps realize. is in Kitchener as you per

whoexits“’t Mr. McGregor is Mr. Jack Fenety,
CARB., dhe Vice-President, Radio, of the
ton. 15err111 whose station is CFNB in Frederic-
at the pieps @ familiar figure to some of you

ight end of the table is Mr. Jim Allard

B
C.A.BlS the Executive Vice-President of the

Now
castery’ there are some other private broad-

T : X
begsi and I think I might ask the president
0 his submission by introducing these

31
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people. I would only say to you, Monsieur
Crépault, that our procedure here I am sure
you are familiar with. You have submitted a
brief more than three weeks in advance in
compliance with our written guidelines and
we are grateful for your co-operation. It has
been circulated and studied and read by the
Senators and we would like you now to per-
haps take ten, twelve, or fifteen minutes to
make an opening oral statement in which you
can expand upon your brief or say anything
else which may be on your mind, and follow-
ing that we would like to question you on the
contents of your brief and perhaps on other
matters which are of interest to us. As I have
said to so many other witnesses, if you feel
any of the questions could be more effectively
dealt with by your colleagues, then by all
means refer them.

Welcome; the floor is yours.

Mr. Raymond Crépault, Presideni, The
Canadian Association of Broadcasters: Thank
you very much Mr. Chairman. Honourable
Senators, I am delighted to be here this morn-
ing. Perhaps I may start with your suggestion,
Mr. Chairman, of introducing the members of
the Committee, the other directors of the
Association who were able to attend the
meeting this morning.

Mr. T. J. Allard, Executive Vice-President,
Canadian Association of Broadcasters; there
is Mr. Orval Kope from Medicine Hat, Mr.
Henri Audet from Three Rivers, Mr. Moffat
from Winnipeg, and Mr. Frank Murray, from
Belleville. These are the members of the
Board of Directors of the Canadian Associa-
tion of Broadcasters. The Chairman was kind
enough to introduce me—my name is Ray-
mond Crépault and I here in my capacity as
the President of the Canadian Association of
Broadcasters.

The Canadian Association of Broadcasters,
I’Association canadienne des radiodiffuseurs,
includes in its membership some 260 radio
stations, and some 55 television stations. In
addition it includes also the CTV Network
and a French radio network—Radiomutuel—
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the collective membership of which repre-
sents about 98 per cent of the private sector
of broadcasting in Canada.

The Canadian Association of Broadcasters
appreciates indeed, Mr. Chairman, your
thoughtfulness in asking for our views and
ideas and as I said we are delighted to be
here.

We believe that discussions of this kind,
especially in this atmosphere, can be of sig-
nificant value and benefit to Canada. There is
one area in particular we would like to
emphasize, in the hope it may engage your
particular consideration.

We are all dealing here with a fundamental
and very precious thing—the right of full
access to public information; the right to
exchange opinions, and to examine ideas in
public without fear of reprisal. What our
society is, results from the ability to spread
ideas far and wide and to discuss and exam-
ine these.

To this day I think no one has put it better
than did John Milton when speaking from the
passion of his whole life, he said “Give me
the liberty to know, to utter and to argue
freely according to conscience, above all
liberties”.

In 1947 the principle was restated by “The
Commission on Freedom of the Press”,
headed by Mr. Robert M. Hutchins, then
Chancellor of the University of Chicago. It
found that: “Freedom of speech and press is
close to the central meaning of all liberty.
Where men cannot freely convey their
thoughts to one another, no other liberty is
secure. Where freedom of expression exists,
the germ of a free society is already present,
and a means is at hand for every extension of
liberty. Free expression is therefore unique
among liberties as a protector and promoter
of j:he others; in evidence of this when a
regime moves toward autocracy, speech and

press are among the first objects of restraint
or control.”

This is so true, Mr. Chairman, that every-
time these take place in some country, an
uprising or a revolt, we find that the very
first target of the rebels is inevitably the
radio and television stations. In a similar con-
text, the Inter-American Association of
Broadcasters decided a few weeks ago that it
should cancel its forthcoming Annual Con-
vention to protest the absolute take-over by
the Government of Peru of all the newspa-
pers publishing in that country.

Special Senate Commitiee

In every age, in every place, there have
been those who sought to choke off the freé
flow of expression and the free interchange of
ideas. Usually, however, there was aB
informed, articulate and courageous body of
opinion which, in the event, rende
attempts as meaningless as those of the forest
warden who tried to keep the crows out of
his park by closing the gate.

In many areas of the world, the traditional
menaces to freedom of expression still exist:
In our own society we think that a new ki
and a somewhat curious kind of danger has
arisen.

This consists of the indifference, sometimes
the hostility, of large segments of the publiC
itself—the very people whose general body of
freedom depends upon freedom of informa-
tion.

No one seems to know what has caused this
growing tendency to blame the messenger fof
the news. We hope that your Committee wi
examine this new tendency with care, and tr¥
to find some causes and some possiblé
solutions.

Appendix “A” of our written submission t0
you quotes at least one informed searcher
who has sought to grapple with this puzzling
phenomenon. Professor John Tebbel says:
“Among the middle class especially, on€
senses a hatred that goes beyond simple dis
belief, as though people were blaming the
press for the ugliness of life today. When
middle-class citizens read about riots, theé
plight of the ghettos and the rise of black
militants, they believe the newspapers incite
the poor and the blacks to make trouble fO{
everybody else because of ‘all the publicity
given to them. It is the incredibly maive ided
of these people, numbering millions, that
the newspapers and television and radi®
would just stop talking about the militant
leaders and the dissidents of every stripe, and
stopped printing and broadcasting the news
of crime and corruption which saturates the
fabric of our life today, much of this activity
which so disturbs the peaceful surface of
affluence, would wither away from lack of
attention.”

We would like to express the hope that
your Committee, particularly qualified to do
so, will carefully examine this disturbing
development. We hope, too, that your report
will deal extensively with it and emphasize t0
Canadians that even when they dislike seeing
or hearing or reading about disturbing facts
in our society, that the process of bringing
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these to their attention is itself the key to all
€Ir other liberties.

ofl?lsl()far as k}roadcasting is concerned, most
. € other issues you are examining have
S s-'i_dy been examined by three Royal Com-
Vatemns’ one “Committee”, an influential pri-
COmmlttee, 20 Parliamentary Commit-
Whiclimd various regulatory bodies, some of
i continue that examination. Broadcast-
rgo aétahqns are closely governed by the
tong _oSting Act, the Radio Act, and Regula-
roadmaqe under these. To operate at all, a
Srac Cg.stmg station must have a licence
COmn?' .by the Canadian Rad'lm-’}‘elewsxon
statio nl,ssmn,‘after careful examination of all
recety S affairs. The Commission is entitled to
L, die any and all information necessary for
Supe,SCcharge of its licensing, regulatory and
Pervisory functions.

in‘:n{:. OWnersl}ip transfer of shares or assets
Ehi® Toadcasting station in Canada must be
requi:zd by the CRTC. Broadcasters are
Whiche' to pay a “transmitter licence fee”
requireés over and above all other taxes
forbiag of our and other industries. We are
per Cer?tn to sell more than approximately ?5
Droduct of our products; there are certain
t . S we are prohibited from advertising
un, der’l'an-d others may be advertised only
Imitation.
Pro

dioy Posals now available for public discps-

stati’on":(fuld require television broadcasting

cen In Canada to be a minimum of 60 per

= useaggdlan and radio broadcasting stations
per cent Canadian music.

I :
Witﬁ %HS this, we are in direct competition

can ang ; radio and television signals which
are a1y do flow across the border freely; we
S8 ncreasingly in competition with such
munics ‘mported by cable, a means of com-
allons which is growing at this time in
a m:Séit a rate of 45 per cent per year, and
0 per remembper that in any event, some
Some cent of our Canadian population has
access to one or more U.S. signals.

Si : : A
cou;’;ge its inception, broadcasting in this
Dublicy has been a chosen instrument of
castiy Policy. In words of the present Broad-
enrichg Act, it is selected to “safeguard,
Socia] and strengthen the cultural, political,

# and economic fabric of Canada”.

o

Withrth?fty. years, broadcasters have lived
ow uS sfcua_tmn in spite of severe, and at
the indlil;}lf?lamable, limitations imposed on

It §
fUrthS Now suggested, as you know, that still

€r limitations be imposed on the broad-
21480,

Media
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casting industry. This is being done at a time
when costs are rising steeply, the pace of
technological development is making ordinary
planning extremely difficult, and the impact
of the United States competition being rapid-
ly increased. Many of us, therefore, wonder if
solutions utilized in the past, and the present,
to try and keep private broadcasting economi-
cally healthy while at the same time, utilizing
it as a chosen instrument of public policy,
will any longer be workable.

In Appendix “F”, we have enlarged upon
this matter and suggested some possibilities
which could set new patterns into the future.

One essential element of that process could
be the creation of what I would call a Canadi-
an Program Production Corporation, the
financing of which would consist of (a) $50,-
000,000.00 annually, diverted from amounts
now paid the Canadian Broadcasting Corpo-
ration; (b) The entire annual budget of the
National Film Board which I believe Mr.
Chairman is in the neighbourhood of $15,000,-
000.00 which would be merged with this new
corporation; (¢) Funds available to the
Canadian Film Development Corporation
which I understand Mr. Chairman is estimat-
ed to be $10,000,000.00 which would also be
merged with this new corporation; (d) any
additional funds that any private source
wishes to put in. This would include grants
from foundations; it would include monies
put up for specific production or on a co-pro-
duction basis, on a continuing or per-program
arrangement; (e) Retention in Canada for
payment to this new corporation of 15 per
cent of amounts derived from the sale, rental,
lease or exhibition in Canada of any program
material imported from abroad, wherever
used in Canada.

- This would guarantee the Canadian Pro-
gram Production Corporation a minimum
income of $75,000,000.00 per year. With these
funds and any additional monies it was able
to obtain, it would be charged with the
responsibility of producing Canadian-oriented
programs.

Some part of these would be used by radio
and television broadcasting stations as a con-
dition of licence. These would be free to
lease, rent or purchase additional material
upon mutually agreed terms. The material
would also be available for sale, lease or
rental abroad; and it is to be hoped that
additional funds would be derived from that
source.

A second essential element of that process
in the field of communications Mr. Chairman,
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would be to have the Industrial Development
Bank and similar sources of financing permit-
ted, indeed encouraged, to extend loans to the
broadcasting industry, with rates and terms
dictated by a consideration for public policy
objectives.

The provisions of Section 12 (a) of the
Income Tax Act should be extended to
include advertising expenditures of the type
covered by the section made on United States
broadcasting stations.

It could also be legislated Mr. Chairman
that the depreciation rate of 50 per cent
granted to newspapers, for obvious reasons of
public policy, should be extended to cover
broadcasting stations as well.

Cable transmissions should be regarded as
a projection, an extension of public policy
objectives. Thus, cable systems would be
licensed to broadcasting transmitting under-
takings in order to provide service to geo-
graphical areas which might not otherwise
receive such service. '

This combination of arrangements in my
view and in our view, Mr. Chairman, would
recognize the practical, fundamental realities
of the situation; they would recognize finally
that to use a now familiar phrase “The only
thing that really matters in broadcasting is
programming”,

I would like to conclude this opening state-
ment by reiterating the conviction of our
Association—and which is also my personal
conviction—that we are dealing here with a
fundamental and very precious thing, the
right of full access to public information, the
right to exchange opinions, and to examine
ideas in public without fear. In this respect,
we have been fortunate so far in Canada, but
at the same time, it does not mean, it should
pot mean that our Press, electronic and other,
in Canada, is inevitably or automatically
immune against blind or sweeping criticism.
We must be conscious of the fact that there
are some danger signals in Canada in the
field of private broadcasting, which could
suggest that if we are not careful—if the
citizens of this country are not made aware of
the fundamental importance of a private
broadcasting system, free from undue
encroachments and from ecapricious interfer-
ence, we could then eventually see our press
experience in Canada the same disastrous
fate which has been that of the Press in many
other countries of the world, including some
so-called western democracies.

I am sure that all of you here are familiar
with the outstanding service provided and
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contributions made over the years by the pri-
vate broadcasting industry in Canada.

For my part, Mr. Chairman, as you know, I
am now serving my sixth year on the Board
of Directors of The Canadian Association of
Broadcasters, and I have been involved in
private broadcasting since 1957. Throughout
these years, I have become increasingly awareé
of the real contributions which private broad-
casters have made and are making to the
human values, the realism, the dynamism,
strength and unity of Canada.

I have been part of many meetings of
broadcasters. I have been part of informal
discussion groups, of executive committee
meetings, Board of Directors and annual
meetings.

In all these, those Canadians whose mother
tongue is French and those Canadians whosé
mother tongue is English, meet together on
equal terms, with mutual understanding,
regard and respect, with no narrow parochial
feeling, dreaming no small dreams, but pos-
sessed of an admirable determination to con-
tribute to the still further development of our
national purpose and the objectives we sharé
in common.

What people are, is reflected in what they
do. All of these broadcasters return - from
meetings to their respective communities
knowing more, I am certain, about Canada
and Canadians, than most professional groups
in this community; that knowledge and that
spirit is reflected in their actions.

We have repeatedly talked in Canada about
the essential role played by the railroads in
the task of linking the various parts of our
country, and of creating some feeling of a
united country. I submit to you Honourable
Senators, that in this second part of the 20th
century, one of the essential factors working
towards this proposition of Canadian unity
and helping all of us to realize our national
purpose, is private broadcasting.”

Thank you very much Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Thank you. I think the
questioning this morning will begin with Mr.
Fortier.

Mr. Fortier: Monsieur Crépault, supposing
the legislators went to the CAB and said
“Gentlemen, we have decided to re-write the
Broadcasting Act—we will give the private
broadcasters the airwaves—we will let you
make money.” What would you do, Mr. Cré-
pault, if they came up with a new text of the
Act?
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1 Mz, Crépault: Well I would first delete that

%?:hsentence about making money to begin

Mr. Fortier: Do you then believe that a

Private broadcaster should make money?
bul:[i' Crépault: I think it should, definitely,
tho do.n’t. think we should make it sound as
y@uugb it is the first objective. I think that
s Will find many broadcasters to begin with
B, do are perhaps in agreement with the idea,
tak Maybe the time has come now to under-
Caste‘ a pretty extensive review of the broad-
SUng structure in Canada and in some way
Convls berhaps the idea that we tried to
e €Y In our written submission and in the
like Statement I have just made. Whether we
Drettlt or not, I think we are moving and
Whiciyl rapidly moving towards a society in
L the borders, the frontiers, are really
Wol‘fé’earm_g. This expression of the shrinking
and 1} think is a well founded expression
yearsw\_ether we like it or not within a few
intrug; In fact now we have this regular
Withinlon into Canada of U.S. signals and
assum a few years we have to accept the
e btion that within a few years through
#a w‘_iltelllte and other technological devices
Unit, Ul be getting signals, not only from the
ed States but from all over the world.

SQI aM sure that some of you have already
Whichof Instance U.S. television programs in
i oy, he actors speak Japanese or Indian—
that k‘ifl‘ words the frontier particularly for
and th nd of material is really disappearing
the meerEfOre we must ask ourselves what are
o be ans that Canadians must have in order
Canad.able to survive in the context of a
1an entity.

Mr,

Fortier: Survive economically?

cuff:;afrepault: Survive economically and
s as.Y- Now, I think that there are really
to this 1¢ approaches to provinding a solution
better DrOl}l_em. One—and I am perhaps in a
Fl‘ench_léosmo-n to talk about it being a
with ¢ -anadian, and you are also familiar
Course ils approach, Mr. Fortier—one of
SUrviye S to suggest that the best way to
Sacreq aand to maintain and preserve the
builq A Spect or tl:xe purity of a culture is to
wall wfl?mld a given area some kind of a
living inICh would in fact invite the people
In ther that area to live in a cultural ghetto.
.~ Way we would create for these people
Coulq exuifsl‘:ty to whatever outside influences
Speakin , and .to my surprise as a French-
€ Canadian, I now find that some
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people are advocating the same kind of
approach when we come to talk about
Canadian culture. As a French-Canadian I
find this absolutely incredible because I know
that in my province I am trying to resist the
very same kind of approach.

Mr. Fortier: But has it not worked in the
Province of Quebec? I am referring here
specifically to the development of radio and
television stations of French-Canadian talent?

Mr. Crépault: I don’t know—it may be...

The Chairman: It may be that Monsieur
Crépault and Monsieur Fortier would like to
speak in French. We have our translation ser-
vice available.

Mr. Fortier: Well, Mr. Chairman, we have
already discussed this.

The Chairman: Oh, fine.

Mr. Crépauli: I don’t think that the French
radio stations have remained French because
they were forced or compelled to operate in a
cultural ghetto. The same way I don’t think I
am less a French-Canadian because I am
bilingual or because my views in terms of
undertakings and so on go well beyond the
Quebec borders. I think that the same
approach, the same reasoning, the same men-
tality must necessarily apply with regard to
Canada, as a national entity.

Mr. Fortier: Well, T was going a step fur-
ther and speaking of the fostering of French-
Canadian talent on French radio and televi-
sion stations where in fact this, so to speak,
ghetto has been set up and has contributed to
the development of the talent within the
community.

Mr. Crépauli: Well, I don’t think it has
developed because there was a ghetto. I
simply think that there was a special surge of
French-Canadian talent simply because we
had to remain competitive.

The Chairman: May I ask a complementary
question. You said as a French-Canadian. Do
you think you as a French-Canadian can fully
appreciate the absolute flood of American
ideas, American culture if you will, into Eng-
lish Canada? You don’t have this in the Prov-
ince of Quebec because of the language barri-
er which I would suggest is a great advantage
in this situation.

Mr. Crépauli: Well, your question has two
aspects. Firstly, I would like to believe that I
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am in a position through my travels and
through my interest in Canadian broadcasting
to be aware of the inflow and the impact of
U.S. signals into Canada, and the second part
of your question is that you are suggesting
that perhaps in French Canada we have been
more or less immune against this, but I don’t
think this is exactly correct because even
French speaking television stations in Mont-
real or in Quebec are really in some way in
competition with U.S. signals. This is true
especially in the Montreal area where you
have cables. Let us face the fact that French-
Canadians do have cable; French-Canadians
do watch U.S. signals. They watch U.S. sig-
nals if they find that the programs offered on
the French channels are not of sufficient qual-
ity to attract and retain their attention. What
I realize is that there is an additional concen-
tration wih regard to French-speaking
Canada. I don’t think that the basic problem
is that difference between French-speaking
Canada and the rest of Canada, and if I may
just pursue the basic answer to your question,
as I said there are really two solutions, two
approaches to the solution of the basic prob-
lem that you have raised. I have touched
upon one already about the way—what I call
the narrow approach by saying well, all right,
let’s surround ourselves with the protective
wall and in that way our culture will not be
diluted. As I say, I think this is completely
unrealistic—I think this is a completely
unrealistic approach in our society today
when I think that the frontiers on the borders
are really disappearing and when we are
really moving rapidly towards a one world

concept, specially in terms of communica-
tions.

The other approach—and I think it is a fair
statement that some European countries even
smaller than ours realized this—that having
the real answer within the context of our
cu}ture and the context of our heritage, and I
think in order to be competitive it calls for
money, it calls for convictions and it calls for
the tools to do the job property.

The Chairman: I believe Mr. McGregor
wanted to make a comment at this point.

Mr._ W. D. McGregor, Vice-President,
Television, Canadian Association of Broad-
casters: If I may Mr. Chairman, just add to
the point that our President has made. I
would suggest to you that when you are dis-
cussing the effect of American culture in the
Province of Quebec or in the French language
parts of Canada, you can’t ignore the fact

Special Senate Commitiee

that we are not only talking about linguistics
or the linguistic situation here—there isn’t
just a linguistic division—we are talking
about a cultural division and the cultural
division is broken frequently by a program
such as “Ironside” in French or even as 2
matter of fact “The Flintstones” which you
see in French. Now, the whole of the culture
that is in those programs goes right through.
The fact that the language is changed makes
no difference at all.

Mr. Fortier: But we were told yesterday,
Mr. McGregor by the CBC, by Mr. Raymond
David of Radio Canada, that those American
programs that are dubbed in French were not
as popular as the made-in-Quebec Canadian
programs shown on the French network. The
comparison with the English network was
just not valid; there was no comparison, so I
am afraid I would take issue with your point
because even at that level a dubbed in
American program has not been the success
that the undubbed, non-dubbed American
program on the English network is.

Mr. Chairman: Well, maybe Mr. McGregor
would like to comment on that.

Mr. McGregor: I would like to suggest
that perhaps two points need to be made
here. One is that whether it is English Canada
or French Canada the fact is the number oné
program of course is Canadian—that is N.H.L.
Hockey. The second point I would make is. .-

The Chairman: The Stanley Cup may nof
be this year!

Mr. Fortier: Don’t count out your Maple
Leafs yet!

Mr. McGregor: The second point I would
make in that area is that I think—I would
agree of course that in many areas the native
product is by far the ratings leader but I have
to disagree that programs such as Cinema
Kraft which are motion pictures—things of
that nature indeed have extremely good audi-
ences in French Canada and I think that it
really isn’t fair to make a blanket assertion
such as you did. I am not trying to make it
difficult for you....

Mr. Fortier: I am repeating what was said
to this Committee yesterday.

Mr. McGregor: Right.

Mr. Fortier: And I take your point, Mr-
McGregor. Mr. Crépault, first and foremost
you appear to make the point that in order t0
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:emain competitive you must do away with
he barniers?

bu??. Crépault: That is one element anyway
JUt it is not the sole element. As I have said,
m °1_'der to be competitive you have to have
g:ahty programs and in order to have quality
in°8‘{‘ams it takes first of all extensive financ-
Za%" It takes talent and it takes a real organi-

10n; in fact it takes the kind of organiza-

Eﬁm I presume legislators had in mind when
€Y established the Canadian Broadcasting
Orporation.

Mr, Fortier: Has it succeeded?

Mr, cre
: pauli:
don’t think so.

Mz, Fortier: Why?

In my view, personally, I

thé"‘r- Crépault: Simply because I think that

weg' have gradually shifted the emphasis they

of € supposed to place on the main objective
the CBC. ..

Mz, Fortier: Which was what originally?
Mr., Crg :
el,moll'u_c"epauli: I think to really create and

a ; :
pro, ductié:::l S.Canadlan talent and Canadian

toMr. Fortier: Do you think they have tried
tryi 0 exactly what you suggest or are they

N8 to keep competitive with the private
1Dadc.'asters?p 3 3

Thl\:r. Crépauli: I think that is exactly it.
ars %’V.have.tried to become public broadcast-
1th private money. They have tried to do

thi,
hlz to the tune of two hundred million dol-
a4 year.

asghe Chah:man: I think we should perhaps
°°ntex€' Crépault to discuss the CBC in the
May o of the Broadcasting Act, because what
tion & May not have been anybody’s inten-

Ssicmglnally really isn’t germane to the dis-
Owee The_ CBC has a particular mandate
Criticj € point T am making is whether your
Parlia Is of the Corporation or is it of

Ment and the Broadcasting Act?

"
eritiiis,irepaum No, I think it is probably a

°"90rati0n. e Canadian Broadcasting

Th -
meetii, Chairman: You don’t think they are
8 the mandate as described in the Act?

Mr, ¢rz
of n:y qrepault: I don’t think so. On the basis
they a;gterpre‘cation of the Act I don’t think
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The Chairman: All right.

Mr. Fortier: Do you think they have begun
to commercialize?

Mr. Crépauli: I think so. Well, if you really
want to analyse it let us take their budget.

Mr. Fortier: I wish you would, please.

Mr. Crépault: An annual budget of $200,-
000,000. Well, in effect, out of this budget you
might be very surprised to know that not
more than 10 per cent of it is in fact really
spent on actual Canadian talent.

Mr. Fortier: Well, I would admit it is not
much but a little bit more than that.

Mr. Crépault: Well, not much more, so
naturally we would ask ourselves what is the
rest of it being spent on. This is where I think
that my personal reaction as a Canadian citi-
zen takes place; what is the rest being spent
on?

The Chairman: That is roughly 20 million
dollars?

Mr. Crépauli: That’s right.

The Chairman: What would be the compa-
rable private broadcasting figures, just in
passing?

Mr. Crépauli: Well, I would say proportion-
ately that all told it would be 40 per cent of it
easily.

The Chairman: Well, their figure is 20 mil-
lion—what would you figure be? Would it be
40 per cent of 20 million?

Mr. Crépauli: 40 per cent of the overall
budget. You have to take the annual budget
of all the radio and television stations.

The Chairman: Well, what would it be? We
are saying the CBC spends $20 million, what
would your figure be—in round figures?

Mr. Crépauli: Well, I would say...

Mr. McGregor: It is very likely, Mr. Chair-
man, a matter of interpretation unfortunately
as is the case with so many figures. I would
suggest that the figure is not less than 40—
may be 60 million.

The Chairman: So you would say—I am
sorry, Mr. Fortier, I realize it is your supple-
mentary question, but you say that you are
spending more on Canadian talent than the
CBC is?
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Mr. McGregor: Well, both in actual terms
and in proper proportion.

Mr. Fortier: Maybe we should define our
terms.

Mr. Crépault: I agree. I know there are
different definitions and so on but I think
necessarily this morning we should talk a
general context. I think it is fair to say that
proportionately and in absolute terms I think
the whole collective private broadcasting
industry in Canada is spending more on this
than the CBC is.

Mr. Fortier: That is your first point.

Mr. Crépault: That is the first point. And
also the other point which really flows from
the first is what is the 180 million dollars
being spent on? This is the point where I
personally rebel as a Canadian citizen. They
spend part of it in the purchase of American
programs.

Mr. Fortier: What part of it, do you know?

Mr. Crépauli: Well, quite frankly, I don’t
know what part but for instance we all know
programs like Bonanza and Laugh-In for
instance. In the case of Laugh-In which is a
100 per cent American program, in effect the
CBC because of the vast funds available to
them were able to outbid the private Canadi-
an network in purchasing that program. Well,
to my mind regardless of the interpretation
one could give to the Act the CBC were cer-
tainly not meant to do that kind of thing.

Mr. Fortier: You don’t believe the CBC,
once Laugh-In had become the No. 1 enter-
ta1‘nment program in America, you don’t
think it was justified in going out on the open
market—which it did—and bid against the
CTV network for it?

Mr. Crépault: It depends upon the role you
want the CBC to play. If you want the CBC
to operate like a private undertaking, that’s
fine then. In that case I think we should prob-
ably tell the CBC, “You fly on your own,” but
nevertheless at the end of the year if they
have a huge deficit they will say to Parlia-
ment, “We have a deficit, please fill the till
again.”

Mr. Fortier: You don’t think that it is the
function of the CBC, given the mandate given
to it by Parliament, in a case such as the
Laugh-In program to go out, bid for it in
order to show it to more Canadians than the
CTV network could do?
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Mr. Crépault: I don’t think necessarily it is
shown to more Canadians. I think that the
private stations could have latched on to it, at
a price by the way which was 50 per cent of
the price offered by CBC. We have to be
consistent with ourselves. I know we are not
trying to favour the CBC giving as wide a
spread as possible to American programs—or
else what do you want the CBC to do—other-
wise I am going to lose you in this reasoning
now.

Mr. Fortier: Well, except that the Act says
that the service should be predominently
Canadian in content and character and I
believe—correct me if I am wrong Mr. Cré-
pault, but the point that the CAB is making is
that the CBC should be entirely Canadian in
content and character. Is that the point?

Mr. Crépauli: That’s right, most of it
should be. That is the word predominantly.

Mr. Fortier: Predominantly Canadian in
content and character.

Mr. Crépauli: Yes, and I don’t think this is
the case at the moment, at least on the basis
of my evaluation of things.

Mr. Fortier: But do you think that to per-
form effectively as a national broadcasting
service, the CBC should not be in direct com-
petition with the private broadcasters?

Mr. Crépauli: I would think this would be
the essence and the purpose of the whole
structure in Canada. This is why we are one
of the very few countries, perhaps the only
one maybe, that has this kind of double struc-
ture, precisely in order to ensure that our
cultural heritage would be safeguarded, main-
tained and encouraged and developed through
public funds.

The Chairman: Are you suggesting that our
cultural heritage would not be safeguarded if
it were not for the CBC?

Mr. Crépault: Well, we are talking about
Canadian programs at the moment.

The Chairman: It was your phraseology and
I take it from your comments that you se€
some vitue in the CBC as a safeguard for our
cultural heritage?

Mr. Crépauli: Yes.

The Chairman: Would the private broad-
casters not guard our cultural heritage?

Mr. Crépault: Yes.
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The Chairman:
CBC?

What if there were no

Mr. Crépault: I think the private broadcast-
ing industry has made a very impressive con-
tribution in maintaining this Canadian
identity.

The Chairman: You feel then that you
could safeguard the Canadian heritage if
there were no public broadcasting in Canada?

Mr. Crépauli: In other words you are
asking me if I am in favour and support of
this dual system of broadcasting?

The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Crépault: This is
Proposition.

exactly my

The Chairman: You do?

Mr. Crépault: Yes. What I am saying at the
Same time is that to really implement the
Spirit of that dual system I think that both
sides have to operate on the basis of the
DPolicy which had been originated originally,
and my second premise is the fact that one of
the partners in my view has slightly drifted
away from the main path.

Mr. Fortier: Drifting towards you?

Mr. Crépault: Well, all right, or drifted
wards a wilderness, whichever way you
Want to look at it.

[Transtation]

Mr. Fortier: In fact, Mr. Crépault, are you
not suggesting that there be a watertight divi-
Sion petween the Canadian Broadcasting Cor-
Doration on the one hand and the independent

Toadcasters on the other?

Mr. Crépault: I have never been in favour
of a watertight division or an unapproachable
Viding line. When I spoke of the Canadian
oadcasting Corporation, I spoke in relation
the problems with which we are now
ced. We are brought to a competitive basis.
In other words, if we want to be in a position
0 resist the influx of American culture, we
Must provide the Canadian public with
anadian programs which are at least of
®qual interest in order to gain their attention
When we are competing with American
Broductions.

I believe that that theory applies not only
broadcasting but also to all other fields. We
ave always wanted a film industry, an
Atomobile industry and a record industry in
21480—3
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Canada. We are not the only country to have
such desires. Sweden, the Scandinavian coun-
tries and the European countries had similar
ambitions. I believe that we arrived at the
conclusion that, in order to create such an
identity with products manufactured here in
Canada, we must be competitive. Indeed, it
was found that in the film industry, for
example, an effort will have to be made to
produce quality films. You cannot force
Canadians to go to see a film simply by
saying: “Listen, it is a Canadian film.”

Moreover, a decision in that respect is
made on the basis of personal taste. I do not
believe that there is any Canadian who wants
to find himself in a big brother situation. The
same applies to television. I am certain, Mr.
Chairman, that there is no Canadian who
watches a television program simply because
it is Canadian. He watches a program in the
quiet of his home because that program is of
interest to him. He does not ask himself

whether the program is Swedish, American or
Canadian.

Mr. Fortier: Should he ask himself that
question? Is that not what the Canadian Par-
liament told the Canadian Broadcasting
Corporation?

Mr. Crépauli: Do you really think that in
the type of society in which we live, culture
can be put into nationalistic boxes? Take
music for example. Must we listen to music
because it was composed by a Canadian? We
all know that music knows no boundaries. I
believe that the general evolution in all fields
of culture—and I use the word, culture, in its
general meaning—is not becoming national. I
do not believe that there is any Canadian
who will agree to live in some ghetto and be
told: “You will listen to that music because it
is Canadian. You will see that film because it
is Canadian. You will watch that television
program because it is Canadian.”

[English]

The Chairman: Would you agree that we
don’t want to be put into an American ghetto
either?

Mr. Crépauli: But we live in the world and
I don’t think there is much room where you
can escape to.

Mr. Fortier: It is a big elephant!

Mr. Crépault: Don’t think you can nowa-
days put a lable—a national label on things
which are culture?
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The Chairman: Well, I was just going to
say that some witnesses have come here and
said that the private broadcasters have con-
tributed more to the Americanization of
Canada than any other single influence.
Would you care to comment on that?

Mr. Crépauli: Well, I know Mr. McGregor
will wish to comment on this. My natural
reaction I think would be to say that it is a
very unfair statement. But, I think it is just
the opposite. I know it was the same as the
railways, the way they participated where
really they were the only physical link in
Canada some 50 years ago keeping this coun-
try together—that role is now being played
by private broadcasting keeping the various
parts of Canada together.

Mr. McGregor: I think it is essential that
we use a bit of historical perspective in deal-
ing with a question such as the Chairman has
put. Perhaps it isn’t a question—it is more of
a statement.

The Chairman: It is a statement which has
been put to us by several witnesses, that’s all.

Mr. McGregor: If we look back to the
beginnings of radio broadcasting we find that
it was the private broadcasters who provided
the backbone of a coast-to-coast service.
When the CBC went into the business of
radio network broadcasting the backbone of
their service was made up in a very vast
country of private broadcasters. As a matter
of fact it is today. If you use the percentage
of radio stations transmitting CBC programs
the CBC’s percentage is extremely low. If you
use the percentage of television stations today
presenting CBC programs and you look at the
percentage of CBC versus—of course, we are
not talking now about the 5 watt low power
repeaters—we are talking about the broad-
casting stations—the Edmonton, the Calgary,
and so on. If you look at this, again you find
that the private broadcasters are the back-
bone of that service; not in the number of
people each transmitter reaches because of
the private broadcasters from the beginning
of television—and I don’t want to bounce
back and forth to create confusion—but
merely because the parallels are quite similar.
The private broadcaster from the very begin-
ning of television in 1954 took on the burden
of providing television to communities as far
as the Government of Canada was con-
cerned—not the CBC because the CBC were
eager to get more funds—the Government of
Canada were not prepared to put up the kind
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of funds—put forward the kind of funds in
television which were necessary if television
was going to spread rapidly across this coun-
try. What happened was that private enter-
prise took on the burden of providing televi-
sion service to |virtually all of the
communities in Canada so that in a fairly
short time—1960-61—well over 90 per cent of
this country received broadcast service. It has
been a very difficult struggle to get from 90 to
the 96 or 97 per cent that we have today
because you are now dealing with very small
pockets of population and as I am sure the
CBC said yesterday, very costly to reach. To
reach a few hundred people means the ex-
penditure of several hundred thousand
dollars.

Mr. Fortier: And they are the ones that are
going to be asked to do it by the CRTC?

Mr. McGregor: Well, this has been a gener-
al revision of principle on the part of the
Government. After we achieved the 90 per
cent level which was achieved as I said large-
ly through private enterprise, then we found
ourselves in a position where economically
the question of whether—perhaps now we
can use an analogy—whether Dawson Creek
should have two mail deliveries a day or
not—became an issue. In other words could
the economy of the country provide television
to every last home in the country, and that
really has been the issue since we achieved 90
per cent.

With that then, we come to the point which
I was going to try and make which is that
these private originating stations which weré
supplemented in 1960 by the so-called second
stations have made a major contribution in
the provision of a distinctly Canadian nation-
al service. Now, you say to me “Ah yes, you
are carrying Ironside and things of that sort
coast to coast”, and I say to you “Indeed th(_?Y
are”. With that they are carrying a certain
culture as a part of it but in every one of
those programs in—Ilet us use Red Deer—the
program contains Canadian information. IB
fact, it is one of the mysteries to me why Wé
reduce the amount of commercial content
when in fact it is all Canadian information.
see you are puzzled by the analogy...

Mr. Fortier: Yes, I am.

Mr. McGregor: By the analogy, but if you
realize why this is I think perhaps a basiC
question—why do people buy a magazine ©
why do they buy a newspaper? If the assumpP”
tion is that they are buying it only for
news this is a false assumption. Mr. Spears
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was with the Financial Post and you buy the
Financial Post as much almost for the infor-
mation which is provided in the advertising
that goes in the Financial Post as you do for
the information that is provided in the news
columns.

Mr. Fortier: Does that also apply to the
electronic media?

Mr. McGregor: Well, I believe it does.
Mr. Fortier: To the same extent?
Mr. McGregor: I believe it does, indeed.

Mr. Fortier: Well, that is what you are here
for, to give us your views.

Mr. McGregor: That’s right.
The Chairman: Well, I am still...
Mr. McGregor: You are still puzzled?

The Chairman: Well, it is a very interesting
comment and it is the kind of comment that
we have not heard from anybody as yet
before the hearings began. I would be curious
to know if the CBC could join the CAB?

Mr. Crépault: Well, the CBC is not a
member of CAB.

The Chairman: I know that but could it
apply?

Mr. Crépault: Not at the moment. CAB has
a membership of private broadcasters.

The Chairman: Well, I don’t see that—well,
okay, you have answered the question.

Mr. Fortier: The affiliate stations do?

Mr. Crépault: Yes, but they are not CBC
Stations. They are private stations.

Mr. Fortier: But they are?
Mr, Crépault: Yes.

. The Chairman: But the Corporation as such
1S precluded?

Mr. Crépauli: That’s right.
The Chairman: Mr. Fenety?

Mr. J. Fenety, Vice-President, Radio,
Canadian Association of Broadcasters: In
Yeply, Mr. Chairman, to the charge that

anadian broadcasting has contributed to the

ericanization of Canada, speaking for
Tadio, I should point out to the Honourable
€nators that better than 90 per cent of all
21480—33
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radio listening in Canada is done through
Canadian radio stations in spite of the fact
that 85 per cent of all Canadians are within
radio reach of a U.S. station. In Canadian
programming the content of the Canadian
private station—better than 85 per cent of all
the material used, and I am excluding music
here, is of Canadian origin or composition.

Mr. Fortier: But you are excluding music?

Mr. Fenety: If you wanted to get Canadian
music, my submission here, Mr. Fortier, would
be that music is universal and I am prepared
to argue this until death do us part.

Mr. Fortier: We have another two hours!

Mr. Fenety: If the Singing Nun comes up
with a hit song in Belgium then I see no
reason why it shouldn’t be a hit song in other
countries of the world because it is a product
that sells, and when we play “Dominique” in
Canada on a Canadian radio station we do
not say that this is a Belgian recording or
anything like that. We say it is music; it is
the Number 1 hit song and we could go on ad
infinitum in that field. Basically Canadians
listen to Canadian radio stations because they
are largely receiving Canadian material
whether it is in the form of information or
entertainment and we are very proud of this
fact in spite of the fact that there are so
many American signals available to Canadi-
ans.

Mr. Fortier: Do you also think like Mr.
McGregor that people listen to radio because
there are commercials that they will hear?

Mr. Fenety: I would say in reply to that,
Mr. Fortier, that the most successful broad-
casting stations in the world are those that
have the most commercials.

The Chairman: Which comes first, the

chicken or the egg?

Mr. Fenety: Well, one can’t be supported
without the other.

Mr. Crépault: Good programming comes in
a package.

Mr. Fortier: Is that the reason why CBC
radio does not have high audience rating?

Mr. Fenety: I would think that is certainly
a large part of it. If CBC had the programs
that people wanted to listen to they would
also attract the large audiences.
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The Chairman: But if the CBC radio became
terribly commercial people would listen to it,
by your argument.

Mr. Fenety: If the CBC—I might say this
Mr. Chairman—CBC radio, particularly the O
and O stations, the owned and operated sta-
tions of the CBC are as similar today to pri-
vate broadcasting stations as it is possible to
be and yet at the same time they are not able
to attract the audience.

Mr. Fortier: Why is that?

Mr. Fenety: Now that is a good question
and I think probably the CBC would like to
have that answer.

The Chairman: Well, Mr. Fenety, we are
interested in your answer.

Mr. Fortier: We asked them yesterday.

Mr. Fenety: Why they don’t
audiences?

attract

The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Fenety: I think one, they don’t attract
audiences because they are not—and I am
talking now of the O and O stations in any
individual community—for one thing they are
not really part of the community. Secondly,
they are not a viable entity in the commercial
market in spite of their great efforts to sell
because there may be if you like and it may
be an unfortunate choice of words—there
may be some mistrust on the part of commer-
cial firms wanting to invest money in a corpo-
ration which is already extracting two hun-
dred million dollars a year.

The Chairman: Why wouldn’t this mistrust

apply to television as well? Obviously it
doesn’t.

Mr. Fenety: Well, then, you are into a horse
of a different colour here because the basic
audience of the CBC television network is
comprised of private television stations. They
are indeed providing the audience for the
CBC network.

The Chairman: Well, I live in Toronto and

on CBLT there is a great deal of commercial
advertising.

Mr. Fenety: Well, I think the obvious
answer there is that if we had possibly anoth-
er private television station in Toronto then
you would find...

The Chairman: But the point I am making,
Mr. Fenety, is presumably the advertisers
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don’t mistrust the Corporation to the extent

of not purchasing prime time in Toronto on
the CBC.

Mr. Fenety: Oh, I would say that this would
be a good buy for them in the marketplace,
one, possibly because they could buy it for
less and two, because they are the second
station in the market.

The Chairman: I would just like to be sure
of the one thing you said. I don’t put this
question critically but do you believe that
advertisers stay away from CBC radio
because they mistrust?

Mr. Fenety: Well, one, they don’t have any
significant ratings in relation to their com-
petitors and two, I say the point of mistrust.

Mr. Fortier: Do Canadian radio broadcast-
ing stations—do you consider that the CBC,
either the O and O or the others, are competi-
tors with which you, the private broadcasters
must reckon?

Mr. Fenety: I would say this, Mr. Fortier,
that if I were to have competition I would
much prefer to have the CBC.

Mr. Fortier: Do you view it as competition?

Mr. Fenety:
competition?

Do I view it as serious

Mr. Fortier: Yes.

Mr. Fenety: Well, not serious, no, becausé
obviously the ratings have shown since the
beginning of time that they are not serious
competitors for the audiences.

Mr. Fortier: What about television, MI-
McGregor? Do you view the CBC as ap
important competitor with which the private
TV broadcaster must reckon?

Mr. McGregor: I would answer that bY
qualifying first very carefully the fact that 1
speak now as a vice-president of an Assocla-
tion rather than in my position in Kitchener:

Mr. Fortier: Yes.

Mr. McGregor: The reason that I do that 18
so that I can apply the difficulties that som®
private broadcasters are having in this coupd”
try where they are competing with CBC sta”
tions and having problems with the rates tpat
the CBC are putting forward for advertising
in the community which they must compet€
with. This is presenting a problem. Howevers
I have heard many private broadcasters say
to me that they would far sooner compete,
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Mr. Fenety says—television broadcasters
would far sooner compete with the CBC than
with another private station.

One other point I would like to make at
this time in regard to Mr. Fenety’s point is
that the CBC in Toronto, CBLT, runs number
1 and number 2 in nearly all time periods and
it does this because it carries again—I make
my point, or at least I try to make my point—
I present a supporting argument, let’s say,
and the supporting argument is that CBLT in
Toronto carries a great many commercials
and with those commercials the chicken and
the egg. Now, you tell me. I can’t really tell
you—the only thing I can give to you in
addition to that argument is that when the
station quite deliberately removes all com-
mercials from a program, the audience goes
down.

Mr. Fortier: Do you have figures to support
that?

The Chairman: Is that television or radio?
Mr., McGregor: That is television.

Mr. Fortier: Do you have figures to support
that?

Mr. McGregor: It’s been done. What we
have done, and a number of stations have
done this and among them my own, is quite
deliberately to put additional commercials
Into a program—that is a program that wasn’t
Carrying or didn’t have the popularity to
attract advertisers, we have put commercials
Into those programs in an effort to see what
Would happen and the audience went up.

The Chairman: Does this concern you?

Mr. McGregor: Frankly no. I must say—I
am 3 private broadcaster and my business is
Supported by commercial advertising. I am no
More concerned about the fact that the public
likes to know, likes to have the information

at is provided in commercials. I feel no
Compunction about that at all any more than
a newspaper man does about the fact the he

as or he can devote four, five, six,—as a
Matter of fact on the week-ends he can

€vote two sections of his newspaper to want
- wWhich are nothing but commercials. Two
1 sections and those sections are well read.

Senator Smith: And well paid for.

wMr. McGregor: Indeed they are. That is
hy they are read.

s:nator Smith: But you don’t get anywhere
his,
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Mr. McGregor: Right, it is a chicken and
egg situation.

Mr. Fortier: If you wish to be consistent
then and if Parliament wishes for Canadians
to have a national broadecasting system which
will be looked at, viewed by Canadians, then
the CBC must go out and sell advertising?

Mr. McGregor: Quite right.
Mr. Fortier: Isn’t that the logical conclusion?
Mr. McGregor: Yes indeed.

Mr. Fortier: But your point is you don’t
want them to have an audience?

Mr. McGregor: No, I am sorry—I don’t
think that is quite fair. I think that our point
is that under the restraints and restrictions
the Corporation finds itself in confusion as to
what you mean and what the Act means
when it says “national’—so you see, the
importance I think to Canadians is that “na-
tional” should mean coast to coast, east to
west. I think that is what “national” means
but there has never been a proper definition
in any of the Broadcasting Acts whether “na-
tional” means public or whether “national”
means coast to coast. It is the belief I think of
our Association, and we have made this a
point in a number of policy statements, that
“national” means coast to coast.

Mr. Fortier: But the national broadcasting
service should be extended to all parts of
Canada?

Mr. McGregor: That national broadcasting
service is at the moment either CTV or CBC.

Mr. Fortier: Well, I am sorry. The national
broadcasting service is the CBC, not the CTV.

Mr. McGregor: That is your definition?
Mr. Fortier: That is the Act’s definition.

Mr. McGregor: Well, the Act doesn’t say
the CBC.

Mr. Fortier: No, it does not but do you not
agree that Section 2(f) is the section which in
fact creates the CBC? “There should be estab-
lished through a corporation established by
Parliament for the purpose of a national
broadcasting service that is predominantly
Canadian in content and character.” It goes on
to say the national broadcasting service should
—surely that is the CBC?

Mr. McGregor: That corporation could just
as easily be the National Film Board or
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another program corporation which has noth-
ing to do with broadcasting—that is with the
actual transmission.

Mr. Fortier: Well, the National Film Board
is surely not a national broadcasting service?

Mr. Crépauli: I think that 2(f) would sug-
gest that a national service is to be provided
by a corporation. It doesn’t exclude—and I
understand Mr. McGregor’s point—it doesn’t
exclude the fact that a national service can
also be provided by a private broadcasting
undertaking.

Mr. Fortier: Yes, I agree.

Mr. Crépauli: I agree with you in this case
that a national service is to be provided by
the Corporation.

Mr. Fortier: I take your point and I agree
with it that there is nothing which prevents a
network . ..

Mr. Crépault: Well, I think that Mr.
McGregor was probably concerned with the
fact that you were suggesting that the only
corporation in a position to offer a national
service was the CBC.

Mr. Fortier: No, I was not.

Mr. Crépauli:
reaction.

It was a self-protective

Mr. Fortier: On that point I will cease
being overly legalistic. Do private broadcast-
ers in Canada for which you speak feel bound
by the directive of 2(g) and 1, 2, 3, 4?

The Chairman: You might tell us what that
is, Mr. Fortier?

Mr. Fortier: Those are the...

Mr. Crépauli: Those are the—to the extent

that (g) refers to (f) then obviously it refers to
the CBC.

Mr. Fortier: Yes, but do you feel that you
yourselves should also do what the CBC is
asked to do?

The Chairman: I think it might be useful to
the rest of us Mr. Fortier if either you or Mr.
Crépault would tell us what 2(g) is?

Mr, Fortier: Well, 2(g) says:

“The national broadcasting service
should:

713 Be a balanced source of information,
enlightenment and entertainment for
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people of different ages, interests and
tastes covering the whole range of pro-
gramming in fair proportion.”

Let us just take that one as an example. Do
you think that a private television network—
and I use private network purposely—do you
think that a private television network should
also be bound by this provision?

Mr. Crépault: You are asking me a double
question there. If you are talking about 2(g),
2(g) refers to the national broadcasting
service mentioned in 2(f). To that extent we
are talking about a corporation. If you are
asking what is the duty and the obligation of
the private national network then I would
like to refer you to 2(b) which says:

“The Canadian Broadcasting System
should be effectively owned and con-
trolled by Canadians so as to safeguard,

enrich, and strengthen the cultural,
political, social and economic fabric of
" Canada.”

Mr. Fortier: That is your legal definition?

Mr. Crépault: That’s right. Now, within
that general context you could argue this
includes a balanced service and so on. It
doesn’t really specifically refer to 2(b) which I
think refers specifically to the Corporation.

Mr. Fortier: We had occasion to discuss
with the CRTC last week that there is only
the CBC which is shouldered with the
responsibility of contributing to the develop-
ment of national unity and providing for 2
continuing expression of points of view...

Mr. Crépault: I don’t agree with that, Mr.
Fortier. I don’t agree with that statement
because then in that case you are practically
emasculating the meaning of 2(b).

Mr. Fortier: Well, in the words in which
the legislature spoke...

Mr. Crépault: Well, if you use the words in
my language whether it is in French or Eng-
lish—if you use the words “to safeguard,
enrichen and strengthen the cultural, politi-
cal, social and economic fabric of Canada”, 1
you are not talking about unity I don’t know
what you are talking about.

The Chairman: Well, in fairness to the wit-
ness and so that we don’t allow two legal
minds from Montreal to allow our hearing t0
degenerate into a highly legal discussion,
would point out to Mr. Fortier that the point
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that Monsieur Crépault has just made is the
point Monsieur Juneau made...

Mr. Fortier: Yes, it is. I am glad to have it
made by Mr. Crépault.

Mr. Crépauli: Well, Mr. Juneau and I agree
on this point.

Mr. Fortier: Well, you have made it and it
is clear in my mind. Coming back to briefly,
Monsieur Crépault, I would like to see if I
understood your earlier answers which were
further gone into by Messrs. Fenety and
McGregor. Should Canadians have a choice of
looking at a certain percentage—minimum
percentage of Canadian content, should they
be forced to look at a minimum Canadian
content?

Mr. Crépault: Not only should they not be
forced but I don’t think you could force them
if you wanted to.

Mr. Fortier: I am sorry, I don’t think I
understood you.

Mr. Crépault: Not only should they not be
forced but even if you wanted to force them I
don’t think you could.

Mr. Fortier: So that this 55 or 60 per cent
Minimum content will not work?

_ Mr. Crépault: Not on the basis of that par-
ticular type of approach.

Mr. Fortier: What should the approach be,
M, Crépault, then?

Mr. Crépauli: Well, I think then I would
Tefer to the basic proposal on which we have
€en working in recent months. It comes back
You know to the competitive aspect. As I said,
Whether we are talking about broadcasting or
any other field, if you want to recapture for
Instance Canadian undertakings, Canadian
€nterprise, if you want to have a Canadian
industry and a Canadian recording
Industry, let’s face it, we have to be competi-
Ve. We talk about broadcasting, we talk
about Canadian programs, in order to be com-
Detitive with U.S. but not only with the
nited States but in a few years we will have
O be competitive with other programs.
?Weden, the Scandinavian countries, France,
y are in the process of producing pro-
8rams for television. It is as easy for Lorne
Teen to speak Japanese as much as Hindu
Or that matter. It takes money and these
Bovernments are prepared to put that, to use
Dopular expression, to put their money
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where their mouth is. I think that we have
reached that kind of crossroads and on the

basis of the present structure I think we will
never be able to make it.

The Chairman: Does the American govern-
ment put their money where their mouth is?

Mr., Crépauli: Well...

The Chairman: In this context. Does the
American broadcasting industry get help by
the government?

Mr. Crépault: They have been helped tre-
mendously in my view.

The Chairman: How?

Mr. Crépauli: Because the U.S. Government
has allowed groups like CBS and NBC to
become very powerful, very wealthy and thus
very efficient and very productive. I think

that alone is a capsule answer, to my point of
view.

The Chairman: But they haven’t subsidized
them, have they?

Mr. Crépault: Not subsidized in terms of
grants.

The Chairman: But in France and Sweden
they are actually subsidized, aren’t they?

Mr. Crépault: Yes. I think that in Sweden
for instance both the film industry and even
for instance in the manufacturing of the
automobile the government has helped. I sin-
cerely believe that this is the answer. I am
very concerned as a Canadian that if we keep
on going along the present road, we can
forget about being competitive and we can
forget about Canadian culture. This is why I
think that early action is required on this. I
am also convinced with the kind of money—
we are not even talking about additional
money—just with the money which is now
being credited to this kind of undertaking we
have a fantastically good weapon in our
hands provided it is properly used.

The Chairman: Let’s talk radio for a
moment. How does private radio contribute to
Canadian culture?

Mr. Crépauli: Well, if you will allow me for
a moment to come back to maybe a more
particular case. I look at my own experience
and as you know I came into broadcasting
through—if I may use this word—‘“the back
door” I guess by accident.
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Mr. Allard: Lawyers have a way of doing
that.

Mr. Fortier:
accident!

Mr. Crépault: Well, Mr. Fenety mentioned
a figure of about 85 per cent of all Canadian
radio programming of private stations as
Canadian. I would think...

By the back door or by

Senator Smith: Outside of music.

Mr. Crépault: Yes, but music averages
about 20 or 25 per cent over the whole day’s
programming.

The Chairman: May I just pursue that for a
moment. I find that a startling statement. I
would be delighted to be corrected but is it
only 20 to 25 per cent?

Mr. Crépault: On the average.

The Chairman: What do you mean by
average?

Mr. Crépault: Well, because there are sta-
tions which have a lot of talk shows.

The Chairman: Oh, I misunderstood you.

Let us talk about Mr. Fenety’s station which.

is in Fredericton. Would music only be 20 to
25 per cent of your station?

Mr. Fenety: Well...

. The Chairman: Well, it is perhaps unfair to
single out individual stations because we are
not dealing with individual stations...

Mr. Fenety: I don’t mind.

Th.e Chairman: No, but perhaps it is an
un.fa1r guestion but if Mr. Fenety doesn’t
object—is yours 25 per cent only in music?

Mr. Fenety: I would say that sometimes Mr.
Chairman it would run as high as 40 per cent
but this depends upon the day and the devel-
opments of the day—whether it is political or
whatever. News certainly is a predominant
feature in private broadcasting. We have
news on the hour and half hour and so on,
and stations as Mr. Crépault says who employ
the open-line technique certainly log up hours
a day so I think that we can only take an
average when we talk about private broad-
casting. I would think that 25 to 30 per cent
would certainly be the average.

Mr. Crépauli: Twenty or thirty per cent,
you know, across 24 hours—a full day, 24
hours of operation, so it means that you get

Special Senate Commitiee

at least 70 per cent which consists of other
programming besides music; that includes a
very extensive news service. I think that pri-
vate radio broadcasters in Canada have done
a tremendous job in that field. For instance,
many people ignore the fact that the private
broadcasters have at the moment at least five
voice services, which are privately financed
and supported by them with correspondents
on the Hill here and correspondents in the
various provincial capitals. We have very
extensive public affairs programs. I am sure it
is known by all of you that practically every
member of Parliament reaches his community
through facilities offered to them by the pri-
vate radio stations. There is also of course
entertainment, because entertainment and
information are obviously the two main pur-
poses of private broadcasting, so in effect I
think there has been a very extensive contri-
bution to the Canadian entity or the Canadian
identity concept. It must have been very suc-
cessful because in fact private radio in
Canada has resisted extremely well the
impact or the intrusion of U.S. radio.

The Chairman: Why?
Mr. Crépault: Simply by the fact...

The Chairman: Why do the people in
Toronto who have access to all kinds of
American radio signals not listen to them?

Mr. Crépault: Mr. Chairman, it is because
they like it. It is as simple as that. This again
is where personal discretion is exercised.

Mr. Fortier: Could it not be because you
give them the same sort of music as the
American stations give them anyway?

Mr. Crépault: This isn’t true. If it was the
same why wouldn’t they listen to U.S. sta-
tions then?

Mr. Fortier: Because they would rather get
their Canadian information on the half hour.

Mr. Crépault: Well, when you deal with
this kind of intangible merchandise as I call it
you cannot just put it in water-tight compart-
ments. The effectiveness of a radio program®
or a television program is really the pack-
age—I have used that word before—the
sound, the music, the news, the public service
and so on.

The Chairman: Senator McElman? Do you
have a supplementary question?
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Senator McElman: Yes, Mr. Chairman. This
is apropos something which Mr. Crépault said
a moment ago. You said that many or most of
the M.P.s reach their constituencies...

Mr. Crépauli: I said many members of
Parliament.

Senator McElman: Reach their constituents
through radio. The question I ask is, do they
really reach? Are they in time periods where
they do reach?

Mr. Crépauli: Yes, my understanding is
that they do, Mr. Senator. At least just from
our experience here—I know that these
reports from Parliament, because this is the
title of the series, are extremely popular, at
least from the reports we get from members
of Parliament, they must be very effective
otherwise I don’t think that this series of
programs would have gone on for years and
Years as has been the case.

Senator McElman: Are they programmed at
hours when you really do have reach? This is
what I am asking you.

Mr. Crépauli: Well, from my personal
experience I would think that these programs
are usually broadcast at the very best hours
because usually they are part of a program
on public affairs and of course these pro-
grams as you know are usually during a
DPeriod like the drive-home time, you know,
Which is probably the best hour, or the driv-
Ing time in the morning, so they get I think,
brobably the maximum exposure.

Senator McElman: From the standpoint of

radio, Mr. Fenety, would you comment on
that?

Mr. Fenety: I would say it would vary,
Senator McElman, from one end of the coun-
try to the other but basically the prime time
of broadcasting on radio would be from 6.00
O’clock in the morning till perhaps 1.00 or

.00 o’clock in the afternoon.

The Chairman: 6.00 o’clock in the morning?

Mr. Fenety: 6.00 o’clock in the morning,
and surveys show this, Mr. Chairman, at least
I my end of the world.

Senator McElman: We get up earlier, Mr.
€nety!

_ Mr. Fenety: There may be some ground for
Ustifiable complaint but we have analysed
this within the CAB and Mr. Allard would be
Most familiar with this. In our particular case

31:25

we have moved the report from Parliament
Hill, I think, not more than three or four
times over a period of some 20 odd years.
They are now in what I consider to be a
favourable position on a Saturday immediate-
ly following the major news cast.

The Chairman: What time is that?

Mr. Fenety: It would be 6:45 in the eve-
ning. Certainly that is the highest rated eve-
ning period with the exception of the program
which follows, so I would consider that politi-
cians in New Brunswick who make use of my
station have an advantageous time.

Now, there may be some—and I think this
could be argued from one end of the country
to the other—that say that we should put
politics in at the highest rated time period of
the day. However, I don’t think the private
broadcasters would look very favourably on
this.

The Chairman: I am going to suggest—you
made a reference to Mr. Allard. I am going to
make a request of Mr. Allard, then I am
going to adjourn for a few minutes. It is my
intention, Senators and gentlemen, if you are
available, to carry on until 1:00 o’clock and
we will adjourn at 1:00 o’clock and I think
that being so, in fairness we should perhaps
take a ten minute break now. Before we do
Mr. Allard, I would be grateful if you would
supply us if you could—I hate to add to your
heavy workload because I know you have one
but I would like a little more detail on these
statistics—20 per cent of the CBC, was it,
going into Canadian talent—20 million dol-
lars, I am sorry, going into Canadian talent,
and the private broadcasters doubling that to
about 40 million dollars. Not at the moment
but at your convenience after the hearing.

Mr. Allard: We can arrange that.

The Chairman: Yes, I believe it would be
terribly interesting to the Committee.

Mr. Fortier: Could I wrap it up with one
question?

The Chairman: Well, it is not a wrap-up. I
am going to adjourn, that’s all.

Mr. Fortiers Mr. Crépault and his col-
leagues have been very eloquent and very
forthright in their views but I still don’t
understand if you are advocating the aboli-
tion of the CBC as we know it today?

Mr. Crépault: We are advocating a reorgan-
ization of the CBC.
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Mr. Fortier: But your Canadian program
production suggestion would do away with
the CBC, would it not?

Mr. Crépauli: Well, you could use the CBC
and re-adapt it, transform it into a production
centre.

Mr. Fortier: But the CBC should not be in
competition with private broadcasters?

Mr. Crépault: That is a fair statement.

The Chairman: I would like to adjourn
now—it is twenty-five after eleven and if the
Senators will take note I would like to re-con-
vene right at twenty-five to twelve, in ten
minutes. Thank you.

—Short adjournment.

The Chairman: Honourable Senators, I'd
like to call this session back in order please.
Mr. President, I’d like to ask you why private
broadcasting in the various categories do not
belong to the CAB?

Mr. Crépault: I think the present member-
ship at the moment represents about 98 per
cent of all private broadcasting undertakings
in Canada.

The Chairman: It does?
Mr. Crépauli: Approximately, yes.

The Chairman: Now, I note you have a
membership of 243 AM stations and on page
4.1 you say there are 252 AM. stations. I
imagine there are 19 AM. stations who don’t
belong, there are 8 FM stations who don’t
belong, and there are 5 television stations

who don’t belong. You say that roughly works
out to 98 per cent?

Mr. Crépault: Yes.

The Chairman: Well, it doesn’t much

matter. The question I wanted to put is why
don’t they belong?

Mr. Crépault: I think that chiefly it is a
matter of finances. First of all in terms of
radio stations which do not belong, in most
cases they are stations which are in pretty
isolated areas which are also financially speak-
ing marginal operations and the people oper-
ating their stations find it very inconvenient
or difficult and too expensive to come to
meetings and so on, so really they feel that
even if the membership fee, is not exactly a
substantial amount, in some cases it is just
too much to make it possible.
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Mr. Allard: Mr. Chairman, our figures seem
to show that there are only two television
stations that are not members of the CAB.

The Chairman: There are only two?

Mr. Allard:
indicate.

That is what our figures

The Chairman: Well, it is not what your
brief seems to indicate, Mr. Allard. At page 1
you say that there are 52 television stations
who belong—that is in 1.1 and at 4.1 in your
brief you say there are 57 television stations
in Canada.

Mr. Crépault: I think in my statement this
morning, Mr. Chairman, I think I said there
were 55 television stations which are
members.

The Chairman: So this is wrong here?
Mr. Crépault: Yes.

The Chairman: Your organization is grow-
ing so quickly you can’t keep up with it!

Mr. Crépault: Yes, it is growing from day
to day.

Mr. Allard: As a matter of fact the Chair-
man is quite correct, Mr. President. The fig-
ures were accurate at the time when this
brief was printed—it is 55 now.

The Chairman: So that there are two that
don’t belong?

Mr. Allard: That’s right.

The Chairman: Just who are they, out of
curiosity?

Mr. Allard: Dawson Creek,
Columbia and New Carlisle, I think.

Mr. Crépault: Which confirms I think what
I was saying about the remote areas and more
or less marginal operations.

The Chairman: Is it true, Mr. Allard, that
your annual convention has been cancelled
this year—postponed or delayed?

British

Mr. Allard: I am not sure, Mr. Chairman,
that postponement is correct. They have cer-
tainly changed the date and the location.
think it is a little earlier than that originally
planned.

The Chairman: Why?

Mr. Allard: Our membership felt, Mr-
Chairman, that under the circumstances if
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might be more expedient to meet in Ottawa
this year at a date immediately preceding the
CRTC, public hearings.

Mr. Crépault: If I might perhaps enlarge on
thiss ..

The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Crépauli: . ..in order to get the picture
very clear. As you know, the CRTC came out
with proposed regulations indicating their
hearings on these regulations were to take
place on April 14. Our annual convention was
scheduled to take place in Halifax on April
19. In my view and in the view of the direc-
tors of the Association these proposed regula-
tions were very far reaching proposals which
could in fact affect broadcasting in Canada
for many, many years to come and we felt
therefore these were the kind of issues on
which we should definitely seek the views of
the membership. We suggested to the CRTC
that perhaps they could find a way to post-
Pone their hearings on this so that we would
have the chance at the annual meeting in
Halifax to consult the membership. However,
the CRTC indicated that they were operating
under such a tight timetable that they had to
broceed with the hearings as planned on
April 14.

The Chairman: So that hearing is on the
1?4th of April and your meeting is here on
he...

Mr. Crépauli: On the 10th, 11th and 12th.

. The Chairman: Is that a special meeting or
1s it your annual meeting?

Mr. Crépault: No, it is just our annual
Meeting but as you may well assume I think
that the major topic at this annual convention
Will be the regulations.

The Chairman: Yes, it is likely to be raised!
Mr. Crépault: Yes, I believe so.

The Chairman: I would like to read you a
Quotation from Bob Blackburn’s column in

e Telegram on February 27 and ask you to
Comment. He begins by talking about this
Postponement, then he concludes his column
I this way:

“Let’s take this into account. The CBC
is the public network, and might reasona-
bly be assumed to know what’s going on.
Ch.9—CFTO-TV—(and for Pete’s sake,
will you forget for a moment that it has
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roughly the same ownership as this news-
paper which fact is irrelevant to this dis-
cussion) is in most ways THE private
station in Canada.

Both the CBC and Ch. 9 are right now
funnelling their considerable resources in
the direction of complying with the pro-
posed regulations. I'm not a gambling
man, but I would say it pays to look at
what the smart money’s doing. The CAB,
which probably is functioning as a trade
association feels it must, and all others
are tilting at windmills.”

Would you comment on that?

Mr. Crépauli: Well, the first comment, Mr.
Chairman, is that we are a regulated industry
and this is a fact of life. Really, whatever
regulations might be promulgated by the
CRTC we just haven’t got any choice: you
just have to comply. The alternative is to lose
your licence and obviously as a matter of
survival, whatever regulations are eventually
promulgated by the CRTC must be complied
with by any broadcaster in Canada. Now, at
the same time the CRTC has called for public
hearings to give a chance to anyone in
Canada, and I would like to believe especially
broadcasters, to comment on the regulations,
which means obviously that they are anxious
to get some reactions and some comments and
of course we are planning to indicate to them
in a general context that from our point of
view we feel that the strict implementation of
the proposed regulations as they have been
submitted could create a very serious situa-
tion for private broadcasting in Canada.

The Chairman: Are you doing that, Mon-
sieur Crépault, tilting at windmills?

Mr. Crépauli: Well, you know, this is Mr.
Blackburn’s wording. Frankly I have more
faith in the CRTC than Mr. Blackburn seems
to have. I think the CRTC is composed of
reasonable and intelligent people and I think
they have asked for comments and I presume
it is because they are prepared to listen to
representations and if they come to the con-
clusion that some amendments must be made,
obviously they will make them.

The Chairman: Mr. Fortier?

Mr. Fortier: If those proposals become
regulations, you forecast some very hard
times indeed for some members of your
Association. Is that correct?
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Mr. Crépauli: Yes. I think I should make it
clear that nobody quarrels with the basic
principle. I think that my earlier comments
this morning have made it clear that nobody
questions or quarrels with the objectives of
trying to maintain the Canadian identity and
one of the elements of this was the Canadian
culture, Canadian heritage and so on. On this
score I think the CRTC and the CAB and
practically every other Canadian is in
agreement.

Mr. Fortier: Could they just talk about it
and not enforce it by regulations?

Mr. Crépault: Well, I would hope that what
I have said so far would indicate that we are
prepared to act on it. What I am inclined to
question is really the approach; if you want
me to go into detail of our reactions so far I
would be quite happy to do it. With regard to
radio for instance...

Mr. Fortier: We would like it if you could.

The Chairman: In fairness now we don’t
want to put you in a prejudicial position as
far as the meeting on the 14th of April is
concerned, so don’t feel that you must com-
ment on this.

Mr, Crépauli: No, but in the case of radio
you know it has already been public knowl-
gdge, in fact, our basic reaction. We are talk-
ing about 30 per cent Canadian music in every
fpur-hour bloc. Well, in effect these regula-
tions are not made for broadcasting. What
they are trying to do with these regulations
on radio in to create a Canadian recording
industry. Let’s face it, this is the purpose. I
am afraid that once again we are facing a
tradition of several decades—once again we
are_callin_g upon the private broadcaster and
telhng. hlr_n, “You are going to create a
rgcprdl.ng industry and you are going to sub-
sidize it.” As I said the approach is complete-
ly wrong. I don’t think this is the way you
create a recording industry. What you are
reglly telling the broadcaster is that you are
going to .keep on trying to be competitive and
mea_nwhlle we are going to tie both hands
bghmd your back. This is my personal reac-
tion and I speak very spontaneously and very
frankly on this. When we wanted to create a
Canadian film industry we didn’t go to the
cinema operators and tell them that “30 per
cent of all the films that you are going to
show are going to be Canadian films”,
because we all know what would have hap-
pened. They would have closed down shop.
They would have closed down shop chiefly
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because they are not licensed operators, you,
know they are not a regulated industry, and
this is really, as a Canadian broadcaster, what
has bothered me in the past, to discover as I
learn more and more about this business the
contradiction which has always existed really
between the basic principle that we have
repeated in every direction about the fact
that this is part of a national policy and that
private broadcasting is an essential link, yet
the actual deed doesn’t seem to indicate that
they really believe in that statement. Private
broadcasting has been the target of very dis-
criminatory action in Canada in the past 50
years.

Mr. Fortier: Could you give us instances of
those discriminations?

Mr. Crépault: Well, you know, some of
them have been heard before—as you know,
we have been talking about a transmitter
licence fee. When you are talking about a fee,
usually it will be $50 or $100 as it was in
broadcasting before, but now it is really a
second income tax because it is based on the
gross revenue of your station, so in effect—
and it is the only industry to my knowledge
which is taxed on that basis. We pay a double
income tax.

Another indication I think of the kind of
mentality which seems to have presided at
the handling of private broadcasting, and I
think I was personally involved in this. We
were discussing the drafting of the Broadcast-
ing Act—the one which is presently in force.
There was a paragraph regarding the kind of
fine which could be imposed in the case of
default or error of omission on the part of a
broadcasting station, and in the first draft
that was brought to my attention I was aston-
ished—in fact flabbergasted to find out that
the maximum fine was $100,000. Well, in the
whole Criminal Code even for a case of fraud,
the maximum fine is $10,000. How do you
explain this?

Mr. Fortier: What is this indicative of, Mr.
Crépault?

Mr. Crépauli: Well, I think it is indicative
of a very disturbing state of mind somewhere
which I find very difficult to reconcile. It took
a very strong representation to obtain this
concession that the maximum fine should be
$50,000.

Mr. Fortier: You say it is a sign of dis-
crimination because the legislator said that
the use of the public air waves by private
broadcasters was so important that any
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infringement of regulations concerning them
would make the broadcaster liable to a fine of
$100,000?

Mr. Crépauli: Well, it certainly shows a
pretty hostile state of mind because in effect
we all know that the CRTC can lift your
licence any time that they want to. Why kill a
fly with a hammer?

Senator McElman: The maximum here was
for repeat infractions wasn’t it?

Mr. Crépauli: No, it could be for a one time
thing. In some cases this would put the sta-
tion out of business anyway, so why not just
lift the licence? As I said it is not so much the
mechanics as it is the reasoning. Then of
course there is—I have mentioned it earlier
this morning in my comments—you know the
rate of depreciation and so on. We have had
trouble, you know, to receive the same kind
of treatment as the newspapers and yet if
anybody needs depreciation in order to sur-
vive it is the broadcasting industry because
there is nothing more expensive than elec-
tronic equipment. I can go on...

The Chairman: Well, I think you have
answered, Mr. Crépault.

Mr. Crépauli: You know, this is the kind of
thing, and as I have already mentioned there
have been many inquiries and so on, two of
Which were presided over by a person whe in
fact represented our main competitor, in pulp
and paper you know. I have never heard of a

ommission, and perhaps this is the first one,
Which is chaired and presided over by some-
One who at one time or another was connect-
ed with broadcasting. On two occasions this
kind of Commission was presided over by
Someone who represented our competitors.

The Chairman: For ten long years!

_Senator McElman: Mr. Chairman, I would
e to clear up something that was left in
doubt earlier this morning. I believe, Mr. Cré-
Pault, that in referring to Laugh-In you used
the figure of 50 per cent—I think it was that
the CTV had had this for 50 per cent less
than what the CBC did purchase it for?

Mr. Crépault: You mean the Laugh-In
Program?

Senator McElman: Yes.

Mr. Crépault: Well, I gather that the year
be_fore—Mr. McGregor is more familiar with
1s—TI think the year before the CTV had the
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program—for which they paid—I don’t know
but let’s say for example $40,000, and the
following year in order to be sure that they
would have it the CBC came along and said
“We will pay you $80,000.”, which of course
disposed of the deal.

Senator McElman: Well, to get this whole
thing in its proper perspective, what did CTV
bid for it on the second round?

Mr. McGregor: If I might speak, Senator
McEIman—first, to understand the way film
purchases or program purchases of any kind
are made. Any popular program, even if it is
produced by a local production company, usu-
ally has what they would call first options.
These are given to the person who has been
supporting it and this is a courtesy to these
people. CTV had the first opportunity to make
a bid for the upcoming year of the Laugh-In
show and they bid 20 per cent higher than
they had for the previous year because they
were told by the people who were arranging
the program rental that the CBC were very
interested in it. The CBC then instead of just
bidding higher than that, just virtually dou-
bled the offer and there was no context
because CTV being a privately operated net-
work does not have unlimited funds at its
beck and call.

Senator Sparrow: I am sorry, did they
know your bid? Did they know the CTV bid?

Mr. McGregor: Yes.
Senator Sparrow: It wasn’t a closed tender?
Mr. McGregor: No.

The Chairman: Do you think the CBC has
unlimited funds?

Mr. McGregor: When it comes to something
they want the CBC after all are in a position
vis-a-vis CTV of operating in something of
excess of ten times the budget, the annual
budget.

Senator McElman: Well, what you have
said then is that the CTV on the second round
offered approximately $48,000. Is this right?

Mr. McGregor: I am sorry, the figures are
incorrect. Mr. Crépault merely put the figures
as an example, because in fact if I might steal
a moment to make a point ..

The Chairman: By all means.

Mr. McGregor: Canadian production of a
comparable hour of course would be vastly
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greater than the cost of importing a program
whether it be from the United States, Britain,
France or wherever. I make that point only
because I am sure you are liable to get into
that kind of a discussion and I would like to
correct it. I guess Mr. Crépault has the pre-
cise figures.

Senator McElman: Well, I understand that
CTV originally got Laugh-In—it was a new
program?

Mr. McGregor: That is correct.

Senator McElman: And from this trial
period it shot up to No. 1 and they had it at
approximately $40,000?

Mr. McGregor: Well, that isn’t quite the
case.

Mr. Crépault: I used that as an example.
Actually I gather that the CBC did pay $3,500
more per week than the CTV had paid the
previous year for a total of $140,000 per year.

The Chairman: How much more pei' week
were CTV prepared to pay?

Mr. McGregor: It was about 20 per cent
higher than they had been paying. It was a
substantial increase.

The Chairman: Senator Sparrow, do you
have a supplementary question at this point?

Senator Sparrow: I am just wondering,
when you say or accuse the CBC of paying
that much more, could they have merely got
it for a dollar more or a hundred dollars more
or one thousand dollars more than the CTV
had bid?

Mr.. McGregor: Well, there of course you
are in the—in the film business—the film
business is a very interesting business. The
approach that any film salesman uses, whether
he is §elling Canadian programming or what-
ever, is always that he has a can of film and
he wants to rent it and he simply wants to
get the best possible price for that can of film.
It is not like a pair of shoes where you know
exactly what your manufacturing costs are
and you know exactly what your profits
should be and your sales expenses and so on.
The purpose is you have so many films in
your library that you wish to sell, so many
programs, so many video tapes or whatever,
and your job is to get the best possible return
on the inventory that you have on hand and
you may have to make more on the very
popular shows so that you can afford to sell
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the less popular shows at a considerably
lower figure.

Senator Sparrow: Would the CBC sell that
program at a loss then? The reason I ask this
question is because they have been accused of
buying programs and then selling them at a
loss. I would assume though that probably
CTV must have to do this in some cases—you
can answer that as well—but by having paid
such a high price in relation would they have
sold that?

The Chairman: I am quite prepared to let
Mr. McGregor answer the question if he
wants to but I would point out to Senator
Sparrow that many of these people are famil-
iar with the CTV. Objectively speaking there
is a subsequent CTV hearing and maybe that
question should better be put to CTV rather
than to CAB. You may answer that if you
want to but if you would prefer to have us
put it to the CTV people...

Senator Sparrow: Well, I am talking princi-
ple. You know, we are not getting accurate
figures.

Mr. Crépault: Well, it is known of course
that the CBC is sometimes in a better position
to afford to get sponsors even at prices less
than the cost, and there have been complaints
on the part of private stations on this, that
they are being underpriced by the CBC. This
is another point on which this remaining 180
million is being spent.

The Chairman: I would like to ask you 2
question on Professor Tebbel’s comment. You
quote him on page 2. He starts off by saying:
“Among the middle class especially,...” I
would like to know what Professor Tebbel or
what you have in mind Mr. Crépault, when
you use the phrase “the middle class”. Just
what exactly is the middle class? Giving you
a starting point, would you say that the aver-
age employee working in private broadcast-
ing—I am not talking now about the owners
or proprietors—but is the average employe€
part of that middle class?

Mr. Crépauli: I would think so, generally
speaking, yes. These people are usually in 2
position to enjoy a relatively comfortablée
standard of living.

The Chairman: Because the average wagé
from the figures you have given us, as I red
it, is $8,000. The average employee working 12
private broadcasting makes $8,000 a year and
presumably that includes everybody from
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operators to stenographers to receptionists
and highly paid newscasters.

Mr. Crépauli: Well, as an average, that is a
pretty good figure.

The Chairman: So when Professor Tebbel
refers to “among the middle class” and you
quote him at page 2, you were referring to
people whose income is in the $8,000 bracket?

Mr. Crépauli: I wouldn’t like to pinpoint it
to a specific target. There are people who are
really in a position to enjoy a really stable
and comfortable standard of living and who
are therefore perhaps nervous about any kind
of event which might disturb that stability.

The Chairman: In the quote you gave us he
said in one sentence: “There is a hatred that
goes beyond simple disbelief, as though people
were blaming the Press for the ugliness of
life today. When middle-class citizens read
about riots, the plight of the ghettos and the
rise of black militants...” Doesn’t this seem
to you just a little bit American in context?

Mr. Crépauli: I think you are right, Mr.
Chairman, that this phenomenon has proba-
bly been more noticeable in the United States
than in Canada so far.

The Chairman: Well, I was going to ask you
that.

Mr. Crépauli: Yes.

.The Chairman: You anticipated my ques-
tion. Why? Why is it more noticeable in the
United States?

Mr. Crépault: I think it is because the social
Problems in the United States have been defi-
nitely more acute especially in their mani-
iestations than they have been in Canada so
ar,

. The Chairman: Yet don't we have greater
Incidence of poverty in Canada than they
have in the United States on a percentage or
Per capita basis?

Mr. Crépault: I didn’t think this was the
Case,

 The Chairman: I have only one other ques-
tion on this, then we can get on to other
Matters. In your opening statement I think
You were quoting Professor Tebbel some-
Where in his speech where he talked about

€ people wanting to shoot the messenger or

€ person who brings the bad news. You said
You hoped that our Committee might make
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some recommendations in this area to do
something about this. May I put the ball back
in your court? What do you think is the
solution to this problem?

Mr. Crépauli: I think it is really a matter of
education, of making people aware of the fact
that the messenger is not the newsmaker and
it is the duty of the messenger to simply
bring the news, and I think that the people
have to be educated in such a way as to be
aware that in fact if there is a violence
around them it is in part an essence of their
community or the society in which we are
called upon to live.

The Chairman: Shouldn’t the private
broadcasters explain that to the people?

Mr. Crépault: Well, we are doing it.
The Chairman: Are you?

Mr. Crépault: Yes.

The Chairman: You do in-depth ;naterial?

Mr. Crépauli: Yes, and this is why we are
now bringing it up in a forum like yours.

The Chairman: Do you do as much in-
depth public affairs programming as for
example the CBC?

Mr. Crépauli: Well, I am inclined of course
to think in terms of radio and I am inclined
to think of my own radio station. We do
every day a number of programs on that very
trend.

The Chairman: Well, I am familiar with
your radio station and I was asking more
generally?

Mr. Crépault: In general I think Mr. Chair-
man we can say that there is certainly an
increasing effort on the part of private broad-
casters to do that kind of in-depth study for
programming. In terms of social trends, social
problems, we do this very much indeed.

The Chairman: Mr. Fortier?

[Translation]

Mr. Fortier: Mr. Crépault, your Association,
the Canadian Association of Broadcasters,
groups stations, does it not?

Mr. Crépault: Right.

Mr. Fortier: There is one vote per station.
Is there also an executive committee with
special powers?
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Mr. Crépauli: There is a 19-member Board
of Directors. There is also an appointed
Executive Committee whose membres are
chosen by the President. That Committee is
appointed each year and usually consists of
the two Vice presidents for television and
radio. In addition there are also two other
members, one of whom is usually the Past
President.

Mr. Fortier: Do all decisions of that com-
mittee have to be ratified by the Board of
Directors?

Mr. Crépault: Not necessarily. In fact the
practice is that when there is a problem sub-
mitted to the Board of Directors, very often
after setting the guidelines and general
policy, they will refer the question to the
Executive Committee with orders to follow its
guidelines.

Mr. Fortier: As an association, do you meet
often or is there only the annual meeting?

Mr. Crépauli: No, meetings are frequent
because of two favourable factors. First of all,
you have the CAB. Naturally that is a nation-
al association and there are also regional
associations. There is the AAB, the Atlantic
Association of Broadcasters; the ACRTF
which groups the French stations, the CCBA
which represents Central Canada, the WAB
which is the Western Association of Broad-
casters and the BCAB which represents Brit-
ish Columbia.

Mr. Fortier: What is the affiliation between
those groups and your Association?

Mr. Crépauli: They are all affiliated with
the national association and each regional
association is asked to send a certain num-
ber o_f candidates as directors of the national
association. It can be taken for granted that
each .broadcaster went through a regional
association before attaining a position with
the national association.

Mr. Fortier: I have read the goals of the
national association of which you are Presi-
dlept. As in most cases, I did not learn any-
thing I wanted to know. What exactly do you
do, other than hold meetings and present
briefs to various committees, ete.?

Mr. Crépault: What we have done for the
past few years is mainly tried to defend our-
selves and survive. Indeed that is true.
There has been a demand for the Associa-
tion’s services which has been growing, espe-
cially since the end of the last world war,
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because cf committees and so forth. Let us
say that that is the survival aspect.

There is also very probing work being done
by the Association in co-operation with gov-
ernment agencies. For that reason, the
Association is practically represented on each
of the government committees dealing with a
question related to broadcasting either direct-
ly or indirectly. At the present time you
know the Department of Communications has
a great many studies underway in the field of
communications and it asked us to have a
representative on each of those committees.
Naturally we agreed to that request. Immedi-
ately you have work in co-operation with
government authorities. At the moment there
are studies taking place on the question of
copyright. There also, we provide representa-
tives who draw the attention of the govern-
ment officers who are studying the question
on the applications of such and such a piece
of legislation from the point of view of private
broadcastings.

Mr.
work?

Fortier Do you undertake research

Mr. Crépauli: We make studies. Further-
more that is necessary because of what I have
just said and because our representatives on
those committees and commissions would
hardly be in a position to participate effec-
tively if they did not have some material and
research behind them. Indeed, I believe that
the Association’s budget is in the order of
half a million dollars.

Ve
Mr. Fortier: What membership fees do you
charge each station to join the Association?

Mr. Crépauli: It goes according to catego-
ries which is based on a station’s gross reve-
nue. The most a radio station can be charged
is $300 per month. So, the other fees are less.
In some cases, it has happened that stations in
a rather unstable financial position have
requested a special rate for a period of one orf
two years. Naturally, that has been granted.

Mr. Fortier: Is it not a fact that the licence
fee which you have to pay, which each sta-
tion has to pay, occasionally is less than the
cost of Association membership?

Mr. Crépault: No. I do not think so. You aré
talking in terms of the transmitter licence fee-
That transmitter licence represents a mini-
mum revenue of $3 million per year.

Mr. Fortier: The scale...?
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Mr. Crépault: The scale does not corre-
spond at all.

[English]

The Chairman: Describing the function of
your organization—I may have missed it but
did you mention the Radio Sales Bureau?

Mr. Crépault: No.

The Chairman: You might describe those
very briefly for the Senators.

Mr. Crépauli: Well, there is a number of
what I would call agencies which are directly
or indirectly connected and sometimes even
financed by the Association which play a spe-
cialized role. As the Chairman has mentioned
there is the RSB which is the Radio Sales
Bureau, and really if you would ask me to
describe briefly the purpose of the Radio
Sales Bureau it is to make advertisers, any
kind of Canadian advertisers, conscious of the
advantages of advertising on radio, and the
People more conscious generally of the advan-
tages of radio advertising. Of course it is the
equivalent of TSB which is the Television
Sales Bureau. There are also other—I am
Using the word agencies but I am using the
Word agencies in a very wide term. For
Instance, an organization called The Program
Exchange which is really a clearing house
located in Toronto and which really does the
Work of a clearing house. If one of my sta-
tions for instance produces and interesting
Program we send it up to the Program
Lxchange in Toronto and they make copies of
it available free of charge to any other station
Which wants it, and it is the same for
television.

Mr. Allard: This one is an internal division
of the Canadian Association of Broadcasters.

Mr. Crépault: The status, the legal status
Might vary.

Mr. Fortier: Well, would it be fair to say,
and this is not intended as a critical question,
that the CAB is a lobbyist organization?

. Mr. Crépault: I am prepared to answer yes
i I was a little bit more certain of what you
Mean by a lobbyist?

Mr. Fortier: Well, what I mean by that. ..

' Mr. Crépault: Obviously it is to—I accept
he fact that the word lobbyist can be a very
€althy name...

Mr. Fortier: It does not necessarily have a
€Jorative meaning.
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Mr. Crepault: As President of the CAB I
certainly have no qualms in admitting that
one of my roles is to make sure that the
Canadian governmental authorities are aware
of the needs of the industry and to that
extent I am a lobbyist and the Association
is a lobbyist.

Mr. Fortier: Who acts as the lobbyist for
the CBC then?

Mr. Crepault: I think their whole head
office in Ottawa!

Mr. Fortier: Yes, I thought I would give you
a chance to answer that. You have spoken
both in your verbal presentation as well as in
your written brief, Mr. Crépault, of the wide
range of investigations and regulations appli-
cable to broadcasting in Canada. You have
not quite said it, so I ask you the question. Do
you feel that the regulations are excessive?

Mr. Crepault: Well, there again may I split
your question in two. You are referring to
investigating committees and you want to
know whether I feel...

Mr. Fortier: My question should only deal
with the regulations.

Mr. Crepault: I think we could have done
with less investigating bodies to begin with. I
think so. At the same time, I realize that
broadcasting and communications is a very
important and essential field in Canada and I
understand the periodical desire of the Gov-
ernment to look into the matter, although I
would have preferred certain of these investi-
gations to have taken place in a different
context and a different atmosphere.

With regard to the regulations, I think that
I probably reflect the view of the majority of
broadcasters in Canada, private broadcasters,
when I say that in effect regulations have
been somewhat excessive.

Mr. Fortier:
examples?

Would you give us some

Mr. Crepauli: Well, if you are talking about
the actual proposed regulations at the
moment, I have indicated to you—I think
there is a tendency in this particular context
to confuse quality and quantity and it brings
me back to the distinction I made about
approaches. There seems to be an underlying
feeling that you can really exercise some sort
of control on the personal discretion of the
Canadian individual as to what he wants to
hear and what he wants to see. I think that
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because of this apparent assumption that you
can really force Canadians to take one route
rather than another in this particular intangi-
ble area that there has been an excess of
regulations.

Mr. Fortier: Is this the area with which you
are mainly concerned when you say that it
has been excessive?

Mr. Crepault: Yes. I think it is because of
the underlying approach which seems to be
reflected by these regulations.

Mr. Fortier: Should there be regulations at
all on broadcasters in Canada?

Mr. Crepault: Well, let me talk about radio.
Frankly, I doubt whether there should be any
regulations, at least with regard to this
Canadian content approach, because I think it
really has been one truly Canadian industry
in Canada. I think it has been Canadian radio.
Unless there is a definite evil or a definite
disease to be cured I think you might as well
leave the patient in all tranquility and peace.
This would be my normal approach to it.

Mr. Fortier: You don’t think it is necessary
to have a quasi-judicial body such as the
CRTC?

Mr. Crepault: No, I didn’t say that.
Mr. Fortier: To oversee the broadcasters?

Mr. Crepaulit: Well, I accept the fact that it

has to be a regulated industry, nobody is
questioning this.

Mr. Fortier: You do?

Mr. Crepault: Yes. I also recognize the fact
for. msj;ance that in some cases you need some
guidelines obviously. I am not saying that all
gmdehnes are wise and sound but at the same
time I know for instance, as I have men-
tlor_xed, that there are some kinds of products
yvhlch we can’t advertise but in some cases it
is fully justified and in other cases I think it

comes back from perhaps our old puritan
background.

The Chairman: Can you give us an exam-

ple of what kind of products you think you
shouldn’t be able to advertise'.:’y 4

Mr. Crépault: At the moment for instance
we cannot advertise securities.

The Chairman:

o Do you think that is
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Mr. Crepault: Well, we are talking about
buying back Canada you see, and if we want
Canadians to be aware—I am thinking at the
moment especially of the part of the country
where I come from—there is a whole educa-
tion to be made, as Mr. Fortier said, about
making the people conscious of what it is to
invest in our country—in Canada. And at
least from our point of view I don’t think
there is a more effective medium than the
electronic medium.

The Chairman: I was thinking of a product
that you could not advertise?

Mr. Crepault: Well, we cannot advertise the
securities.

The Chairman: Well, you said that there
were some that you could not advertise and
you agreed that that would be a good thing.
What are some of those?

Mr. Crepault: That we cannot?

The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Crepauli: Well, there are some personal
hygiene products but this is a matter of good
taste.

The Chairman: Mr. Fortier?
Mr. Crépault: Hard liquor for example.

The Chairman: Do you think you should be
able to advertise hard liquor?

Mr. Crepauli: Well, we have left that par-
ticular issue in abeyance for the time being,
but we have had trouble, for instance—it ha$
taken years and years to be able to advertise
wine, and this is an example I think wheré
our legislators have been influenced by the
old puritan background in Canada.

Mr. Fortier: Are there any divisions within
the Association between the CBC affiliated
stations for example, and the other operators
and if so how are these reflected?

Mr. Crepauli: Well, there are no differenceS
with regard to basic policy decisions of the
Association. I don’t recall any specific situa”
tion where there has been, let’s say, a re
divergence of views. There could be different
considerations—for instance the attitude ©
one station which may be a CBC affiliaté
station to one which is not. But I don’t reca
any particular instance where in fact th2
kind of approach has led to a basic diver:
gence of attitudes or policies on the part ©
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the Association, which was very fortunate
and I think which indicates maybe the flexi-
bility of minds of private broadcasters.

Mr. Fortier: The one-station, one-vote
policy, does this not tend to favour the
networks?

Mr. Crépaulit: No, because I think there are
far more stations which don’t belong to a
network than those which belong to a net-
work, and the number of stations which
belong to the CTV network is a relatively
small number. I believe there are just twelve.

Mr. Fortier: You have never encountered
any problem at that level?

Mr. Crepauli: No.

Mr. Fortier: May I just turn to the concen-
tration of ownership aspect of your submis-
sion, Monsieur Crépault. On page 8 of your
brief you say more or less in conclusion:

“It is our submission that no field of
endeavour is less subject to monopoly or
the likelihood of it than communica-
tions.”

My question is this. Do you feel that the
diversity of media to which you referred is
Sufficient to provide for adequate access to
Meet public expression in all local areas in
Canada, or are there areas where your
Association as an Association would suggest
Some safeguards?

Mr. Crépault: Well, if you are talking about
8roup ownership of electronic media or
roadcasting undertakings, I can’t think of
any particular area where special safeguards
Would be required as an Association. There
May be areas where there could be cross
Ownership between broadcasting undertakings
and newspapers, but I don’t think to my

owledge that the Association really feels
that there is any particular case where special
Safeguards would be required.

Mr. Fortier: Your Association does not feel
that this is essentially bad or it just has not
Pronounced itself?

Mr. Crépauli: Well, the Association has
Bronounced itself on the basic principle of
8roup ownership in the following sense. We
feel that group ownership—and the experi-
®nce is there by the way to support it—of
®urse it is a matter of degree, but the basic
Principle of group ownership has been and
-SPecially in Canada will even become more

Portant for a number of reasons. I think
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that in general experience has shown that it
can hire better people, it can hire more
people, it can bring to the community which
they are called upon to serve better facilities,
and in this case I think we have made availa-
ble to your Committee copies of this special
study made by Professor Litwin and Wroth,
the essence of which was precisely these con-
clusions. To that extent we feel that group
ownership could have some very definite
advantages.

Mr. Fortier: The CRTC has spoken, as you
probably well know, of excessive ownership.
What would be your definition of excessive?

Mr. Crépauli: I don’t think I can reply to
this because I think every case has to be
judged on its merits.

Mr. Fortier: You say they are all ad hoec
cases?

Mr. Crépauli: They are all ad hoc cases
because you can have for instance a particu-
lar area where there is a group of stations but
in each area where they have a station there
is a competing station, so right away you
have a built-in safeguard because there is an
alternative. I think to that extent by the way
that the CRTC and its predecessor the BBG
has probably shown a better insight than its
opposite number in Washington, the FCC
which as you know has set some very specific
limits. In other words you cannot own more
than seven radio stations and five television
stations, which I think implies a certain rigid-
ity although it probably makes it easier for
them to reach decisions, but at the same time
I don’t think it is as intellectually arrived at
as it is in Canada.

The Chairman: Senator Kinnear?

Senator Kinnear: On page 2, paragraph 1
part 4, you say:

“In any event under the present legis-
lation, no broadcasting transmitting or
broadcasting receiving undertaking can
operate without a licence from the CRTC.
That tribunal can withhold or withdraw
a licence at any point.”

You have made this point many times this
morning. It is a question whether multiple
ownership or cross ownership has reached
excessive portions. I wonder how many cases
there are—how many stations there are like
that across Canada under cross ownership
and can you give us some examples?
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Mr. Crépault: Well, there are as you know
some corporate groups which own more than
one station.

Senator Kinnear: Yes, but are there many?

Mr. Crépault: I think it is a fair statement
to say that there is a tendency towards a
grouping of broadcasting undertakings and
the names that come to my mind at the
moment would be groups like Standard
Broadcasting, Selkirk Holdings, Western
Broadcasting, CHUM and...

Senator Kinnear: Is the trend to that more
and more?

Mr. Crepault: I think it is, chiefly for the
reasons I have mentioned. First of all the
costs of operation are really going up steadily.
I remember when I first went into broadcast-
ing for instance; in effect you could really
think of starting a radio station with perhaps
as little as $25,000, perhaps really build it up
from there. I haven’t seen really any new
radio stations in the last year or so and I
think one of the reasons is probably because
you just can’t start a radio station with less
than several hundreds of thousands of dollars.
The electronic equipment is becoming more
refined and as a consequence it is becoming
more of an expense.

There is also another aspect which I think
is worth mentioning and this is in the field of
news. The isolated independent station cannot
afford obviously to have correspondents in
Ottawa and in the provincial capitals or in
the States or abroad. A group of stations can
do it however.

The Chairman:
co-operatively?

Couldn’t that be done

Mr. Crepault: Yes, but you see...

The Chairman: Couldn’t your organization
do that on a co-operative basis?

Mr. Crepault: But then you set aside the
competitive  elements that might exist
between a certain group of stations—in other
words you don’t want to create uniformity.

The Chairman: I am not sure that you
al}swered Mr. Fortier’s question. Perhaps you
did to his satisfaction but not to mine. How
much concentration is too much—I mean
what is excessive concentration? You used
the example of the United States. ..

Mr. Crepauli: Where it is automatic.
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The Chairman: Where it is automatic, but I
am sure you will agree there are how many
times more broadcast facilities there—five,
six, seven times—I don’t know. Would you be
happy to see all the private broadcasting out-
lets in Canada owned by one person?

Mr. Crepault: Of course not.

The Chairman: Then, where do you draw
the line?

Mr. Crepault: I don’t think I can draw the
line unless you give me a specific case.

The Chairman: Well, I have given you a
specific case—if one owned them all.

Mr. Crepauli: I would say no.

The Chairman: Well, all right, if two people
owned them all?

Mr. Crepault: I would say no again.
The Chairman: Where do you say yes?

Mr. Crepault: Well, if you want me to give
you examples where the CRTC has taken a
stand on this, then I will. We know for
instance that in a number of cases the CRTC
has refused applications because they felt that
in their minds it had reached the degree of
excessiveness.

The Chairman: Have you agreed with all
those CRTC judgments?

Mr. Crepault: As President of the CAB I
find it very difficult to say yes or no, becausé
I represent an Association.

The Chairman: Well, I don’t want to put
you in an unfair position, but you woul
agree presumably then that concentration in
broadcasting can become excessive?

Mr. Crepauli: Oh, by all means.
The Chairman: Okay.

Mr. Crepault: I mean, if I were to own all
the radio stations in French Canada that
would be excessive obviously.

The Chairman: Perhaps I missed this
answer and I apologize because I perhaps was
writing a note, but how did you answer th€
question on a local monopoly? I am referring
specifically to 5-14 in your brief at page
where you say: “One sometimes hears expres”
sions of concern about possible monopoly _m
communications.” Then I do recall Mr. Fortier
quoting the next sentence. Don’t some proad-
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casting stations have a local monopoly? Is
that a healthy situation?

Mr. Crepauli: It is my understanding, Mr.
Chairman, that there are some small localities
where in fact there is a tie-up between the
newspaper and the ratio station.

The Chairman: Is that a healthy thing?

Mr. Crepauli: It depends on the policies of
the owner.

The Chairman: Well, that is a good answer.

Mr. Crépault: Well, I think it is really, and
there is also the practical situation. You may
have a choice between that kind of situation
or having two competing media which could
not be economically viable, so there are some
Practical considerations coming into play.

The Chairman: You submit the brief by
Professor Litwin and the Committee is famil-
iar with it. We were aware of it prior to our
study—I won’t say that all of us have read it
but I studied it, but you say in discussing this
there are certain factors not that much differ-
ent in Canada. Aren’t there really some dif-
ferent factors in Canada than in the United
States in terms of this being a valuable study,
Q useful study but as we read it shouldn’t we
be minful of the fact that it is an American
Study and that this is Canada? I don’t say
that in any nationalistic sense but rather in
the sense the problems are here. I think it is

an American study and the problems here are
different.

Mr. Crépault: It is an American study and I
think that some of the factors which they have
Studied and examined might not be complete-

Y applicable in Canada but at the same time,
4s T have read this document a number of
es, I became increasingly aware that the
asic issues were pretty much the same. I feel
also that the gap, the difference between U.S.
and the Canadian situation is decreasing.

The Chairman: One of the conclusions
Which you quote here is that single owners
€ more concerned with short term profit
flle common owners are more concerned
With establishing a reputation for service. I
Would remind you that by your brief almost
of your members are single owners; 47.2
Ber cent are single owners. Do you think that
t € group owners are better broadcasters than
Ose single owners?

h Mr. Crépault: No, I don’t think it should be
ken in that sense. My interpretation of that
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sentence means that in a group ownership
you are in a position to hire more profession-
al people and to that extent you are really able
to plan for maybe a longer haul than the
individual broadcasting operator who has
immediate problems of survival and so on
and whose means of course are far more
limited.

The Chairman: Again he says: “Diversity
and validity of news information are related
to market size. In larger markets much great-
er diversity and validity are perceived.” Is it
not a fact that we have relatively fewer
larger markets in Canada?

Mr. Crépault: Yes.

The Chairman: So that diversity and
validity in news is desirable—I am sure we
are agreed on that...

Mr. Crépauli: Yes.

The Cheairman: And it seems to me that
this is a problem here where a...

Mr. McGregor: Well, I might make a point
here that was made earlier by our president
in regard to the five national voice services,
moest of them with headquarters here in
Ottawa or certainly their major base of oper-
ation is here in Ottawa.

The Chairman: You are talking about radio
now?

Mr. McGregor: Yes I am. They are provid-
ing a complete diversity and many of their
reporters in fact are here in this room and
they are providing a considerable diversity of
the information flowing out from the Capital.
It is really the biggest news source in Canada.

The Chairman: I would like to read you a
quotation from the Washington Post, decem-
ber 3, which is a commentary by Nicholas
Von Hoffman on the subject. He says:

“The radio news departments are the
sorriest parts of professional journalism,
and FM is the sorriest part of radio
news.”

I would like to ask you if you agree with
those comments?

Mr. Crépauli: Well, I think I can answer...

The Chairman: Incidentally may I say—I
hear some of your colleagues laughing and
saying “Oh no”, but I might say this is an
opinion which has been expressed before this
Committee on more than one occasion by wit-
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nesses who have appeared here. I think in
fairness I should say that to you.

Mr. Crépault: I think I can answer this Mr.
Chairman, on the basis of my own personal
experience, if I may?

The Chairman: Yes, of course.

Mr. Crépault: We are talking about group
ownership and we are talking about news
reporting and there is always an inclination
to compare news radio with the reporting by
newspapers. In French-speaking Canada, as
you know Mr. Chairman, we have succeeded
in forming in fact the first and only private
French network in the world and that of
course is only in Canada. Perhaps the main
reason which has prompted us to try to do it
really was because of our desire to bring to
the French Canadian population a news ser-
vice, second to none in terms of quality—not
only in terms of quality but in terms of inter-
national features. First of all, the first point I
want to make is that I don’t think this would
have been possible on the basis of one
independent isolated station to begin with. It
was only possible to do it on the basis of
group ownership, simply because of money to
begin with but also in terms of being able to
attract professional newspapermen. This is a
factor. There is a factor of prestige or of
reputation. It is easier to attract a profession-
al to a large, big, well-established organiza-
tion than it is to one independent broadcast-
ing undertaking. That is the first point. The
second one I think—I think it is a fair state-
ment—and I just don’t want to relate that
statement to my own organization but also to
many other broadcasting organizations in
Canada—I think in terms of news—and we
have seen it also by the extent to which
Canadian audiences listen to radio. I think the

r?iporting has shown an increasing profession-
alism.

Thg Chairman: May I ask you just two
ql_,lestlons on this question of radio and news.
First of all to be fair, I would agree that
many private stations do an excellent job. I
say that in fairness. Would you agree with me
howe;ver that some private stations do a terri-
ble job on radio news? Terrible is perhaps
not the word—the best word—perhaps inef-
fective would be a better word?

Mr. Crépauli: Well, there are bad lawyers
and good lawyers...

The Chairman: Exactly.
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Mr. Crépault: The same as there are good
notaries and bad notaries.

The Chairman: Exactly. Now, what I would
like to know is what does your Association do
about the bad broadcasters?

Mr. Crépault: Well, we really try to bring
to them a facility, advice and even sometimes
material.

The Chairman: Do you come to them and
say “Look, you are not doing a good enough
job”?

Mr. Crépauli: Well, we may not be doing it
in exactly that fashion.

The Chairman: But shouldn’t you?

Mr. Crépault: Well, we do it—we are not a
controlling organization because we can only
advise. At the last annual convention held in
Edmonton the whole topic was information
and for three days our membership was sub-
jected to a constant briefing on how to bring
better information to the public, so this is the
kind of thing we do.

The Chairman: Would it be possible...

Mr. Crépauli: I am sorry for interrupting
you but this Professor Tebbel was there as
one of the guests.

The Chairman: Would it just be possible
that the broadcasters who need this informa-
tion least, who are already doing a good job,
are the ones who are primarily in attend-
ance? The people who need this information
most don’t come to these meetings?

Mr. Crépault: I don’t think so because the
attendance at our conventions is extremely
high, but at the same time if somebody
doesn’t want to follow the black line we just
can’t insist upon him doing that because W€
are still in a free country and they are in 2
voluntary association and there is a poi!lt
beyond which—you know, I can’t do it with
my station. We can decide on a policy for the
station and it can be implemented if you do
have a voluntary organization.

Mr. Allard: I think it should be noted MI*
Chairman, that the last broadcasting statio®
that was legitimately accused of doing a poor
news job had its licence lifted by the CRTC.

The Chairman: Do you think it deserved t0
have its licence lifted?
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Mr. Allard: Well, that was the CRTC’s
decision.

The Chairman: Do you agree with that
judgment?

Mr. Allard: I wasn’t familiar with the cir-
cumstances as the CRTC was.

The Chairman: Mr. Fenety, would you like
to comment on this?

Mr. Fenety: Yes, but on that particular
question Mr. Chairman, I would say that in
broadcasting today we are getting some of the
best possible news services and I don’t think
we have to take a back seat to the private
broadcasters in the United States of America.
I contend that Canadian broadcasters by and
large are doing a far better job in the news
field, better than, well, let me put it this way.
The largest single program expenditure in the
Private radio station today lies in the news
field. There is a constant desire and indeed
demand to upgrade the services in all pri-
Vate broadcasting stations. The Radio-Televi-
sion News Directors Association is a further
Upgrading if you like of the grass roots level
and most stations are very proud of the news
Service they provide.

Now, I think what you were referring to and
What possibly the Washington Post columnist
Was referring to is the rip-and-read technique
Which I regret to say is still in effect in
Canada and in the United States, but at the
Same time most of the smaller operations who
are confronted with this are also confronted
With a very small financial return for their
effort and it is just not possible for them to
Provide a service other than the rip-and-read,
but if indeed they do subscribe to a news
Service such as Broadcast News, which is the
Tight arm of Canadian Press in the broadcast-
Ing field, then in that field alone they are
Making a significant contribution to their
COmmunity. By and large Canadian broad-
Casting, private stations in the news field,

Cannot be tarred with the same Washington
brysh,

Mr. McGregor: If T might just add a further
fOmment T think that the record might be
fnhanced with Patick Scott’s column from
:St night’s Toronto Star. I don’t know wheth-

T you read it...

The Chairman: Yes, I do see that column.

For the benefit of the Senators...

Mz, McGregor: He wasn’t complimentary.

Media 31:39

The Chairman: Well, he wasn’t particularly
complimentary to the news media in Ottawa.
He was fairly critical of all news media in
Ottawa. He also, as I recall, refer to this
Committee and he said this Committee would
be well advised instead of worrying about
hockey scores in the morning paper—which
of course is something that interested me as
long time ago—it should be interested in the
coverage of the federal Parliament by the
Ottawa newspapers. Well, of course, had Mr.
Scott read the transcript he would know that
we have delt with this problem at some con-
siderable length. However, it was quite an
indictment of the Ottawa news media
generally; but I think in fairness we should
realize that it was by Mr. Scott.

I would just like to ask one more question
on this question of concentration of owner-
ship. At page 6 you say:

“Corporate arrangements and so-called
‘multiple ownerships’ have arisen in
every industry because of the combina-
tion of rising costs (prominently including
taxes); the increasing demand of paper-
work requirements; the difficulties that
sometimes beset smaller operations in
obtaining additional financing; and
succession duties and estate taxes.”

Would you not agree in fairness Mr. Crépault,
that we should add to that list—general
economies of scale and increased profitabili-
ty?

Mr. Crépault: Well, I would be inclined to
say no.

The Chairman: Why?

Mr. Crépault: Well, I have lived through
the experience and I find that group owner-
ship doesn’t really increase your profit margin
and gain, on the basis of facts and figures I
think it decreases it because...

The Chairman: That is true in broadecast-
ing, is it?

Mr. Crépauli: It is certainly true in broad-
casting, not only from my own experience but
from the impression I get from my colleagues
who are involved in group ownership.

The Chairman: Well, your statement here
says every industry. Can you not think of
industries in which there are economies of
scale and increased profitability because of
group ownership? Even part of the communi-
cation industry?
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Mr. Crépauli: I can’t think of any at the
moment unless Mr. McGregor has some facts.

Mr. McGregor: I was. simply going to com-
ment that the increased profitability might
well result from increased revenue more than
from increased profits proportionately speak-
ing. In other words the profits may well
increase as a result of an increased efficiency
in the operation in making the whole station
or the whole group of stations...

The Chairman: I am sorry for interrupting
you but there is an urgent phone call for Mr.
Donald Newman.

Mr. McGregor: The difficulty that some of
these single ownership stations have is their
inability to assimilate a rapid change—a drop
in ratings a sudden new regulation which
represents a substantial increase in costs—
they are not able to stay alive while the
regulation is either changed or while the
effects of the regulations can be changed or
modified within the station. These things
become a major crisis to a small operation
whereas in a larger operation they are an
important problem but they don’t represent
life or death.

Mr. Fortier: On that point, what about the
argument which we have heard when the
Committee was dealing with newspapers, that
the newspapers should be community
owned—it should be owned by a member of
the community where it is published, ideally.
Dpes that not also apply to radio and televi-
sion stations and if not why?

Mr. Crépault: I think I would make a dis-
tinction between ownership and operation. To
begin with as to group ownership, I am per-
sonally inclined to believe not only the princi-
ple, I think, must be accepted but I also feel
to a great extent that it is almost essential
now for the survival of broadecasting, and in
some way the argument that we had earlier
"chat if we want quality and if we want to be
in a .competitive position we have to have a
certain element of bigness. With regard to the
local participation—I would prefer to use the
word participation rather than ownership. As
soon as you talk about group ownership, actu-
ally .ﬁrst of all you get away from local own-
ership unless it is a public company with a
wide distribution of shareholders with roots
in various communities, so really the owner-
ship in my view is not the determining factor.

Mr. Fortier: It is the operation?
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Mr. Crépault: It is the operational aspect of
the media which counts.

Mr. Fortier: But you have done so effec-
tively, so well in Quebec monsieur Crépault
with your company—do you think you are
going to see that in English Canada also?

Mr. Crépault: You are beginning to see it
now, it is already started. I visualize that
even just as a matter of survival in the next
five years—as I say it doesn’t mean that all
my colleagues here will necessarily agree
with my conviction—but I visualize that in
about five years or perhaps at the most ten
years you will have the whole private broad-
casting field in the hands between 10 and
15 groups.

Mr. Fortier: Made up of networks?

Mr. Crépauli: Regional networks, joint
administrations, and I think that it is not
going to harm the information field in
Canada. I think it is going to enhance its
qualities, I think it is going to lend strength
to the Canadian industry in order to becomeé
more competitive and I think it will also
bring to the Canadian population far better
services, more professional services.

Mr. Fortier: -Could I ask Mr. Fenety fo com~
ment on that?

Mr. Fenety: I would agree wholeheartedly
with Mr. Crépault’s summation. I would think
for example in the Atlantic Provinces where
we are hard-nosed individuals, we like ouT
own autonomy and we like to be as parochia1
as it is possible to be, that even there we aré
now facing a situation where we are going to
be viable in the marketplace. There must
indeed by a grouping together of broadcasting
units if they are to survive. For example, W€
were talking about news a moment ago.
my particular market my news department
chose to present Apollo 11 in a voice repo:
series, which to me seemed a little strang®
and the cost was about $500. Their point O
view was simply that there are people who
are shut in in hospitals and people who ar€
mobile or people who are travelling who
wanted to follow this important event ar
therefore despite the fact that most of
people in my immediate city area WOUlld
watch ABC, CBS, NBC, CBC and CTV, t_he,y
went ahead with it. How much longer—this 1%
the way I am putting it to you now—ho
much longer are we in a position to do this?
think perhaps the people in the smaller ce?”
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tres in New Brunswick should have had the
opportunity and so on and if such opportuni-
ties are to be provided there must be cost
sharing. This can only be done within the
larger units. Therefore, the service that is
provided in all these areas will be greatly
increased and the quality of them even more
S0.

Senator McElman: Mr. Chairman, for the
record I think I must say that Mr. Fenety’s
description of a Maritimer doesn’t necessarily
apply to all Maritimers!

Mr. Fenety: Well, we have a nationalistic
outlook, our own Maritime outlook.

Senator McElman: We have had many com-
barisons between the Canadian and American
situation, this morning and so on, but I think
we should look back to what Parliament had
in mind going back beyond the Broadcasting
Act to the White Paper and the report of the
House committee on broadcasting. I will just
Tead two short paragraphs and then I will
bPose my question.

“Fundamental to any consideration of
broadcasting policy is the fact that the
airwaves are public property and the
privilege of exclusive use of any channel
or frequency must be subject to the clear
responsibility of serving the public inter-
est as expressed through national poli-
cies. The Committee”—and this is the
House Committee and this report was
adopted—*“feels strongly that it is not a
proper function of Parliament or Govern-
ment to be involved in the programming
or the day-to-day operation or supervi-
sion of broadcasting systems. It is however
the responsibility of Parliament to define
the public interest to be served by our
braodcasting system and to enunciate the
national policy. It is also Parliament’s
duty to create a viable structure within
which the service we seek can be assured
to the Canadian people.”

Now, we have talked much about the regu-
ations and we have talked a little about li-
Censing. Do you not think therefore that in
th? sort of unique broadcasting situation—I
think it is unique perhaps in the world with
s mix—do you not think that in licensing you
haye a tremendous advantage because in li-
Censing I think one of the requirements—if it

D't you can correct me—is that before
other licence be granted consideration be
8lven to the economic viability of licencees in

at area. This is unique, is it not?

Media 31:41

Mr. Crépault: Well, it is true, Senator, and
in fact this is a consideration of course which
is taken into account when you apply for a
licence. They want to make sure if the licence

is granted that you are going to be viable. As
to whether this is unique in Canada...

Senator McElman: Excuse me sir. Not just
the fact that the new licencee will be viable
but the existing station will be viable?

Mr, Crépault: That’s right. In other words—
yes, you are right on this. In other words if in
their judgment they feel that by granting a
new licence they would jeopardize the exist-
ing station they would be reluctant to do so.
As to whether this is unique within our coun-
try I would be inclined to say that perhaps
you might compare maybe the telephone
operation which is perhaps identical to this.
In other words, I don’t think you could obtain
from the Transportation Board—you know, I
don’t think I could, for instance, set up shop
in competition with the Bell Telephone with-
out a licence, and I have the feeling that I
would find it pretty difficult to get a licence
to operate my own telephone company in
Quebec. I am not sure that this situation is
unique. You have the same situation with
regard to airlines.

Senator McElman: Well, let us just stick to
broadcasting. The comparison today has been
largely with the American system which is
better than ours in this fashion, they ecan
make more money and have their great net-
works which by making money can produce a
better programming and so on. I am sure you
wouldn’t want to transfer into an American
system but let’s for a moment take radio
broadcating. Their licensing provisions enable
them to almost hand out radio braodecast
licences like wheatcakes. ..

Mr. Crépault: Yes.
Senator McElman: Yes.

Mr. Crépault: And they are beginning,
Senator, to regret that policy.

Senator McElman: Indeed.

Mr. Crépault: Yes, because I can tell you
for instance that within the last month there
are three television stations in the United
States that have gone bankrupt and perhaps
even a greater number of radio stations, and
also there is duplication of the services, there
has been a lowering of the quality of the
service and I agree with you, I think they are
beginning to deeply regret that policy.
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Senator McElman: Well, this was what I
was getting to. In line with the intent of
Parliament, which I have read to you, we
have had great stress this morning on the
interference, the regulations and so on—there
is another side of the coin in Canada, is there
not—somewhat different—our licensing does
have woven into it protective measures for
existing licencees—Roy Thomson said a
licence to print money...

Mr. Crépauli: The most questionable state-
ment that was ever made about broadcasting.

Senator McElman: Well, all right. The point
I simply wanted to make was that in Canada
there is the second side of the coin—heavy
protection of licencees guarding against fur-
ther licences which will wreck their viability.
Is that not correct?

Mr. Crépauli: Senator, I am fully in agree-
ment with you. The securing of a broadcast-
ing licence, and I think I can say that I speak
for the great majority of broadcasters when I
say that it is a great privilege and an honour
because in some way it is a judgment in their
ability to serve the public and to that extent I
agree with you. The licence includes within
itself also a built-in protection and I think
that makes the obligation that much more
serious and I fully agree with you. I have
always accepted the fact that it has to be
regulated.

Special Senate Committee

The Chairman: Honourable Senators, ladies
and gentlemen, I know that Mr. McGregor
would like to speak and Mr. Fortier would
like to speak. I said we would adjourn at 1:00
o’clock but perhaps before we actually do
adjourn I would just say to you, Monsieur
Crépault, and to your colleagues that as origi-
nally conceived the idea for the Committee
was really to deal with print only. However
we soon realized that a study of this type
would only be meaningful if we did include
broadcasting and so we decided to ask the
broadcasters, notwithstanding as I observed in
my original speech in the Senate that you are
quite right—it has been analysed, self-
analyzed, cross-examined, possibly the most
examined medium in history. Yet I don’t
think we have to apologize for having you
here this morning notwithstanding the many
remarks about government inquiries in your
brief. This has been a valuable morning for
us, it has been useful testimony and we are
grateful.

Perhaps the only other thing I should do is
outline the schedule for next week. There are
only two public sessions. Tuesday, March 17
in this room at 2:30 we will be hearing from
Mr. Nicholas Johnson from the FCC in Wash-
ington. Then on Wednesday, March 18 in this
room at 10:00 o’clock, Reader’s Digest
Magazine.

The meeting is adjourned. Thank you very
much.

... Whereupon the meeting was adjourned.

Queen’s Printer for Canada, Ottawa, 1970
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ORDERS OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Wednesday,
October 29th, 1969.

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator Davey moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Lang:

That a Special Committee of the Senate be appointed to consider
and report upon the ownership and control of the major means of mass
public communication in Canada, in particular, and without restricting
the generality of the foregoing, to examine and report upon the extent
and nature of their impact and influence on the Canadian public, to be
known as the Special Committee of the Senate on Mass Media;

That the Committee have power to engage the services of such
counsel and technical, clerical and other personnel as may be necessary
for the purpose of the inquiry;

That the Committee have power to send for persons, papers and
records, to examine witnesses, to report from time to time and to print
such papers and evidence from day to day as may be ordered by the
Committee;

That the Committee have power to sit during adjournments of the
Senate and that Rule 76(4) be suspended in relation to this Special
Committee from 9th to 18th December, 1969, both inclusive, and the
Committee have power to sit during sittings of the Senate for that
period;

That the papers and evidence received and taken on the subject in
the preceding session be referred to the Committee; and

That the Committee be composed of the Honourable Senators Beau-
bien, Davey, Everett, Giguére, Hays, Irvine, Langlois, Macdonald (Cape
Breton), McElman, Petten, Prowse, Sparrow, Urquhart, White and Willis.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Thursday,
November 6th, 1969.

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Smith:

That the names of the Honourable Senators Giguére and Urquhart
be removed from the list of Senators serving on the Special Committee
of the Senate on Mass Media; and

That the names of the Honourable Senators Bourque, Smith and
Welch be added to the list of Senators serving on the said Special Com-
mittee.

32:3
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The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Thursday,
December 18th, 1969.

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Smith:

That Rule 76(4) be suspended in relation to the Special Committee
of the Senate on Mass Media from 20th to 30th January, 1970, and that

the Committee have power to sit during sittings of the Senate for that
period.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Friday, Decem-
ber 19th, 1969.

With leave of the Senate,
The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Langlois:

That the names of the Honourable Senators Bélisle and Phillips
(Prince) be substituted for those of the Honourable Senators Welch and
White on the list of Senators serving on the Special Committee of the
Senate on Mass Media. '

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday,
February 3, 1970.

With leave of the Senate,
The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Langlois:

That Rule 76 (4) be suspended in relation to the Special Committee
of the Senate on Mass Media from 10th to 19th February, 1970, both in-
clusive, and that the Committee have power to sit during sittings of the
Senate for that period.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Thursday,
February 5, 1970.
With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Haig:

That the names of the Honourable Senators Quart and Welch be
substituted for those of the Honourable Senators Bélisle and Willis on

82:4



the list of Senators serving on the Special Committee of the Senate on
Mass Media.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday,
February 17, 1970.
With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Connolly (Halifax North):

That the name of the Honourable Senator Kinnear be added to the
list of Senators serving on the Special Committee of the Senate on Mass
Media.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday,
March 3, 1970.

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Denis, P.C.:

That the name of the Honourable Senator Langlois be removed from
the list of Senators serving on the Special Committee of the Senate on
Mass Media.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday,
March 3, 1970.

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Denis, P.C.:

That Rule 76 (4) be suspended in relation to the Special Committee
of the Senate on Mass Media from 4th to 13th March, 1970, both in-
clusive, and that the Committee have power to sit during sittings of
the Senate for that period.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

ROBERT FORTIER,
Clerk of the Senate.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TuEsDpAY, March 17, 1970.
(32)

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Senate Committee on
Mass Media met this day at 2.30 p.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators: Davey (Chairman); Bourque, Kinnear,
Macdonald (Cape Breton), McElman, Petten, Prowse, Quart, Smith, Sparrow
and Welch. (11)

In attendance: Miss Marianne Barrie, Director and Administrator; Mr.
Yves Fortier, Counsel.

The following witness was heard:

Mr. Nicholas Johnson, Commissioner, Federal Communications Com-
mission, Washington, D.C.

At 6.10 p.m. the Committee adjourned to Wednesday, March 18, 1970,
at 10.00 a.m.

ATTEST.

Denis Bouffard,
Clerk of the Committee.
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SPECIAL SENATE COMMITTEE ON MASS MEDIA

EVIDENCE

Ottawa, March 17, 1970

The Special Senate Committee on Mass
Media met this day at 2.30 p.m.

Senator Keith Davey (Chairman) in the
Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, if I
may call this session to order.

Qur witness this afternoon is surely one of
the busiest people in North America and cer-
tainly one of those who is most interested in
the mass media. Commissioner Johnson is
leaving from Ottawa to go to Rome, then of
course ultimately back to Washington. Per-
haps I could be allowed to sketch his career
Very briefly for you. He was born in Iowa—he
is a graduate in law of the University of
Texas and spent two years as a law clerk.
The first with the Chief Justice United States
Court of Appeal Fifth Circuit and then a year
as a law clerk with Supreme Court Justice
Black. He then joined the law faculty at the
University of California at Berkeley, where

e served three years. He then became
associated with a law firm in Washington for
One year until his appointment in 1964 by the
t¥len President Lyndon Johnson as the Mari-
time Administrator. He served in this position
from 1964 to 1966 and then in 1966 was
appointed by President Johnson to a seven
Year term as one of seven FCC Commission-
ers,

Commissioner Johnson, to give him his full
and proper title, is 35 years of age, he is
Married with three children and he interest-
Ingly enough just now—just within the last
€W weeks—published a fascinating book
Which I hope I will have a chance to talk
about this afternoon—it’s title is “How To
Talk Back To Your Television Set.” Perhaps

r. Johnson if I might be allowed to quote
from the jacket of the book, it says something
about you which I think would interest the
Senators, There are three quotations from the

ack of the book—the first is from John

€nneth Galbraith, and I am quoting:
“Nick Johnson is currently the citizen’s
least frightened friend in Washington and
this book tells why.”

The second quote by Fred W. Friendly, an

Edward R. Murrow Professor of Broadcast

Journalism, at the Graduate School of Jour-

nalism, Columbia. Mr. Friendly says:
“There is such a thing as public enter-
prise and Commissioner Johnson emerges
as this devil’s disciple. What this good
book says is that 40 years of experiment-
ing with private enterprise in the public
sector has produced a national humilia-
tion.”

The quote I like most is from Tom Smoth-
ers and he says:

«It is a shame this book wasn’t around in
the 60’s so my brother Dick could have
read it to me. Things might have been
different. For the millions of Americans
who want television to live up to its
responsibilities, this book tells you how to
do something about it. If you don’t read
it, stop griping.”

Inside the cover, or inside the jacket, just
quoting one more paragraph, “Nicholas John-
son is a member of the Federal Communica-
tions Commission—the youngest man ever to
serve on the FCC and the most controversial.
(Five broadcasters’ associations, for example,
have asked President Nixon to fire him.) In
this book he inquires into television’s perfor-
mance and he finds it dangerously inade-
quate. Unlike most critics of the medium, he
also offers some tough-minded proposals for
reform. Commissioner Johnson, we are
delighted you have found the time to be here.
I know you have a written brief which has
just now been circulated to the senators. I
propose that you read that brief, or perhaps
highlight the brief, and then following that
we would like to ask you some questions on
it. I would certainly, and perhaps some of the
others would like to ask you some questions
on your book, and I am sure there will be
other questions the Senators would like to ask
you. Welcome, thank you, and why don’t you
proceed.

Mr. Nicholas Johnson, Commissioner, Fed-
eral Communications Commission, Washing-
ton, D.C.: Thank you very much, Mr. Chair-
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man and honourable Senators, for that very
gracious beginning. I must say a number of
Americans who have found our society
oppressive for one reason or another came to
Canada, as you know, and apparently I am to
be numbered among them, at least for today.

When I was last called before our Senate at
Washington for my writings, it was on the
basis of a complaint on the part of the com-
mittee with responsibility for the Federal
Communications Commission. The complaint
was that I had the audacity as a public official
to bring such secret documents to public
attention as the acts of Congress and the deci-
sions of the United States Supreme Court,
thereby letting the public know of its rights
in this area, which of course is a dangerous
thing to have done. I promised to try to do
better in the future, but I really haven’t as I
have gone on in that way.

It is with some considerable hesitation that
I agreed to come here at all. I have tremen-
dous respect for the Chairman and for this
committee and for what you are doing here in
Canada. It is being watched and followed
very closely in the United States as you may
know, but I really think it is a Canadian
matter and I am in trouble enough as it is in
the United States without taking on Canada
as well. I think these are very important
issues in every nation of the world today.
They are being confronted one way or anoth-
er in every country, but in no country with
the courage and thoroughness that is being
applied here.

I think it would be inappropriate for me to
come to Ottawa from Washington and suggest
to you what you ought to do to solve your
problems when we seem to have some great
difficulty even addressing ours let alone
resolving them. I don’t know really how much
I can say that would be of relevance to you,
because you are much more familiar with the
situation here than I am. I will limit my
comments largely to our experience in the
United States, what I think some of our prob-
lems are there and what we have tried to do
about them. If you find anything of relevance
in that, then you can draw such conclusions
and proposals as you wish.

Let me begin by saying a word about
media concentration and the various forms in
which it can exist. I might note at the outset
that I don’t intend to read this statement to
you from beginning to end, but rather point
out some of the issues discussed in it. I have
been very impressed with the fact that the

Special Senate Commitiee

committee staff and your chairman actually
read this book which is an extraordinary
compliment and rather extraordinary behavi-
our on the part of public officials. And so 1
trust, if you are capable of reading an entire
book, certainly you are capable of reading the
statement without my reading it to you.

I have appended to it a bibliography, inci-
dentally, of some of the opinions and other
statements that I have issued in this area, and
I have brought a single copy of each of those
which I will submit to the Committee for its
public files or for whatever use you may wish
to make of this material.

There are a number of areas in which the
problem of media concentration arises in the
United States. One of these can be character-
ized as local monopoly or local domination;
this is where a local newspaper, radio or
television station might be owned by the
same person.

A second is what we call regional concen-
tration—this would very seldom be a
monopoly, but a situation where a small
group of men control most of the more sig-
nificant mass media in that particular area:
newspapers, radio, television, cable television,
magazines, and so forth.

Then there is what we call the multiple
owner who may have a national impact
within a given medium. He may own a chain
of newspapers or he may own a chain of
broadcasting stations.

This can be further complicated in the casé
in which a single individual or corporation
owns outlets in different kinds of media. They
may own newspapers as well as television
stations, as well as magazines, and so forth.

Finally, there is the problem we call the
congomerate corporation. This I define as 2
corporation which is predominantly engag
in industrial enterprise of one kind or another
and has, as one of its subsidiary corporations,
a mass media enterprise of some kind.

Now, what I have just characterized aré
really classic case studies. In point of fact
they never exist in quite that pure a form-:
You will have, for example, a Howar
Hughes in Las Vegas acquiring a televisio®
station. This raises a number of problems:
Hughes’  industrial interests, generally
throughout the United States, clearly qualify
him as a conglomerate corporation. The
ownership of a single television station in L?S
Vegas does not make him a national medi?
power. But in addition to being a nationd
conglomerate, he is also a local conglomerate
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in that he owns most of Las Vegas. So that
within that given community here is a man
who has business interests throughout the
city who also owns one of the major outlets
of information in that city.

Another example would be RCA, which is
an industrial conglomerate—it derives 20 per
cent of its revenues from defence contracts. It
is also a multiple media owner, in that it has
interests in book publishing, in records, as
well as the ownership of stations, the pro-
gramming of stations by means of a network,
the ownership of copyrights and of talent,
and so forth. It is difficult to find cases that
fall within precisely any one of these defini-
tions, but I think they are useful in looking at
the problem.

The facts of concentration in the United
States are, in my judgment, quite disturbing
and the condition is accelerating. There is a
local concentration of control of the mass
media in most of the American cities, a local
concentration of one kind or another. There
are 72 communities where the only broadcast
station is owned by the only local newspaper.
I believe now, in 96 per cent of the cities with
a daily newspaper, there is no newspaper
Competition. There are 12 communities where
the only newspaper owns or has an interest in
the only television station. In 1967 there were
250 cities where the local daily newspaper
had control over a local broadcasting station,
and in approximately 213 of these, there was
Do other daily newspaper. Most of the major
television stations in the United states are
Owned either by local newspapers or by mul-
tiple station owners. There are almost no
€xamples of local ownership of the major

HF network affiliated television stations in
the largest, say, 25 markets (other than joint
Newspaper ownership). This is, needless to
Say, contrary to what Congress had in mind in
1927 and in 1934 in passing the Radio Act and
the Communications Act of those years. Many
Of these statistics are spelled out here in the

tatement regarding radio and I won’t read
all that to you.

fI'he conglomerate problem is more com-
bPlicated and we have less information about
. The FCC is now undertaking an investiga-
t‘1°!1 into conglomerate ownership. It launched
1t with great fanfare on February 8, 1969 and
has yet to take any meaningful action in that
Yegard, with the exception of the decisions it
Tendered on that date when it approved the
Urther acquisition of broadcast properties by

Tee of the largest and most powerful con-
8lomerates in the United States. The Commis-
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sion apparently felt that as long as it
announced an inquiry the same day, there
was nothing wrong with its decisions.

We also have the phenomenon of network
domination that goes into the economic
sphere as well as the ideological, in the
United States. The networks and their owned
and operated stations—as distinguished from
the stations affiliated with the networks—took
in 52 per cent of all the revenues earned by
the television industry. The remaining 48 per
cent was shared by the other 628 stations.
That gives you some sense of the total domi-
nation of the networks in case there is any
question about that in your minds.

Recently the Vice President added his voice
to the rising chorus of those who expressed
some concern about media concentration—
although his interests seem to be limited to
those media owners whose policies tend not to
coincide with those of the administration. At
least one would have to conclude that on the
basis of the examples he chooses to empha-
size. ‘

Now, why is this something that inde-
pendent observers of the media in the United
States are concerned about? There are a
number of reasons.

First is our concept of what we call, and I
quote, “a marketplace of ideas”—to borrow a
phrase from a leading Supreme Court deci-
sion. We are committed to the idea that no
one has a monopoly on truth, and that the
only way that a democracy can function is if
all people have an opportunity to express
their views, put them out, get them heard and
debated and challenged. The truth is, in
effect, a process. It is the process by which
all these ideas can be thrown out into the
marketplace of ideas and tested, and the idea
that wins in a democracy is the idea that
prevails. We are concerned that the great
diversity that is represented in our country is
not really represented in the media.

The second reason for our concern is the
political power that is held by those who
control the media. This is a frightening thing
and I can explore it in greater detail if you
are interested, but for now just let me say
that there is no single industry in the United
States that comes close to having the political
and economic power, that the media in gener-
al and broadecasting in particular now have.

Let me just say for now that one of the
reasons for this is the role of television in the
elective process. All that any other major
industry can do is to contribute money, mil-
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lions of dollars, to political campaigns. What
is then done with that money is to purchase
television time—time which can also be made
available free, on news programs as well as
being made available in commercial time for
purchase.

A third reason for our concern is our inter-
est in local ownership of the media. The
reason why we have 7,500 radio and televi-
sion stations in the United States is because
we think that local communities deserve a
local outlet. To the extent the stations are
only putting out nationally distributed com-
mercials, wire service news, records, motion
pictures, television entertainment there is no
need for the local station.

A fourth reason relates to the more conven-
tional anti-trust concerns for the functioning
of this industry in the marketplace, like any
other industry.

A fifth reason, a fifth concern, is that we
have some evidence that multiple ownership
and conglomerate ownership of the mass
media have tended to have an influence in
distorting the content of the mass media to
serve the economic interests of the owners. A
large congolerate corporation is very likely to
treat a mass media subsidiary as something in
the nature of a public relations operation or
advertising operation. It is very difficult for a
large conglomerate to accept the idea that its
mass media subsidiary is going to report the
truth even when it does not serve the eco-
nomic interests of the holding company. All
the subsidiaries are expected to contribute to
the economic well-being of the holding com-
pany, and the mass media subsidiary tends to
be no exception.

Finally, T might note that with increased
concentration of control goes a popular
demand, and a legitimate need, for greater
governmental regulation. So that to the
extent you happen to favour the operation of
a media, independent of government regula-
tion, which I do, then one would want to
encourage in the mass media greater diversi-
ty, greater competition, lowering of barriers
to entry, et cetera, so that it would tend to
regulate itself in the marketplace rather than
requiring a need for greater and greater gov-
ernmental regulation.

The Federal Communications Commission
has very little at the present time in the way
of rules to regulate this. The only firmly fixed
standards we have involve two principles.
The .ﬁrst is the so-called duopoly standard. It
provides that no one can have broadcast
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interests in the same service the signals of
which overlap; that is to say, he cannot own
an AM radio station in one community if its
signal will overlap an AM radio station
which he owns in another community. How-
ever, until now there has been no prohibition
whatsover against owning an FM radio sta-
tion, an AM radio station and a VHF televi-
sion station all in the same community. We
are now addressing that issue in a proceeding
that goes by the name of the “one-to-a-mar-
ket rule”. The “one-to-a-market rule” pro-
vides that no one could own more than one
full time property in a given market.
The Justice Department has intervened
in that proceeding and has urged upon us
that we require divestiture and that we con-
sider newspapers along with broadecast
properties.

The other rule relates to the total number
of stations which any single owner can own
in the United States. This is now limited to
seven FM radio stations, seven AM radio sta-
tions, five VHF television stations, and two
UHF television stations. What this fails to
take account of, of course, is the difference in
markets, so that there are multiple station
owners who own stations in New York and
Los Angeles and Chicago and other large
cities. That tends to give them an inordinate
amount of influence in the largest states
which in turn gives them inordinate national
and political and economic power.

The FCC once proposed a so-called “top 50
rule” which would have limited the number
of stations that any individual owner could
own in the largest 50 markets to someting less
than the “7-7-7” that applies generally
throughout the country. That rule had no
more than been announced than the FCC
began waiving it in each individual instanceé
that came before it. It soon became obvious
that it didn’t intend to enforce the rule at all
and finally, at least, shed the hypocrisy and
repealed the rule.

There has been some interest also in the
matter of network domination of the pro-
gramming product. We have two propoals
before us regarding this: one is called the
“50-50 proposal” and the other is called the
“Westinghouse proposal”. The “50-50 propos-
al” provides that no network should be per-
mitted to own more than 50 per cent of the
programming which it makes available to its
affiliates. At the present time networks ow?
virtually all of the programming. The “Wesf_“
inghouse proposal,” by contrast, would lim!



Mass

the number of hours in the evening that a
network can program for affiliates, thereby
opening up time that the local station will
either have to program with its own material
or by purchasing from independent suppliers
and programming material.

Now, one of the problems both in terms of
the marketplace of ideas and an economic
marketplace in the industry is that there
are basically three buyers of television pro-
duct in the United States. It is an incredibly
stifling economic and creative environment in
which to work. I went out to Los Angeles this
past year and talked with a broad cross
representation of the top producers and writ-
ers and talent in Hollywood, and I have never
before addressed a more despondent and
cynical lot of men in my life. So one of the
things that the “Westinghouse proposal”’ is
designed to strike at, is that problem of open-
ing up more competition in the business.

It is rather tragic that Vice President
Agnew and the administration have been
talking about the problem of concentration
of control, and applying its concern to those
bapers and stations which refuse to simply
Carry the White House releases without com-
Mment. While there has been this ostensible
Interest in media ownership patterns, the
Administration has, in fact, behind the scenes
Peen supporting the industry across the board
In every instance in which its economic inter-
ests were at stake.

We see, for example, that when the trade
Press reported that the FCC was going to
Oppose the Pastore Bill by a six to one vote,
President Nixon appointed two new commis-
Sioners to the Commission, one of whom was

Igublicly on record in support of the Pastore
ill.

The Chairman: You might explain what the
Pastore Bill is.

Commissioner Johnson: Thank you. I think
that is 5 good suggestion which occurred to
Me in mid-sentence.

The Pastore Bill, S-2004, was in general, a
Curtailment of the right of the public to par-
tl‘3iDate in the licence renewal process. More
SPecifically, it did this by engaging the legis-
_atiVe presumption that all licensees are serv-
Ing the public interest and that no citizens’
g‘r°up should be permitted to file a competing
ICence application at licence renewal time for
My commercial station. It provided that the
Fee would have to first find that the station

Media 32:13
had not been serving the public interest
before any outside group could file. In point
of fact, the FCC has done this in probably
less than one-one hundredth of one per cent
of the cases coming before it since its incep-
tion on the grounds of programming, the
likelihood of it happening in the future was
rather remote as the industry well knew. This
was particularly so in view of the fact that
the FCC would have before it, in judging the
public interest performance, nothing but the
station’s own self-service filing with the
Commission.

The upshot of that odyssey, should you be
curious, was that the FCC then went back
and announced its own so-called policy state-
ment which in effect adopted into FCC regu-
lation most of what the proponents of the bill
wanted from the Senate, thereby removing
from Senator Pastore the embarrassment of
further pursuing that rather incredible piece
of legislation.

The point is that the administration’s posi-
tion on it was quite clear. Senator Hart, who
has made a valiant effort to conduct the kind
of inquiry that you are engaged in here, with
the hearings that he held on the newspaper
industry monopoly authorization bill (known
to the newspapers as the Failing Newspaper
Act), discovered that there was a considerable
influence on the part of media with the
Senate which was in no way aided, in this
instance, by the role of the Administration.

The Assistant Attorney-General for anti-
{rust matters in the Justice Department, as
one would expect, came out in opposition to
the Failing Newspaper Act: Whereupon for
the first time in our nation’s history, to my
knowledge, the Justice Department was over-
ruled by the White House and the Depart-
ment of Commerce was set up to testify on
this anti-trust matter and, under White House
instructions, came out in favour of the news-
paper industry’s bill.

The Chairman: You might explain the bill.

Commissioner Johnson: Well, this is a bill
that permits newspapers to merge, presuma-
bly out of a concern that to continue to have
competition among newspapers in as large a
proportion of our cities as 4 per cent, was
somehow dangerous and ought to be diverted
as much as possible. This would permit merg-
ers in those few remaining communities
around the United States where there still is
newspaper competition.
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The final interesting bit of evidence of the
Administrations’ role concerns the bill intro-
duced by Senator MrcIntyre, which would
have provided for splitting up media concen-
trations in local communities. The President’s
Director of Communications, (a title, inciden-
tally, which does not exist outside of commu-
nist countries to my knowledge) Herb Klein,
publicly stated that he was—by now to no
one’s surprise—opposed to Senator McIntyre’s
legislation.

While we have some frightening statistics
we have very little in the way of action in
the United States, and I am not optimistic
that any massive action is near at hand. The
media owners have a life and death grip on
the political life of the country and they seem
prepared to sacrifice their journalistic integri-
ty in the cause of increasing profits. The
existence of your Special Committee indicates
that maybe the future for Canada is not as
bleak as that which I see for the United
States, but unless the concern generated over
this problem continues, I am afraid that
changes are impossible.

By “concern”, obviously, I do not mean the
kind of political utterances that have come
from our Vice President, but rather the force-
ful and well explained and constructive
investigation and study which is represented
by the work of this Committee. Without such
concern and inquiry, I am afraid, at least in
the United States we are going to be
doomed to increased domination and control
by larger and larger media barons.

Well, Mr. Chairman and Honourable Sena-
tors, that brings me to the end of my infor-
mal comments about this statement. At
this point with your permission I would like
to insert the prepared statement in the
record. ..

The Chairman: Thank you—And the vari-
ous appendices as well?

Commissioner Johnson: If you would care
to print them.

The Chairman: We would be interested in
having all the information you can spare.

Prepared Statement of Nicholas
Johnson, Commissioner, Federal
Communications Commission, Washington,
b s

Media Concentration: The United States
Experience and Lessons for Canada

It is with some hesitation that I have finally
acceded to the urging of your Chairman,
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Senator Keith Davey, that I testify before
your Committee. The questions before you
are strictly a matter for Canadians to address
and resolve. I would never be so presumpt-
uous as to urge a particular solution upon
you. Indeed I do not even know if my obser-
vations will be of much relevance to you. But
I am willing to come and be of whatever help
I can.

I am vaguely familiar with the structure of
the Canadian media—especially the broadcast
media—and I have some ideas about the
unique problems that your nation encounters.
But I prefer to confine my remarks today
primarily to the United States experience. If
there are parallels to the Canadian situation I
will leave it to you to draw the conclusions.

I do want to commend you for undertaking
this inquiry. Those of us to the immediate
south of Canada desperately need to engage
in the kind of inquiry your Special Commit-
tee is conducting. Lacking our own study, I
am hopeful we will be able to learn from
yours. I will conclude my remarks with a
brief description of what has been attempted
or proposed in the United States. But first, it
may be useful to describe precisely what I
think is meant by “media concentration.”

I. Media Concentration: A Definition.

I have dealt primarily in the past with the
ownership of five units of media: television,
radio, newspapers, cable television, and tele-
phone. This is not to say that I consider this
list to be exhaustive, or to say that I believe
movies or books or magazines, for example
are unimportant. But due to historical chancé
these five media have been the principal con-
cern of the Federal Communications Commis-
sion, and so I will address myself primarily t0
concentration of control of these media. When
we speak of “media concentration,” we aré
usually speaking of combinations of these five
media.

Usually those concerned with the concen”
tration of control of the media do not dif
ferentiate between different kinds of concen”
tration. I believe that there are four differe®
situations in which the concentration ©
media is important. First, there is the prob-
lem of cross-ownership: that is, the owner 0
one of the five media owning another medi2
outlet in the same market. For example, 2
newspaper may own a local broadcast statio?
or a single owner may control a local teleV}‘
sion-AM-FM combination. A second medi?
concentration problem is “multiple owner”
ship.” Technically, a multiple owner is aP
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owner with more than one of the five media
anywhere in the country. But we only are
concerned when the control of one owner
over the media becomes so great as to create
a “regional concentration” or ‘“national con-
centration” problem. These definitions are
necessarily imprecise, varying with the
number, grographic distribution, power, and
type of media held. A third concentration
pProblem is the conglomerate ownership of
media. A problem potentially exists whenever
a media outlet is owned by a corporation with
other business interests. The final concentra-
tion problem is pretty much unique to televi-
sion: that is, the control over the media by
hational networks. A analogous problem
exists with the power of the wire services in

Providing news to newspapers and broadcast-
ers,

II. The Reasons for Concern
A. The facts of concentration.

A quick glance at the statistics of media
Concentration in the United States indicates a
Part of the cause for concern. The problem of
Cross-ownership or “local concentration of
Control,” exists in most of the larger cities in
the United States and in many of the smaller
Ones. There are 72 communities where the
Only broadcast stations are owned by the only
Ocal newspaper, and there are 12 communi-
ties where the only newspaper owns or has
an interest in the only television station. In

67 there were 250 cities where the local
aily newspaper had control over a local

Oadcast station—and in 20 more it had a
lnlnority interest. In approximately 213 of

€se communities, there was no other daily
Bewspaper.

The statistics of multiple ownership of

€dia—the regional or national concentration
Problems—show similar concentration. In

967, 81.3 per cent of the commercial VHF
Clevision stations were either owned by a
Oup broadcaster or a daily newspaper. In 11
tes and the District of Columbia, all the
Ations were so owned, and in another 13
Iy tes all but one was. In the larger, more

Crative markets the concentration is even
th°1‘e pronouned. In the largest 10 markets in
na. United States, with 40 per cent of the
taho_n’s television homes, 37 of the 40 VHF

Cvision stations are licensed to group

Ners and the remaining three are owned by
th, ¥ newspapers in the same community. In

¢ top 50 markets in 1967, 127 of the 156
tag stations were licensed to group broqd-

ters, and 17 of the remaining 29 were lic-
ed to newspaper publishers.

St
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The figures for radio are no less staggering.
In the top 50 markets nationally, 526 of the
715 AM and FM stations are owned by multi-
ple owners. Even the new technology, cable
television, has not escaped this concentration
syndrome. In 1968, 225 newspapers had cable
television interests, and presently 32 per cent
of the systems are owned by broadecasters.
Telephone company ownership of cable
television has also been significant.

The trend of these figures over the last few
years shows no reason for optimism. In 1967,
50 per cent of the applications for cable sys-
tems were filed by broadcasters, and their
ownership of cable television continues to
grow. Multiple ownership of television shows
a similar trend. In 1968 multiple owners con-
trolled 73.6 per cent of all commercial televi-
sion stations. Just 10 years earlier, the per-
centage of multiple-owned television stations
had been only 45.8 per cent. The average size
of a television “group” went from 2.7 stations
in 1956, to 2.94 in 1964 and 3.87 in 1967. Daily
newspapers have shown a similar decline in
independence. In 1945 there were 117 cities
with separately owned dailies, but in 1966
only 43 remained.

For the third problem of media concentra-
tion—conglomerate ownership—we do not
have as precise statistics as for the other
problems. This is in part due to the fact that
the FCC is just now getting into a study of
conglomerates, but it is also the result of the
imprecise definition of a conglomerate. In one
sense most owners of broadcast outlets are
conglomerates, in that they have other busi-
ness interests. But there are numerous licen-
sees who rank among the most powerful con-
glomerates in the country by any definition.
Certainly even without network and station
holdings, RCA, CBS, ABC, Westinghouse, and
RKO—to name just a few—would have to be
considered large and diversified companies.

Bank ownership of broadcast stock gives
one indication of the scope of the conglomer-
ate problem. A staff report prepared for the
Subcommittee on Domestic Finance of the
House Committee on Banking and Currency
entitled, “Commercial Banks and their Trust
Activities: Emerging Influence on the Ameri-
can Economy” (90th Cong., 2nd Sess., July
1968) studied the holdings of the trust depart-
ments of 49 commercial banks in 10 major
metropolitan areas, Large blocks of stock
were held by these banks in 18 companies
publishing 31 newspapers and 17 magazines,
as well as operating 17 radio and TV stations.
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The final aspect of media concentration is
the dominance over commercial television by
the three networks. The networks and their
15 “owned and operated” television stations
in 1968 took in revenues of $1.3 billion, or 52
per cent of the industry total. The remaining
48 per cent was shared by the other 628 sta-
tions. Besides dominating the industry finan-
cially, the networks also dominate the subject
matter by controlling the programming of
their 542 affiliates. In November 1967, the
three networks produced and owned, or con-
trolled through licensing arrangements, 95.2
per cent of all prime-time programming. Ten
years earlier the figure had been 67.2 per
cent. Yet most television stations choose to
affiliate if given the choice. The blunt fact is
that they must in order to be profitable in a
market controlled by the oligopolistic decision
making of the three networks. Eighty-three
per cent of the network affiliates in the
United States are profitable, while only 33
per cent of the non-network stations make
money.

B. Some reactions to concentration.

Although startling and intriguing, statistics
can describe only a part of the reasons for
concern over the concentration of control of
the mass media. Another aspect of the con-
cern is shown by the observations of many
Americans on the growing concentration of
the media. The issue gained by-partisan sup-
port in the United States when Vice President
Spiro T. Agnew railed against media control
in a few hands. He warned that network
managers possess “a concentration of power”
that “the American people would rightly not
tolerate...in Government.” (Address at Des
Moines, Iowa, November 13, 1969.) The Vice
President in a second speech on the subject
said:

“The American people should be made
aware of the trend toward the monopoli-
zation of the great public information
vehicles and the concentration of more
and more power over public opinion in
fewer and fewer hands.”

(Address at Montgomery, Alabama, November
21, 1969.)

The Vice President was not the first to
express fear over the political power of a
concentrated media. In the Congressional
d_ebates over the adoption of the Communica-
tions Act in 1934, Congressman Johnson of
Texas said:

“When. .. a single selfish group is per-
mitted to either tacitly or otherwise
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acquire ownership and dominate these
broadcasting stations throughout the
country, then woe be to those who dare
to differ with them.”

Another often articulated concern over con-
centration is the frustration it causes to those
who “nowhere. .. hear being articulated their
burdens, and their aspirations,” (Address by
Secretary of Health, Education and Welfare,
Robert H. Finch, at Peoria, Illinois, May 31,
1969.) In its report on group violence, the
National Commission on the Causes and Pre-
vention of Violence cited “increased concen-
tration of control over existing media” as one
factor frustrating dissident groups. “We need
more effective and different voices, not fewer
and fewer standardized or homogenized
ones,” the Commission said. In a speech to the
incoming freshman class of Yale University
last fall, Yale President Kingman Brewster
spoke of the growing cynicism among college
students toward the established institutions of
the United States. He blamed the mass media
for causing a part of this cynicism:

“With mass communications concentrated
in a few hands, the ancient faith in the
competition of ideas in the free market-
place seems like a hollow echo of a much
simpler day.”

The courts of this nation have for years
been aware of the necessity of a competitive
media. When dealing with the structure of
the media industries, they have been especial-
ly vigilant in enforcing the antitrust laws:
The Supreme Court in 1953 said:

“A vigorous and dauntless press is a chief
source feeding the flow of democratic
expression and controversy which maiﬂ;
tains the institutions of a free society:

(Time-Picayune ». U.S., 594, 602 (1953):
citing Associated Press v. U.S., 326 U.S. 1,20
(1945).) The Court of Appeals for the Dis'ﬂ‘ict
of Columbia has placed an affirmative duty
upon the FCC to encourage competition. I
Joseph v. FCC, 404 F. 2d 207, 211 (D. C. Ci*
1968), the court said:
“The public welfare requires the Co”
mission to provide the ‘widest possible
dissemination of information fro®
diverse and antagonistic sources’. e

In an important recent decision, Judgf
Edward A. Tamm, after discussing the necese
sity of free and competitive media, and th



Mass Media

FCC’s responsibility for its maintenance, went
on to write:

“It is also becoming increasingly obvious
that the application of antitrust doctrines
in regulating the mass media is not solely
a question of sound economic policy; it is
also an important means of achieving the
goals posited by the first amendment.”

(Hale . v...FCC, | —F2d—=(D. . C. -Ciry: Feb:
16, 1970) (concurring opinion).) He quoted
Judge Learned Hand who wrote, in rejecting
a claim that the First Amendment provided
brotection for anti-competitive practices of a
hews service:

“Neither exclusively, not even primarily,
are the interests of the newspaper indus-
try conclusive; for that industry serves
one of the most vital of all general inter-
ests: the dissemination of news from as
many different sources, and with as many
different facets and colors as is possible.
That interest is closely akin to, if indeed
it is not the same as, the interest protect-
ed by the First Amendment; it presup-
poses that right conclusions are more
likely to be gathered out of a multitude
of tongues, than through any kind of
authoritative selection. To many this is,
and always will be, folly; but we have
staked upon it our all. (U.S. v. Associated
Press, 52 F. Supp. 362, 372 (S. D. N. Y.
1943), aff’d, 326 U.S. 1 (1945).)

The enforcement of the antitrust laws is
Never a trivial matter. In their application to

€ mass media, vigorous enforcement to pro-
Mote competition is absolutely essential to our
System of government. For a democracy can
Only survive when supported by an informed
Clectorate. Without information the people
Cannot exercise their right of participation,
and the government becomes remote and
se?mingly unresponsive. Democracy will have
féulecl, if ever the people, as Judge Tamm
Wrote, “feel that they are being cheated out
9f the vigorous marketplace of ideas promised
Y the first amendment.”——F.2d

C. The effects of media concentration.
The statisties are alarming; the rhetoric
emands immediate action to combat the
1Ilc1‘easing concentration of control over the
ass media. But why have so many Ameri-
fans, of such diverse political persuasions,
Teacted so strongly to what they consider to
ie the dangers of media concentration? Why
S an inquiry such as yours applauded by
People from many countries? What are the
21482—2
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specific abuses that it is feared will result
from the concentration of the mass media in
the hands of a few?

I believe that there are seven specific rea-
sons why concentration of the media will
result in a lower level of economic and jour-
nalistic performance by the media. I earlier
described some of these reasons in an opinion
I wrote opposing the notion that increased
rights of access for citizens should lessen our
concern over concentration issues. (KCMC,
Ing,  RTAL),; 19 . F...C..C..-2d~109, 110, 111
(1969).

A first reason is derived from the notion of
“a marketplace of ideas.” If the media in a
market—whether local, regional, or nation-
al—are controlled by only a few people,
fewer views probably will be presented than
if there were greater competition among the
media. Any deviation from separate owner-
ship for each individual media outlet will
result in some loss of diversity to the public.
The only question is how much less than the
optimum diversity a free society feels it can
afford. In a pluralistic society such as we
have in the United States, I do not feel that
we can exist forever with a large part of our
population cut off from the media, unable to
communicate with those of similar persuasion
and interests. I am not just talking about
political and social dissatisfaction with the
media. I am not just complaining that those
things I would like to see in the media are
ignored. I am saying that the media of the
United States is failing when, for example,
one contrasts all the rich, wonderful diversity
of a nation the size of ours with the very
little diversity that appears on television.

A second reason is our concern about the
political power that can be exerted by media
concentrations. The raw, crass power of the
media in the United States is shown by its
ability to get essentially any single piece of
legislation it wants passed by the Congress.
This same power over the minds and thoughts
of the publie, through the faucet-like control
of the information available to the people, is
used to influence local and state politics.

Third, undue concentration subverts the
concept of local ownership of the media—
thought to be a worthwhile concept by the
Congress and the FCC. Local ownership pro-
duces closer supervision over the everyday
operations of the media by the owners. It
brings the ownership closer to its audience.
The FCC believes that this integration of
management and ownership will produce
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better performance by the media. But for
every multiple owner with media located in
separate markets, there is an absentee owner.
The conflict between multiple ownership and
local ownership appears every time the FCC
attempts to ascertain responsibility for a vio-
lation of our rules. The owners always seek to
escape responsibility by blaming some face-
less manager who was simply enmeshed in
the bureaucracy of the company.

A fourth possible abuse from excessive con-
centration of control is the increased possibil-
ity for anti-competitive practices. For exam-
ple, a media owner with two separate media
outlets in the same market might use the
monopoly power of one outlet to destroy com-
petition against the other outlet. This could
take the effect of a “tying” arrangement in
which the owner of a broadcast station would
give preferential advertising rates to those
people who also advertised in his local news-
paper. (See Complaint of Daily Herald-Tele-
phone and Sunday Herald-Times, Blooming-
ton, Indiana,—F.C.C. 2d—(1970).)

Such abuses may also result from conglom-
erate involvement with the media. There are
a variety of ways in which conglomerate
ownership of media can affect the proper
functioning of competing mass media—com-
petition which is often so necessary to insur-
ing the presentation of diverse views and
information in our society. Suppose a bank
owns broadcast stations or a newspaper in a
community—and is the only bank in the com-
munity. An actual or potential competitor—
newspaper or broadcast station—may have
great difficulty obtaining credit on reasonable
terms. The bank’s own media may get very
favourable credit, giving them a substantial
competitive advantage. Advertisers who must
deal with the bank may be reluctant to place
advertising on its competitor’s stations. Busi-
ness entities that depend on the bank for
financial resources and services may be
induced to advertise on the bank’s media—
advertising these businesses might not have
ptherwise undertaken. Finally, the bank itself
is often an important local advertiser which
may favour its own media.

Fifth, multiple ownership and conglomerate
ownership of the media makes more likely
the distortion of media content to achieve
certain economic aims of the corporate owner.
It would be no more than human for the
non-media interests of media owners to, in
some way, affect the content of their mass
media. If a bank, for example, owns newspa-
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pers or broadcast stations, the interests of the
bank in urban renewal, community planning,
government housing development, local taxa-
tion, and a host of other issues may very well
substantially affect what the people of the
community will know about those issues. The
distortion of content may be direct. Manage-
ment knows what the interests of the corpo-
rate parent are and insures that these inter-
ests are protected. But the distortion may be
more subtle: No one is ever chosen as station
manager or managing editor who would be
“untrustworthy” when it came to the parent’s
interests, and reporters soon learn that con-
tinued employment and promotions come only
to those who are willing to compromise their
journalistic standards a little.

The FCC recently has been confronted in
two cases with allegations that broadcast sta-
tions have been operated in a way to benefit
oiher business interests of the licensee. Both
cases were designated for hearing in an effort
to ascertain the facts. (See Midwest Radio-
Television, Inc. (WCCO) 16 F. C. C.2d 943
(1969); Chronicle Broadcasting Co. (KRON) 16
F. C. C.2d 882 (1969).)

If such anti-competitive practices, and
unfair use of the news media, exist more
often in a concentrated market than other-
wise—as the evidence suggests—then W€
cannot afford to wait and try to catch that
fraction of the abuses that come to light:
Abuse is very hard to show. And there is no
institution in our society that regularly exam-
ines the functioning of the mass media t0
determine whether these abuses occur. W€
must take action against the industry struc-
ture which is a stimulant to anti-competitive
abuses by the mass media. The fundamenta
antitrust tenet of “incipiency” provides that
monopolies must be stopped short of the pOint
where the monopolist is in a position to exer-
cise his power in anti-competitive or anti-
social ways.

A sixth reason is what I will call “econom”
ic.” Concentrated ownership of the media ca?
produce an economic domination of a marke
with all the results of monopoly: higher costs
decreased efficiency, and so forth, For the
same economic reasons we oppose concentra:
tion of ownership in any industry, we shou
oppose media concentration. (See Unite
States v. Gannett Co., 1968 CCH Trade Casé’
§ 72,644 (N. D. 111. 1968); Frontier Broad-
casting Co., G Ci2a —/6
(1970); KSL, Inc., FCC 68-1005 (1968); 1
F. C. C.2d 340 (1969).) The stifling of inn"&
vation that is inherent in all concentrat€
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industries is an even bigger loss to society in
the media industries than in other industries.

A seventh reason to oppose concentration
of control in the mass media is that the exis-
tence of competition in an industry permits
less, not more, governmental supervision over
the day-to-day operations of that industry. A
competitive system, to some extent, is one
that polices itself, avoiding expensive—and
botentially dangerous—continual governmen-
tal surveillance.

%II. Solutions to Media Concentration Prob-
ems,

Reaction to the growing concentration of
the media in the United States is great—but
little has been done to improve the situation.
The Federal Communications Commission
and the United States Congress have usually
approached the problem in a piecemeal fash-
lon, fragmenting the recommended solutions
to deal with only one problem at a time—and,
as often as not, in ways urged by the industry
hat make matters worse rather than better.

_The FCC rules contain a general prohibi-
tion against concentration. They prohibit the
8ranting of a broadcast license if “the grant
°_f such license would result in a concentra-
on of conirol of broadcasting in a
Manner inconsistent with public interest, con-
Venience, or necessity.” (47 C. F. R. § 73.35
T ), § 73.240 (FM), § 73.636 (TV) (1969).)
heoretically these rules should work to
€duce the concentration of the media,
t}?Cause the renewal of a license after a
« ree-year period is considered to be a
bgl'ant”. But in practice the Commission has
€en reluctant fo give any meaning to these
€s beyond some specific prohibitions. For
O’t‘ample, the graniing of a license in any one
the three broadcast services to any person
0 already has another license for the same
SQerce in the same market is prohibited. This
soicillled “duopoly” rule has been the FCC’s
€ means of preventing the increase of local
nc?ntration. These FCC rules also contain a
; Ohibition against any person having an
st;‘t{rest in more than 7 AM, 7 FM, or 7 TV
ry ons, and this “national concentration”
€ has generally been followed.

| Both Congress and the FCC have tentative-
ereCOgnized that these rules do not provide
ada?I.y enough protection to the public, and so
tig ltiona] rules to deal with media concentra-
rn have been proposed. In a rulemaking
Oceeding begun in March 1968, and still

Den s
®ding, the FCC proposed an extension of its
21482._25
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“duopoly” rules to further limit local concen-
tration. (Notice of Proposed Rulemaking,
Standard, FM and Television Broadcast Sta-'
tions—Multiple Ownership, 33 Fed. Reg. 5315
(1968).) Known as the “one-to-a-market”
rules, the provisions would bar grants of new
licenses which would produce common con-
trol within the same market of two full-time
broadcast stations. The Department of Justice
has urged the Commission to extend these
local concentration rules to include newspa-
per ownership, and to provide for divestiture.
But such action would require a further rule-
making proceeding, and so its implementation
is, at best, several years off.

In December 1968, the FCC proposed simi-
lar one-to-a-market rules to include cable'
television within the prohibition against over-
lapping ownership in a single market. (Notice
of Proposed Rulemaking and Notice of Inqui-
ry, 15 F. C. C.2d 417 (1968).) But no action
has been taken on this proceeding yet, and its
future remains in doubt. The only major
action that the FCC has taken against local
concentration in recent times is the adoption
of rules prohibiling telephone companies from
owning cable television systems within their
markets. (——F. C. C.2d——(1970).)

Although action against local concentration
through rulemaking has been limited, there
have been a number of recent adjudicative '
decisions which involve local concentration as
an issue. Most of these cases have been ini-
tiated by the Department of Justice, rather
than the FCC. But in WHDH, Inc., 16 F. C.
C.2d 1 (1969), the FCC took away the licence
of a television staiion owner who was also the
owner of a local daily newspaper.

Outside of the rather liberal limit on the
number of stations that may be owned in each
broadcast service (the “7-7-7” rule), the FCC |
has scarcely been concerned with problems of
national or regional media concentration. In
1964 the Commission had proposed rules
limiting to two the number of VHF television
stations that any one owner could have in the
largest 50 markets. But this rule was com-
pletely ignored by the FCC, and a waiver was '
given to any party asking for it. In 1968 the
rule was discarded by a divided Commission. :
(Television Multiple Ownership Rules, 12
Pike & Fischer Radio Reg. 1501 (1968).)

In the mid-1960’s, the Senate Subcommittee
on Antitrust and Monopoly considered the
Failing Newspaper Act. This bill, reintro-
duced this year as the Newspaper Preserva-
tion Act, provided an antitrust exemption to
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joint operating agreements between compet-
ing newspapers. Senator Philip A. Hart, the
Chairman of the Subcommittee, used the
opportunity to conduct extensive hearings
into the structure and conduct of the newspa-
per industry. The eight volumes produced by
these hearings are among the most important
documents ever produced on the subject of
media concentration. But despite the fine
efforts of this subcommittee, and its strong
recommendation against this “monopoliza-
tion” bill, the Senate recently overwhelmingly
approved it.

A recent bill introduced by Senator Thomas
Melntyre (S. 3305) is the first significant legis-
lative response to media conceniration. The
bill would prohibit newspaper-television
common ownership in the same market, and
would limit the number of daily newspapers
owned by one company to five. However,
despite the Nixon administration’s declared
dissatisfaction with media concentration, the
President’s Director of Communications, Herb
Klein, indicates that he opposes this bill. Most
observers have few hopes for its passage.

To gain a greater understanding of the
potential and actual problems involved in the
conglomerate ownership of the media, the
FCC initiated an inquiry into the ownership
of broadcast stations by persons with other
business interests. (34 Fed. Reg. 2151 (1969).)
But this inquiry was begun over a year ago,
and so far there have been few results.

The FCC currently has before it two impor-
tant rulemaking proposals—each of which
might alleviate the current network monopoly
over programming. The “50-50” rule would
prohibit networks from owning more than 50
per cent of all prime time programming and
would bar networks from the syndication
business entirely. (30 Fed. Reg. 4065 (1965).)
This rule would permit corporations and
advertising agencies to contract for and pro-
duce their own programming and submit the
finished product to the networks. Westing-
house Broadcasling Co. has submitted a coun-
ter-proposal. Under its version, no station in
the top 50 television markets could carry
more than three hours of network program-
ming during prime time. The remaining hour
or half hour would have to be filled from
other sources. The purpose would be to open
up a new market for independent program
producers—possibly injecting fresh streams
of crealivity into the daily flood of mass-
appeal programming. These rules have been
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before the FCC for years, and final action has
yet to come.

Conclusion

The rhetoric for change exists in the United
States, but thus far we have seen little con-
crete action toward breaking up the media
monopolies which rule the country. I am not
optimistic that change is near in the United
States. The media owners have a life-and-
death grip on the political life of the country,
and they seem prepared to sacrifice journalis-
tic integrity in the cause of increasing profits.
The mere existence of this Special Committee
indicates that maybe the future for Canada is
not as bleak as that I see for the United
States. But unless the concern generated over
the problem continues, I am afraid that
changes are impossible. By “concern” I do not
mean political concern such as that shown by
our Vice President. I mean forceful, well-
planned, constructive concern, such as that
which produced the initiation of this inquiry-
Without such concern Canada and the United
States are both doomed to increased domina-
tion and control by larger and larger media
barons.
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Subcommitte on Anti-trust and Monopoly
of the Senate Committee on the Judiciary,
Hearings on the Failing Newspaper Act
(1967-1968, 8 vols.).

The Chairman: Honourable Senators and

Commissioner, it seems to me that what you
have dealt with in your paper today is essen-
tially the second chapter of your book. The
second chapter of the book is entitled “The
Media Barons and the Public Interest” and I
would like to ask you some questions about
that chapter and as would some of the sena-
tors, but I am wondering just for a change of
pace, if I should ask you a few questions
about the first chapter, and may I say to the
‘Senators that what I am about to begin is by
no means a dialogue with the Commissioner.
If any of you want to ask questions at any
point by all means please do.
... The first chapter of this book is called “The
Crush of Television” and it deals with some
of the things which has concerned this Com-
mittee and what I would like to do Mr. John-
son is quote two or three statements from the
book and then ask you to explain what you
mean.

Commissioner Johnson: I would be happy
to, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: I really don’t have to ask
you what you mean, it is apparent, but I just
think the Senators would be interested in the
beginning of the book which outlines what
you mean by “The Crush of Television.” You
say:

“There are 60 million homes in the
United States and over 95 per cent of
them are equipped with a television set.
(More than 25 per cent of the homes in
the United States have two or more sets.)
In the average home, the television is
turned on some five hours forty-five
minutes a day. The average male viewer,
between his second and sixty-fifth year,
will watch television for over 3,000 entire
days—roughly nine full years of his life.”

~ Senator Prowse: Between what ages?

u The Chairman: Between his second and
sixty-fifth year. I don’t know where that
leaves you, Senator Prowse!

' Senator Prowse: There is still hope.

. The Chairman: And it goes on to say:

“Dur.ing the average weekday winter
.. evening, nearly half of the American
people are to be found silently seated
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with fixed gaze upon a phosphorescent
screen.

Americans receive decidedly more of
their education from television than from
elementary and high schools. By the time
the average child enters kindergarten he
has already spent more hours learning
about his world from television than the
hours he would spend in a college class-
room earning a B.A. degree.”

Now, I might say for your information
there is nothing there which is startlingly
different from the statistics here in Canada
that some of the Ccmmittee members are
familiar with. You go on then and you list
four influences of television which I needn’t
repeat, and then you say that the “industry
spokesmen are likely to respond with variants
of three myths.” We have heard a great deal
about some cf these things and the committee
has to decide whether they are faet and it is
your judgment, obviously, that they are.

It goes on to say—this is the industry
saying this:

“We just give the people what they want.
‘The public interest is what interests the
public’.”

I would be most interested, Commissioner
Johnson, if ycu could comment on that.
won’t read what you have said in hereé
but. ..

Senator Prowse; Well, how about letting U8
in on it.
The Chairman: Well, I will quote. The com-
missioner says: ’
“To say that current programming *
what the audience ‘wants’ in any mean-
ingful sense is either pure doubletalk OF
unbelievable naiveté. There are many
analytical problems with the shibboletP
that television ‘gives the people what
they want’ One of the most obvious %
that the market is so structured that onl¥y
a few can work at ‘giving the peopl®
what they want’—and oligopoly is '3
notoriously pcor substitute for compet!”
tion when it comes to providing anythmg
but what the vast majority will ‘acceP
without widespread revolution.”

Isn’t television a particularly well-analyzed’
statistically-analyzed industry and aren’t 'fhe
networks and the private stations respond}n
tp what the public want? I am just wonderi®
how you would answer that.
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Commissioner Johnson: Well, that certainly
is their contention. I think it is a demonstra-
bly fallacious contention. Mason Williams has
said, “The choice ycu will never know is a
choice you will never make”. This is a prob-
lem I think that most people confront. It is
possible to overstate the influence of televi-
sion in our society but it is very seldom dcne
and it’s far more often that we fail to see it
fully. This gets back in part to the first pas-
sage that you read from the book about the
crush of television.

The general semanticist and now president
of San Francisco State College, Dr. S. L
Hayakawa, has said that man is no more
Conscious of language and communication
than a fish would be conscious of the waters
of the sea. I think that is true with the really
revolutionary technological inncvations that
We accept in our society: the telephone, the
automobile, the television set. They have had
an impact upon us as a people well beyond
What any of us tend to be reflective about.

ou breathe polluted air and you don’t really
think about it until somebody points out to
You what it is doing to your body; you pour
Polluted ideas into your head and into the

Tains of most of the people in the United

States for that number of hours everyday and
You have had an influence on the national
Spirit and the national intelligence, the infor-
Mation pecple have, the opinions they hold,

€ moral values they believe in. You have
determined the sense of national priorities.

hether the United States is going to use its
*esources to go to Mars or to feed the hungry
‘re on earth, is largely going tc be a func-
10n of how the alternatives are posed to the
Nation on television. Every time we set up a
ne“{ national commission to study the latest
National disaster—it used to be called juve-
3_116 delinquency but ncw we have an anti-
alolence commission and one on race relations

Ad so forth—they all come back to television

ad the influence of television on any given
ghenomenon in our society. I think we tend to
Verlook that. You know, television is just

at box in the living room. Many of us don’t

atch it as much as many others do, and I
o k we probably tend to under-rate drasti-
cally the tremendous, awesome impact of this
UStrument upon us.

abNOW, then, when you come to your question

Out the choice of the people, I think that we
= being grossly unfair when we wash over
He bPeople, 20 years of the kind of stuff that
%llywood manufactures like plastic Christ-
S trees on an assembly line and puts out in
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television commercial products, and then
expect the people to engage in intelligent

choice with regard to this aspect of their
culture, or any other.

Beyond that, however, I would point out
that on those rare occasions when the net-
works do offer the pecple some alien and
unfamiliar programming in prime time, it
tends to do rather well in terms of the rat-
ings. NBC didn’t undergo commercial disaster
as a result of the programming it put on last
Sunday evening—*“The Wizard of 0Oz” and
then “David Copperfield” and then another
drama. The National Gecgraphic specials
have done quite well after the National Geo-
graphic succeeded in beating down the resis-
tance within the network to putting the pro-
grams on at all.

Finally, there is the point embodied in the
paragraph you read which is that oligopoly
tends not to produce competition. This is true
in the automobile industry and it’s true in the
television business. The people really haven’t
been offered a choice. We have necessarily
circumscribed the number of stations in a
given community—they just don’t have com-
petition in television in the sense that you do
in magazines where I think you can demon-
strate that there is a far wider degree of
choice.

In the United States, if you examine the
subjects covered and the way in which they
are covered in books, in magazines, phono-
graph records, the theatre, or virtually any
other art form you will discover tremendous
diversity and range of interest and modes of
presentation, and ideas discussed, that simply
do not appear on television.

Now when you give the people their choice
in these other modes they often choose things
other than the lowest manufactured plastic
common denominator and I have no reason to
believe that the same could not be true with
television.

The Chairman: Is the largest-selling news-
paper in New York—the New York Times?

Commissioner Johnson: It is a subsidiary of
the Chicago Tribune Syndicate which controls
the major newspaper in New York, which is
the newspaper of largest circulation in the
country—the New York Daily News. It also
owns a major television station there as well
as the Chicago Tribune and a major televi-
sion station in Chicago.

What point are you suggesting?
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The Chairman: I am suggesting that that
paper outsells the New York Times about
three to one every day.

Commissioner Johnson: Well, here are a
great many intellectuals who think it's a
much better paper than the New York Times.
However, the fact remains that there is a
New York Times. There is not, I would sug-
gest, “a New York Times of television”. There
is one in the newspaper business. It can exist.
And in the magazine business we can have a
Saturday Review or a New Republic, New
Yorker, Harper’s or Atlantic. Where are their
equivalents in television?

The Chairman: Mr. Fortier?

Mr. Fortier: How would the “New York
Times of television” survive, though?

Commissioner Johnson: I presume the same
way that the New York Times of newsprint
survives, by advertising created by those
merchandisers who want to reach the audi-
ence that can be reached through the medium
involved, and through a subscription service
of some kind. One of the most obvious fail-
ings of the commercial television industry, in
terms of serving the people, is that the people
have absolutely no control whatsoever, no
participation whatsoever, in what it is they
get. In a way, they still retain some role with
regards to newspapers and magazines.

Now, it is true that magazines such as Life
spend far more than they receive in subscrip-
tions, in gathering subscriptions, so in point
of fact the magazine is totally supported by
advertising; but the subscriber nonetheless is
paying something. In broadcasting he is
paying nothing—and he is getting his money’s
worth.

One of the arguments for subscription
television is that this would give the consum-
er the means of participating in the market
choice that consumers have traditionally

exercised, and that is putting his money
where his desire may be.

Mr. Fortier: But ideally should not adver-
tising be kept away all together from the
“New York Times of television”?

Commissioner Johnson: It’s not kept away
from the New York Times of newsprint.

Mr. Fortier: Is the issue the same really?
We have heard it said before this committee
that advertisers, as indeed you indicate in
your brief as well as in your talk last Decem-
ber in San Francisco—that advertisers buy
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the audience. In other words, they will buy
the program with the largest rating. So if
there is no audience, no meaningful audience,
how will those advertisers agree to spend
money on subsidizing a program which may
appeal to people like you and the Senators?

Commissioner Johnson: I think the answer
in broadcast media can be the same as the
answer to the print media. There are adver-
tisers who want to reach specialized audi-
ences. There are advertisers who want to
advertise on classical music FM radio stations
because the people they are trying to reach
with their product are listening to those
stations.

Mr. Fortier: It is very limited quantitative-
ly and qualitatively I would suggest.

Commissioner Johnson: I think not.
Senator Prowse: How limited is it?

Commissioner Johnson: We have in the
United States, a large number of corporations,
trade associations and various institutions
that would very much like to be identified
with something other than the trash that 15
now offered to them by the three commercial
networks. They include corporations liké
Xerox, Hallmark, U.S. Steel, Firestone, Union
Carbide, and many other companies. They aré
seeking a positive institutionalized imag€
because it sells some products, because 1_t
helps them in recruiting personnel, because !
helps them with morale in their organiza-
tions, because it helps them with their gov~”
ernmental relations in Washington—for 2
variety of corporate purposes known best to
them.

These corporations have a great deal of
difficulty getting their programming onto the
commercial networks, notwithstanding the
fact they are fully prepared to pay the f}lll
commercial rate for that time. Xerox, Wi
some of its very best programs, has had to &°
into the market itself, contact individual st&
tions, line up enough stations to, in effect
make a one-shot Xerox network, and put o°
its program, because it can’t get the networ
to accept it. The National Geographic has th¢
same difficulty with its programming.

The Chairman: Why wouldn’t the networ®
accept them?

Commissioner Johnson: The reason the net”
works won’t accept them is because th€
believe they could do better in terms of the
average rating for the evening, as a result ©
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the phenomenon known as flow-through of
audience, by trying to maximize the total
audience out there for each hour without
regard to how much income they derive from
the advertiser.

Mr. Fortiers Would you agree then that
the viewers of a point buy advertising as
much as, if not more, than they buy program
content?

Commissioner Johnson:
vertisers buy...

I would say ad-

Mr, Fortier: During prime time?

Commissioner Johnson: I would say adver-
tisers buy viewers more than they buy
programs.

Mr. Fortier: We had a view expressed last
Week here that people will turn to a particu-
lar television program, for a particular radio
Program because of the advertising.

Commissioner Johnson: Yes, we heard
about that. One of the reasons I came up, in
addition to being invited, was that we are
Very interested in advertising, commercials,
and so forth, in the States. We just held a
hearing at the FCC, with the three networks
Present, about their increasing the number of
Commercials that they were running. And we
heard tell that here in Canada, you have a
Unique form of commercial unknown to com-
Mercial television anywhere else in the world
Which actually attracts viewers, and I thought

at I really owed it to the citizens of
America to come and check this out here and
See if we couldn’t adopt some of these mar-
Vellous advertising techniques of Canadian

Toadcasters.

The Chairman: Well, the private broad-
Casters were here on Friday and here is the
€adline in the Globe and Mail—“TV com-
Mercials add Canadian content”—I don’t want
Ou to discuss that as we are going to ask you
about Canadian content; but it also says “TV
:°T§1mercials attract viewers, broadcasters

alm.” Is that true in the United States as
Well as Canada?

Commissioner Johnson: Well, we have

Yever noticed that phenomenon in the United
s’»'a'ces.

Senator Prowse: Is that when the water
*essure goes down?

thCOmmissioner Johnson: Yes, Senator, and
Q;’ Observation has been made that McLuhan
Ide, there are some very practical conse-
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quences of television in our society. It has,
according to sociologists, altered eating
schedules in about 65 per cent of the homes
and sleeping schedules in about the same per-
centage. There have been some rather
exhaustive analyses of what it has done to
the birth rate that I won’t spread upon the
record, but it has also had the impact appar-
ently that you refer to, which is that water
systems engineers have had to re-design city
water systems to take the tremendous drop in
water pressure that occurs at the commercial
breaks. One would think that tends to refute
the assertion here—probably because of the
higher quality of commercials here.

Mr. Fortier: That could drive advertisers
away!

The Chairman: Well, may I quote you at
page 31 in the book on this question of
advertisers?

Commissioner Johnson: Oh, of course.

The Chairman: You say: "

“We learn that the great measure of hap-
piness and personal satisfaction is con-
sumption—conspicuous when possible.
‘Success’ is signified by the purchase of a
product—a mouthwash or deodorant.
How do you resolve conflicts? By force or
by violence. Who are television’s leaders,
its heroes, its stars? They are physically
attractive, the glib and the wealthy, and
almost no one else. What do you do when
life fails to throw roses in your hedonistic
path? You get ‘fast, fast, fast’ relief from
a pill—headache remedy, a stomach set-
tler, a tranquilizer or ‘the pill’. You
smoke a cigarette, have a drink or get
high on pot or more potent drugs. You
get a divorce or run away from home.
And if ‘by the time you get to Phoenix’
you’re still troubled, you just ‘chew your
little troubles away’.”

Do you think that television reflects a false
image of America?

Commissioner Johnson: Oh, there is no
question about that, but it does much worse
than reflect a false image of America. It
builds an image as well. We tend to reflect
what we see on that mirror that is our televi-
sion screen. The passage that you just quoted
was an effort to describe some of the impact
of the commercial content in ways that go far
beyond the mere selling of goods. Much of
what advertisers are trying to sell us are
goods that positively contribute to death of
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human beings, or disease, or other degrada-
tions. Other products are simply products that
we don’t need, won’t work, are over-priced,
or otherwise unsatisfactory. A small propor-
tion of the products are harmless.

The Chairman: Are you against advertis-
ing?

Commissioner Johnson: Some of them are
actually good for you. No, the business of
America is business after all, and the way
you promote business is through advertising.
It has been a marvellous stimulant to the
growth of the gross mational product.

The Chairman: You are against television
advertising?

Commissioner Johnson: No.

The Chairman: You are against the quality
of television advertising?

Commissioner Johnson: I will tell you
really what bothers me about it. I think that
advertising does perform a useful function
when kept in balance and used for the distri-
bution of products that contribute to the
society. What disturbs me is when you take
an entire nation’s affairs and make all deci-
sions based upon commercial considerations.
That it seems to me, is a mistake.

As Mason Williams has said, “Cigarette
smoking is not a pleasure, it is a business.” I
was deeply concerned by the position of the
American broadcasters when the FCC said
that under the fairness doctrine, they had an
obligation to bring to the attention of their
audience the health hazards of cigarette
smoking. They went all the way to the
Supreme Court of the United States with the
rather preposterous argument—at least it was
found to be so by the Supreme Court—that
the First Amendment somehow guaranteed
fchem the right to keep this health hazard
information from the American people. It is
the failure to temper commercial standards
with anything else; it is the failure to provide
the balance.

I think most civilized countries in the world
have tried to accommodate commercial televi-
sion but also to balance it with a strong

public television system. We fail to do that in
the United States.

The Chairman: Well, let me ask you this
then. Who wants the Beverly Hillbillies? Is it
the advertisers, is it the networks or is it the
viewers?
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Senator Prowse: The CBC.
Commissioner Johnson: Yes, the CBC.

The Chairman: Well, in the first instance—
who wants the Beverly Hillbillies; the view-
ers, the advertisers or the networks?

Commissioner Johnson: Well, I think the
advertisers principally and the networks. As
one writer or producer in Hollywood told me,
he said, “I am basically a shill for snake oil. I
am supposed to keep the audience here for
the commercial.” The advertisers and the net-
works are looking for a formula that will
result in the fewest number of people turning
off their television sets. So that is really what
it comes down to.

The Chairman: They want the Beverly

Hillbillies?

Commissioner Johnson: That’s right. And
they will package the commercials in the con-
text in which they will be shown in their best
light. Just as raisins show up much better in
breakfast cereals than they do in fruitcake, sO
commercials look much better in the Beverly
Hillbillies than they do elsewhere.

The Chairman: The thing that troubles me
in all of this, and I don’t think we are really
coming to grips with it. You said a moment
or two ago that this chap said that he was “a
shill for snake oil”—that his purpose was to
hold the audience until the commercials camé
on.

Well, doesn’t that mean really then that
they are giving the people what they want?

Commissioner Johnson: I don’t think so al
all. I think we have, in the United States at
least, a very broad and deep dissatisfaction
with television. Judging by my mail at least,
this is something that spreads across the land
in every geographical section, every agé
group from grade school kids to folks in old
folks’ homes, from the poverty-ridden to the
chairman of corporate boards of directors
and all shades of the political spectrum.

The Chairman: Why don’t they turn their
sets off? You say 3,000 entire days betweel
the ages of two and sixty-five.

Commissioner Johnson: If you are living i
an old folks’ home, you have very little optio®
but to keep your television set on. If you aré
a two-year-old child with very little else t©
entertain you around the home, you haV
very little option but to turm your televisio?
set on.
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Senator Prowse: Or if you are a married
man and broke between pay-days.

Commissioner Johnson: And as the Senator
says, if you are a married man and broke
between pay-days. The people watch the pro-
gramming which they find the least offensive
of that which is offered to them. There is all
the difference in the world between that and
watching something which is truly meaning-
ful and relevant in their lives.

Television programming, I think, is very
much like cotton candy. It is something that
is very good in attracting your attention but
then after you have consumed it, you are left
with this hollow, empty feeling and nothing
but a toothache and very little in the way of
nourishment.

Newsweek magazine recently did a piece on
the Middle American and quoted one fellow
Who had gone to the same factory every day
for the last 30 years, I guess, and he described
his role as that of one of standing in the same
Place, drilling the same holes for every day of
these many, many years.

He gets up in the morning and he hasn’t
slept very well. He gets into a car after eating
a breakfast that is designed to shorten his
life—not aid his nutrition—and probably
Upset his stomach. He gets into a car and it
has deliberately designed into it, dangers that
Will needlessly take 50,000 lives every year in
the United States, with a bumper that cannot
Withstand a crash of over six miles an hour
Without contributing to the billion-dollar-a-
Year theft of the American people necessitat-
&d by bumper repairs. He drives at speeds
Searcely in excess of those used in horse-and-
Puggy days through congested traffic, breath-
g polluted air, to arrive at this factory
Where he is certainly not treated as a human
“€Ing—where he stands in the same place
d%‘llling the same holes. He drives home at
Right reversing the process, and sits down to
wat_ch television. It promises him a fuller and
A richer life and happiness and satisfactions
Of all kinds if only he will use a different hair
Sbray or cologne or deodorant or a mouth-
Wash, or take the new and different pill or
“lgarette brand or whatever it might be this
Month,

He gets no more satisfaction from the new
Products than he gets from the old programs,
And he goes to bed at night waterlogged, half

€ad in the water, and doesn’t sleep very
Wen, and starts the same process the next
day._ And you tell me that the American
soclety in general and the American televi-
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sion in particular is giving him what he
wants.

Well, he may not be able to articulate what
is wrong with his life but he knows there is a
lot wrong with it, and depending upon his
background and predilection he expresses
that frustration in a variety of ways, which
we have seen in our country.

The thing that I find so disturbing aboul
television is the awesome, woeful, disgusting,
criminal contrast between the fantastic poten-
tial that this industry has and the depressing
use that is being made of it. To me that is the
greatest sin. Television can contribute to the
richness of people’s lives; it can give them
information they need; it can inspire them; it
can instruct them; it can open up new visions
for them. It fails to do so.

President Kennedy used to say that with
great power goes great responsibility, and
there is no one in our society who has greater
power and therefore greater responsibility, no
one who is falling more short of meeting that
responsibility, than American commercial
television networks, in my judgment. That is
the great tragedy, and it washes like blackish
water over the American people hour after
hour, day after day, year after year, and pro-
duces the problems that we have in such
abundance, or certainly contributes to it.

Mr. Fortier: But your average fellow citizen
cannot articulate what he wants but you can.
Are you going to impose it on him now
although he has been unable to communicate
it to you?

Commissioner Johnson:
him?

Impose what on

Mr. Fortier: A type of programming which
will be commensurate with what he craves
but which he has not been able to tell you
that he wants.

Commissioner Johnson: I think the way to
do that is simply to make more choice availa-
ble, to make a greater richness in diversity
available. One assumes, when we talk about
the failures of television, that we are talking
about the difference between the masses and
the intellectual elite. That is not really the
point at all. There is no such thing as a
majority audience in the United States. That
is really what is wrong with television.

It is programming for an audience which
simply doesn’t exist. We have 20 million
people in the United States who are under
five years of age. What is television doing
especially for them, commercial network
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regulatory agencies have evolved, they very
quickly come to be the hand-maidens and
spokesmen for the very industries that they
are supposed to be regulating.

There was an amazing story told about the
creation of the ICC—The Interstate Com-
merce Commission, which is responsible for
regulating railroads. It is sometimes referred
to as the granddaddy of the regulatory com-
missions (a term referring more to its age
than to the affection in which it is held by its
grandchildren). A railroad company president
is alleged to have written the Attorney-Gen-
eral asking what on earth the administration
was thinking of in establishing this agency,
and he received a reply back as follows:

“The Commission...can be made of great
use to the railroads. It satisfies the popu-
lar clamour for a government supervision
of the railroads, at the same time that the
supervision is almost entirely nominal.
Further, the larger such a commission
gets to be the more it will be found to
take the business and railroad view of
things. It thus becomes a sort of barrier
between the railroad corporations and the
people and a sort of protection against
crude legislation hostile to railroad inter-
ests. . .the part of wisdom is not to destroy
the Commission, but to utilize it.” (Letter
of Attorney General of the United States
Richard Olney to Charles E. Perkins, Pre-
sident of the Chicago-Burlington and
Quincy Railroad, December 28, 1892,
quoted in Josephson’s, “The Politicos”,
page 526.)

Thus reassured, the president of the railway
company is supposed to have given his sup-
port to the creation of this agency.

The Federal Communications Commission
was likewise established in the 1920’s as the
Radio Commission. It was the result of a
series of conferences called at the urging of
the radio industry. They were presided over
by that great spokesman for the New Left of
the twenties, Herbert Hoover, who was then
the Secretary of Commerce.

The FCC has been basically true to the
pattern. What happens, of course, is that the
agency, in its desire to bend over backwards
and be of help to the industry, often gets
itself into such a weakened position that it is
likely to do more harm than good.

I could document that with a number of

instances, but I won’t take up your time with
them now.
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The Chairman: Well, then, as far as CATV
is concerned, in the United States at least,
pecple are on your side looking in—that is
what you are saying?

Commissioner Johnson: Well, what has
happened is that the FCC is held back the
development of cable television until the
broadcasters could buy up all the systems.
They now have control of a sufficient number
of systems and the FCC is now prepared to
open up and let the industry grow a bit.
Whether that was by design at the time or
not I wouldn’t allege, but that’s been the net
effect.

The Chairman: Mr. Fortier?

Mr. Fortier: We have an agency in Canada
called. ..

The Chairman: Do you have a supplemen-
tary, Senator Prowse?

Senator Prowse: Yes, Mr. Chairman. We
are down talking about cable television so
let’s deal with that one.

The Chairman: All right. We will get back
to you, Mr. Fortier.

Mr. Fortier: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Prowse: I understand from infor-
mation we have had from our research and
from one or two things that I have read here,
that this cable television development is not
something way off in the future, but we could
have it right today, couldn’t we?

Commissioner Johnson: Not only could, but
do.

Senator Prowse: But in the United States
you have 3.6 million viewers—we have 4505~
000 which is about 30 per cent more per
capita than you have.

The Chairman: You are talking cabl€
viewers?

Senatior Prowse: Yes; cable viewers.

The Chairman: Well, I just wanted to make
sure that we understood that.

Senator Prowse: Why don’t we set this
thing up in the grid and get rid of thes€
antennas and all of this nonsense and th€
interference? What is holding it up? Can yO!
tell us what is holding it up in the Unit
States? I know you can’t tell us what is hold~
ing it up here, we are I think aware of thab
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but we would like to know what your prob-
lem is.

Commissioner Johnson: Let me first of all
address your premise then your question.
Your premise is that if we had cable televi-
sion we could close down the over-the-air
stations?

Senator Prowse: Well, that really wasn’t. ..

Commissioner Johnson: I am not sure if
that is so. At the very least there would be a
Very long transition period while the wiring-
up was done. Beycnd that, however, the con-
Cern has been expressed that those living in
Sparsely-populated areas have very litlle
alternative means of receiving any television
Service at all due to the economics of wiring
for cable. This is a problem that the United
_states also was confronted with, telephone
Installation in rural areas, and we ultimately

ad to fund through subsidies from the feder-
al government.

. The initial problem is that at the present
Ime at least, most of the programming is
eing originated by and for over-the-air

Toadcasters. Little or no programming, or
Meaningful programming, is being pro-
Erammed by the cable companies. So that, at
€ present time, if you were to close down
1€ over-the-air stations, you would have very
little that you could put out over the cable
YWstem. This matter has come up in the

Nited States with regard to the demand for
Sreater frequencies for land mobile radio
» € frequencies used in taxi-cabs and police
s and operations of that kind.

WThe point has been made that unless you
br°ll1d virtually close down over-the-air
iOadcasts we have very little left in frequen-
thes' I am not sure that your premise required
it at much analysis but I felt I should address

Senator Prowse: Well, I appreciate that.

aslE"Inmissioner Johnson: Beyond that, you

teleeq why cable is being held up. The cable

the ‘I’;Sl_on issue was orlgm_ally conceived in

cas nited States as a conflict between brp:'ad-

on.. S on the one hand and cable television
rators on the other.

t was viewed by the telephone companies
thea Potential competitor. It was viewed by
an broadcasters as a potential competitor,
Dote tl‘{‘él‘e was no one really to speak of the
tele Ntial benefit to the country from cable
& sion—not alone as a source of the dis-

Uting by cable a television product but
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also as a way of providing access to comput-
ers, closed-circuit television, facsimile trans-
mission cf newspapers and other materials to
the home and so forth.

Because cable television issues were seen
by others in terms of a conflict between
broadcasters and cable men, the FCC per-
ceived it in this fashion, and intended its
regulations as protection to the broadcaster,
rather than really getting on with the job of
analyzing the problems in cable as well as the
potentialities to the consumer.

Senator Prowse: Well, why would you pro-
tect the broadcasters? You don’t protect the
coal miner and you don’t protect the busi-
nessman that is going out of business on the
corner, so why would you protect the broad-
caster, because he has had a pretty good thing
for quite a long while anyhow?

Commissioner Johnson: Because the broad-
casters have considerable power.

Senator Prowse: In other words, it’s the
practical implications between the power
structure and the political structure and the
reliance on each other that has resulted in a
reliance on the part of governmental institu-
tions to use the same ruthlessness of the
market-place that they would use on an
antiquated indusirial production system in
any other part of the economy?

Commissioner Johnson: That is my judg-
ment, yes.

I might refer back again to what I said
earlier, however, about the belief that there
are benefits to an over-the-air system for
those living in remote areas.

Senator Prowse: All right. Let’s take the
over-the-air system and the cable television
system and let’s put the two of them together.

Would you agree with me that in one week
in the best listening area in the United States,
where you had access to three systems plus
UHF, that if you got one good program a
week you would be lucky? You can leave out
newscasts for a moment.

Commissioner Johnson: Well, that may be a
little harsh but I wouldn’t differ with you
greatly as to your conclusion. Charles Sopkin
who wrote the book “Seven Glorious Days,
Seven Fun-Filled Nights” after watching the
ten channels in New York City through a
bleary-eyed week, concluded that when he
began, he expected the ratio of trash to
worthwhile programs to run something like
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three to one and when he had concluded he
discovered it was more like 100 to one.

Senator Prowse: Yes.

Commissioner Johnson: So his empirical
study supports your judgment.

Senator Prowse: My judgment is based on
two weeks in New York and three weeks in
Dayton, Ohio. I was able to look at TV when-
ever I wanted to and see it and judge it; and I
can’t remember a single program that I saw
in either place—except in New York City
where they had the civic election programs on
and there were one or two of those which
were a little astounding to me as a visiting
politician. . .

Commissioner Johnson: Well, this is really
what I meant when I referred to compelling
programming.

Senator Prowse: Yes.

Commissioner Johnson: There are pro-
grams, a great number of programs, that are
actually so offensive or so boring that you
would far prefer to have the set turned off
rather than to watch them at all. There are
other programs which are really not very
interesting, but if you had absolutely nothing
whatsoever to do except to watch television
you would prefer to have the set on rather
than have it off. There are other programs
that you actually rather enjoy and there are
some that are really compelling. I think there
are some which can be very compelling and I
think they relate to something you are inter-
ested in, or they are showing you something
and they are of value and contributing to
your own personal life in some way. It’s just
that there are very, very, very few in the last
category.

Senator Prowse: Well, leading on from that,
[ would like to get to the calibre of programs.
The cost of programming—we have been
told—is in the neighbourhood of $1,000 a
minute.

Commissioner Johnson: Unless it happens
to be a commercial minute, in which case the
cost would be more likely sixty to seventy-
five thousand dollars.

Senator Prowse: Well, let us leave those out
for the moment here.

Commissioner Johnson: When you look at
the allocation of programming production
costs among all the minutes during the half-
hour, it’s very clear where the industry’s
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interest lies. It lies in producing those minutes
that relate to products rather than those
minutes that relate to programming.

'

Senator Prowse: Suppose we do as you sug-
gest or as I understand some things you have
said here. I think you and the Commission are
agreed that you think it would be desirable—
you wouldn’t have networks; that everything
would be individually owned, that every com-
munication outlet would be individually
owned and not associated with another.

Is this commercially possible?

Commissioner Johnson: Yes, I would think.
so. That is to say that each enterprise has to
stand on its own anyway. It is undoubtedly
true that there are some AM and FM radio
stations that are run jointly in the very
smallest communities in the United States
where the economies of joint operation are
such that they would not be economically
viable as separate entities.

It is also true that there are probably somé
UHF television stations in the United States
that are being run by multiple-station owners
at a loss because it just would not b€
economically viable and they would not yet
be on the air but for their willingness t0
sustain that loss.

However, by and large, this is an industry
that is making truly gargantuan profits, and
most station-owners are really doing quite
well, and to suggest that they have to P€
multiply owned in order to make a profit
think would be very difficult to sustain.

Senator Prowse: Could you suggest—Ilet™
take a hypothetical case—suppose you wer€
being asked by the State of Alaska to mak®
recommendations as to how they might set UP
an ideal system of television for their peopl®
that would give them a maximum choice a®
minimize the control in the hands of a par”
ticular individual; have you any suggestion®
as to how they might with a small, marginad*’
ly economical station, be able to provide wha
you have referred to as meani
programming?

Commissioner Johnson: Well, I think P?rt
of what we need to do—it has really nothing
to do with population density—is simply s
orient our thinking about the role of the m€:1
media in our society. The three commerc*
networks in the United States have demone
strated that you can produce what I hav
characterized as plastic Christmas trees ago
get people to look at them, and you can dial
this on an assembly-line basis, but the me

re”
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it seems to me has a higher responsibility and
a more important role to play in our society.

The media truly belong to the people and
they ought to be used by the people. The
letters to the editor column in the newspaper
is a rather feeble gesture in the direction of
inclusion of people in making this a true
method of communication and suggests a two-
way process. Where is the letters to the editor
column on television? There is so much going
on in the real world, all kinds of talent that
exists that never finds its way onto television.
This is not just a matter of rights of access
guaranteed through court suits, it’s a matter
of training in the schools, in the arts of the
use of audio tape and video tape and film. It’s
making available production facilities that
citizens can use. It’s inviting them in, asking
them to come, because very few people will
assert themselves enough to come. It’s going
out into the streets with an audio tape record-
er and talking to the people. Covering events
and affairs as they happen, staging discus-
sions of important community issues that oth-
erwise would not have been held, and cover-
Ing those that are already being held—quite
1lterally turning the media back to the people,
but to help build a sense of community, and
to reduce the sense of alienation that is so
Prevalent in the United States, in the large
Cities especially.

That is the kind of job that television could

0 but is not doing.

Senator Prowse: Isn’t this the problem—
that the whole communications industry is set
Up to get the advertisers’ dollars today?

Commissioner Johnson: That’s right.

Senator Prowse: This is the whole basis of
e problem, and if we are to solve it, then
on’t we have to educate the people so that
theY will demand the entertainment and edu-
Cation and information industries be separat-
®d in the electronic area from the advertising
Ndustry: otherwise we are caught in a
Usetrap we can’t get out of?

Commissioner Johnson: Well, if I may
*espond to that, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Yes, by all means.

mc"mmissioner Johnson: There is a new
loagazine in the United States called Scan-
8 ’s, that some of you may have seen. I have
fen it on the stands up here. And the editor
that appeared with me on a panel in New
Ork recently. He made the suggestion that
€ have something called print pollution,
214823
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which is in his judgment the publication of a
great deal of material which people really
have no need or desire to read, that is pub-
lished to fill up magazines that need to carry
advertising messages to people. He pointed
out the tremendous amount of money that
magazines spend in trying to get new suscrib-
ers and the very low rates they charge and
so forth. A lot of people are really subscribing
to magazines which they really don’t want,
because they are not really paying too much
for them and they are not particularly inter-
ested in them.

So his proposal was that we should have a
six-month moratorium in the United States
during which there would be no advertising
in any magazine. All magazines would be
required to charge a newsstand price or sub-
scription price sufficient to cover their sole
cost of production and a profit.

At the end of the six months we would look
about and see how many magazines still
remained. Those magazines that still
remained around have really meant enough
to the reader that he was willing to pay for
what he was getting—his proportionate share
of what he was getting. Those magazines
would then be permitted to return to adver-
tising in modest amounts.

Well, I think the same kind of point can be
made about television, which is in part what
you are suggesting.

Senator Prowse: Well, it’s an interesting
story but I don’t know whether it is a com-
pletely valid one.

Commissioner Johnson: Well, I am not sug-
gesting that you are proposing that particular
resource. . .

Senator Prowse: No.

Commissioner Johnson: Only that you are
proposing a kind of an analysis of what the
problem is.

Senator Prowse: Well, not just that type of
analysis but we do have two problems today.
One is the pervasiveness of advertising all
through everything, and in order to meet its
demand, we have had a complete debasing of
the media which could be of tremendous
value to people. Everybody is getting a little
fed up with it, so it may be defeating itself in
the end anyway.

The Chairman: Well, perhaps at this point I
could interrupt long enough to say that I
think we will adjourn now until 4:25. We will
adjourn for ten minutes. Thank you.
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[Short Recess]

The Chairman: Honourable Senators, if I
may call the session back to order. I would
like to begin by asking you a question—I
would like to turn the discussion, Commis-
sioner Johnson, to concentration of ownership
and to your discussion on the media barons. I
would like to read two quotes, and ask you to
comment on them.

The first quote is from the statement you
made today and the second quote is from the
book. Perhaps I could read them both and
then ask you to comment.

At page 12 in your statement you say:
“The raw, crass power of the media in
the United States is shown by its ability
to get essentially any single piece of
legislation it wants passed by the
Congress.”

That hit my eye because one day here
Senator McElman used almost those very
words—certainly the raw, crass power—in
fact I think those were the actual words he
did use...

Senator McElman:
remember my words!

The Chairman: Well, I raised the point
because that particular day the witness, who
was a publisher, tok Senator McEIman on and
said that this terminology was a gross exag-
geration. I am not sure whether or not Sena-
tor McElman conceded the point but I am
sure he is as interested as I am in seeing al-
most the same wording in your presentation.

The other quote is from the bcok and this
is a quotation that I am frank to say, I think
first appeared in the Atlantic Monthly, and I
have used it many times. I think it is worth
quoting here and putting on the record, then
perhaps I will ask you to comment on it. You
say:

“I de not believe that most owners and
managers of the mass media lack a sense
of responsibility or lack tolerance for a
diversity of views. I do not believe that
there is a small group of men who gather
for breakfast every morning and decide
what they will make the American
people believe that day. Emotion often
outruns the evidence of those who argue
a conspiracy theory of propagandists’
manipulation of the masses.

On the other hand, one reason evidence
is so hard to come by is that the media
tend to give less publicity to their own

I am glad so many
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abuses than, say, to those of politicians.
The media operates as a check upon
other institutional powers in our country.
There is, however, no check upon the
‘media. Just as it is a mistake to overstate
the existence and potential for abuse, soO,
in my judgment is it a mistake to ignore
the evidence that does exist.”

We would be I think interested in knowing
if you could state some of the examples of the
evidence that does exist.

Senator McElman: Before you move into
that, could I put this into its real perspective?

The Chairman: Well, if I didn’t, you may,
yes.

Senator McElman: I used those words but I
said in Canada “we had the potential for the
use of raw, unadulterated power”. In defer-
ence to Mr. Johnson I used the United States
as the example of how such power can an
has been used upon Congress itself to block
or reduce the effect of legislation proposed bY
Congress. That is the total context.

The Chairman: Thank you.

Could you, Commissioner Johnson, give US
some examples of this kind of power and this
evidence of abuse?

Commissioner Johnson: Well, I would b€
happy to. I might also simply cite some genel”
al sources. One is the chapter in the b001‘
“How to Talk Back to Your Television Set”
entitled “The Silent Screen” in which I doct”
ment a number of instances of corporaté
involvement in the content of programming.

A second source would be an opmlOn’
National Broadcasting Company, 16 FCC 2
698, which dealt with a situation in which 2
major American television newsman, whos€
name would be known to all of you, W&
found by the FCC to have been edltonallzlng
against the Wholesome Meat Act at a tim€
when he and his business associates had 2"
interest in that legislation, and in the foo
notes to that opinion I cite a great many othe*
instances.

Finally, there was a speech I gave to the
Radio and Television News Director
Association in Detroit this past year, whiC
has been reprinted in our Congressio?
Record 115 Cong. Rec. E10178-82 (daily €%
Dec. 1, 1969) which contains a great mar
more examples.

The case that first brought this to my att€?
tion, the problem generally, was the ABC-T
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merger. This would have been the largest
merger in broadcasting history. It did not
ultimately go through. The decision of the
FCC approving it, over the dissent of three
commissioners, was appealed to the United
States Court of Appeals by the United States
Department of Justice, and while that appeal
was pending ITT backed out of that merger.

One of the concerns in that case was that
ITT might view ABC as simply a part of its
public relations activities, and that it might
use pressure from ITT on ABC to try to dis-
tort some way the coverage of news items.

Mr. Fortier: And indeed did while the case
Wwas pending.

Commissioner Johnson: Well, that was the
point I was going to come to.

Mr. Fortier: I am sorry.

Commissioner Johnson: Yes, indeed. The
Companies responded there by saying, “Oh,
80odness, no, we would never do anything of
that sort”—assurances which the Commission
Mmajority was fully prepared to accept. But
When the case finally did go to a hearing,
While that very hearing was pending on the
Very issue of whether ITT would ever inter-
fere with news judgment, the Wall Street
Journal broke the story that an ITT senior
€xecutive vice-president and numerous other
Corporate officials were in fact bringing
ra_ther extraordinary pressures to bear on the
Wire service reporter and a reporter for the

ew York Times, and so forth, calling them
at their homes, calling them as soon as the
Wire service copy began to move, trying to
8et the stories changed, et cetera.

They called the reporters in an effort to try

get them to get confidential information
Out of the Justice Department about its inten-

Ons in the case, in their role as reporters,
Which ITT wanted them to pass on to ITT for
S use in that litigation. It was a rather
e’(tl‘aordinary spectacle, actually, of disdain
Or the proper role of the media.

There have been instances of intra-corpo-
‘Ate memoranda that have come down order-
stg Certain stories not to be covered or other
.Ories to be covered in a particular way,

Stances of broadcasters taking positions in
D.DOSi'tion to pay television or cable television

thout providing opportunities for other
fglﬂts of view to be heard. A long list of

€se instances have come up over the years,
ad ips pemarkable really that they exist.

rAS you read, Mr. Chairman, in that passage
Om the book, usually these matters are not
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handled in the form of intra-corporate memo-
randa, they are handled in the form of sort of
an unspoken understanding on the part of
everyone involved.

The dangerous pattern, in my judgment,
goes through these phases. The reporter or
the producer comes up with an idea which he
presents and the idea is turned down; he
comes up with another idea and it is turned
down; he comes up with a third idea and it is
turned down. And by now he begins to see a
pattern. Whenever he comes forward with an
idea that somehow is disruptive of corporate
interests a story gets killed, or the documen-
tary never appears.

The second phase that he goes through is
that he gets the ideas but he fails to propose
them to his supervisors because he knows the
ideas are going to be turned down.

The final stage he enters is when he no
longer has the ideas. That really is the most
dangerous phase. You then reach the stage
when there is no need for censorship because
the ideas are no longer even being thought of,
let alone proposed.

However, this is a matter to which those of
you who are in the political system here and
those who are actually reporters and publish-
ers can speak with greater authority than I
have. All I have done is simply gather togeth-
er the examples that I have come upon as a
result of reporters talking candidly to me and
as a result of my reading the articles and
books that they have written about the prob-
lems they confront. Where else would I get
the information except from the people
within the industry themselves? But the three
sources which I have cited, I think, along with
the ABC-ITT opinion—especially the first dis-
sent and the footnotes—are probably the best
collection of horrible and damaging corporate
involvement.

The Chairman: In the book you talk about
possible solutions to the problems of concen-
tration and you point out first of all that
technological change is likely to increase the
problem. You say: “Technological change”—
and I am quoting you now—* .is likely to be
changed to even greater concentration...”
But you then suggest five solutions. I would
like to ask you for a couple of comments in
talking about solutions. You say:

“...it is clear to me that we simply must
not tolerate the concentration of media
ownership—except where concentration
creates actual countervailing social bene-
fits. These benefits cannot be merely
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speculative. They must be identifiable,
demonstrable and genuinely weighty
enough to offset the dangers inherent in
concentration.”

Could you give us an example of the kind
of media concentration which there would be
or could be countervailing social benefits?

Commissioner Johnson: Well, it is hard for
me to think of the benefits but...

The Chairman: What did you have in mind
there?

Commissioner Johnson: Well, what I had in
mind was that it seems to me that one should
be open-minded on this. I would start with
the presumption that there ought not to be
any concentration; that each outlet of opinion
ought to be independently owned. Now if you
are going to move from that position to a
position of some concentration, it seems to me
that the burden is on the person who wants it
to demonstrate that he should be permitted to
own more than one. But that should not be an
insurmountable burden. He may very well be
able to come up with reasons why the benefit
to the public interest is substantial and clear-
ly demonstrable, and the public will suffer
some irremedial harm if he is not permitted
to own more than one. If he can so demon-
strate we ought to be prepared to have that
measure of concentration.

However, it seems to me that that is where
the burden ought to lie. At the present time,
before the Federal Communications Commis-
sion the burden is rather the other way
about. The unspoken implied presumption is
that anyone who wants to merge ought to be
permitted to do so unless Commissioner John-
son can come up with compelling reasons as
to why it should not be approved. It just

selems to me that is rather backwards, that’s
all.

The Chairman: You tend to dismiss the
anti-trust laws as being helpful. You say that
they can block concentration only when the
threat is economic. Could you discuss that?

Commissioner Johnson: Well, in general the
anti-trust laws are directed to economic con-
centration and problems in the marketplace.
You can have the same kind of economic
consequences from concentration in motion
pictures or magazines or books or television
or newspapers that you have in economic
concentration in steel or automobiles or any
other industry.
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Rasically the anti-competitive practices—
higher prices, less technological innovation,
tie-in agreements, and monopoly power of
various kinds—can exist in these industries as
well.

The point is that that is not really the
problem, or at least it is not the first problem.
We need to be concerned, it seems to me,
about a great deal more than simply economic
concentration. What we are concerned about
is concentration in the marketplace of ideas.
And there, it seems to me, at least for the
United States, I want to see the greatest pos-
sible diversity and I am prepared to pay an
economic price for that diversity. I mean, I
am willing to forego the possible economiC
efficiencies that might come from only having
one newspaper in the United States or only
three national commercial networks.

The Chairman: You write off the anti-trust
laws as being useful—I shouldn’t say you
write them off—you write them off in this
context—you tend to dismiss the politician—
you have a very colourful passage here. You
describe—you say:

“Whenever the FCC stirs fitfully as if iP
wakefulness, the broadcasting industry
scurries up the Hill for a congression2
bludgeon. And the fact that roughly 60
per cent of all campaign expenses go t0
radio and television time gives but 2
glimmer of the power of broadcasting 1P
the lives of senators and congressmen.”

Well, if the government isn’t going to give
the lead where is it going to come from?

Commissioner Johnson: Well, the reason £0F
the book, “How to Talk Back to Your Televi:
sion Set,” is to address that question, and
think, at least in the United States, ours 1%
very much a do-it-yourself country and do-1"
yourself government. We do have institution®
that are responsive to pressures of all kinds
not just to evil pressures, not just to the
pressures of economic self-interest and corp?”
rate greed. But it is up to the people -to
organize and express their views and to utiI}Ze
this legal machinery that is available and 1€
about rusting waiting to find somebody
push the start button.

The Chairman: If the president said to ¥ ;‘;
“Commissioner Johnson, I am going to ma 4
you the head man of all broadcasting 2"

communications in this whole area”...

Commissioner Johnson: That is such 2 Pr:;
posterous assumption I find it impossible
address it.
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Senator Prowse: They would lock you up!

Commissioner Johnson: Yes; me AND the
President!

The Chairman: The question I was going to
ask, and I won’t even give it a preamble, if
You were dealing with concentration would
You propose only prospective standards or is
the situation such that you would require
divestiture of existing concentrations? That is
Perhaps a tough question.

Senator Prowse: It is a very good question.

Commissioner Johnson: No, I think it is a
Very appropriate question. It seems to me as
Our Justice Department advised the Federal
Communications Commission, one simply
Must deal with divestiture if for no other
Teason that it’s quite unfair, putting the
Public interest aside, it’s quite unfair to those
In the industry to permit some to have an
€conomic advantage and to be locked into

at economic advantage and exclude others
Tfom competing with them. I would think that
You would want to put all on an equal footing

the United States, but you may very well
ave other considerations here.

The Chairman: Mr. Fortier?

Mr, Fortier: Mr. J ohnson, when Mr. Henry,
airman of the Canadian Restrictive Trade
actices Commission, appeared before this
Ommittee, he recognized a problem which
as also been encountered in the United
States in trying to apply the marketplace
anti-trust statutes, the Sherman and Clayton
2Cts in the States to the communications
vt,‘d}lstry. It was the fact that the “wares”
hich were being offered for sale consisted of
Vertising and as long as there were no re-
1emc'cions as to the number of advertising out-
RtS, the Act could not be resorted to. Our
SStrictive Trade Practices Commission in
O of three instances where it looked at the

®ncentration of ownership in newspapers,

:ﬁid the Act was useless. I gather that you in
€ States have encountered the same
D!‘oblem.

The question that we put to Mr. Henry was
a W are you going to evaluate whether or _not
w}IlleVVSpaper for example is doing a goqd Jo‘p;
its ether a newspaper in its preser_ltatlon, in
askCOntent, is serving the public interest. I

* You the question: how have you in the
lenlt?d States resolved that particular prob-
M in seeking to prevent the concentration of
Whership within either the newspaper field

Clusively or within cross-communications
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media? Do you look at the program content
for example with respect to television and
radio? Do you look at the newspaper content
and do you say is this what the public wants?
Does this fare serve the public interest?

Commissioner Johnson: Well, you have
asked me a number of questions there. Let
me say, first of all, that we do have the
problems to which you and I have both allud-
ed with attempts fo analyze the problems of
concentration and control of the mass media
within the classic anti-trust economic stand-
ards that tend to leave you to examinations of
the advertising market. In the case of motion
pictures and television product, you can also
look at the impact upon the market for poten-
tial producers of programs. In newspapers
you could look a the market for syndicated
columnists and things of that sort. So there
are other business aspects which one could
address. And there have been some cases in
the United States in which we have looked at
the advertising and taken some action as a
result. In general I would agree with you that
we have to look beyond this, and that pre-
sumably is what the FCC “public interest”
standard is supposed to be all about. This is
supposed to enable the FCC to apply the
standards in the anti-trust division.

Mr. Fortier: As you were asked on the
program “Face The Nation” back in Decem-
ber—if there were more Nicholas Johnsons on
the FCC, would the FCC work?

Commissioner Johnson: Oh, I don’t know. I
don’t know what I responded on that particu-
lar occasion.

Mr. Fortier: I can give you your answer if
you wish.

Commissioner Johnson: Well, please. I will
see if I still believe it now.

Mr. Fortier: Well, you give me today’s
answer then I will tell you your answer.

The Chairman: Well, in fairness to the wit-

ness, I think we will have the December
answer.

Senator Prowse: On the advise of counsel,
don’t answer!

Mr. Fortier: Is it the men or the system? “If
there were more Nicholas Johnsons, would
the FCC work in your view? Your answer
was—“Well—” Continuing the interview, Mr.
Herman asked:

“If you had a majority?” And you replied:
“I think that historically it has been the
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case in most of the commissions that you
have one or two, a minority, on the com-
mission who speak out with some
independence. That has historically been
the case at the FCC. The difficulty at the
FCC, with seven commissioners, a
majority is four. And so on every issue
the problem is, can you count up to four.
And it’s very difficult to do.”

Commissioner Johnson: I think that tradi-
tion plays a heavy role in the quality of ser-
vice and the character of service that you get
from public officials. A nation could have a
standard excellence in appointments where
this is rewarded politically and is simply
expected as a matter of course. But I think
this depends in large measure on the public
pressures that do exist on government—some
organized unit within the society that is
pressing for good government, representation
of consumers, of taxpayers, of citizens, of
viewers and whatnot, in order to bring bal-
ance into it. Sure it is possible and I am sure
you have many examples here of agencies
which you feel are functioning well, and in
the public interest.

Mr. Fortier: We have our own supervisory
and regulatory agency in the field of com-
munications which is called the Canadian
Radio and Television Commission which has
only been in existence for two years now and
it also had its predecessors. One of the prob-
lems which the CRTC has applied its mind to,
and which is one I don’t think the FCC has
ever concerned its mind with, although if it
has I would very much like you to correct me,
and it has to do with the citizenship of the
owner of communications media.

In Canada recently the CRTC acting on
directions from above, meaning from the
Canadian Cabinet, the Canadian Government,
has said no one who is not a Canadian citizen
may effectively own “more than 20 per cent
of a broadcasting industry”. This was particu-
larly directed to CBS, RKO and Famous
Players who controlled, particularly in the
CATYV field, an excessive amount of outlets of
broadcasting media.

Do you as an American and one who is
concerned with the communications media
principally, although not exclusively in the
United States of America, do you think that
this is a valid approach for an agency such
as the CRTC, or such as the FCC, to say
insofar as ownership is concerned that we
will only allow our nationals to effectively
own our broadcasting industry?
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Commissioner Johnson: That is a standard
which is applied by the FCC as well. I would
presume that this is a standard practice in
most of the countries of the world.

Mr. Fortier: Has there ever been such 2
problem of that sort in the United States?

Commissioner Johnson: Yes.

Mr. Fortier: There has?

Commissioner Johnson: Yes.

Mr. Fortier: Could you give us instances?

Commissioner Johnson: Well, I am not suré
I could, to tell you the truth.

Senator Prowse: The ITT and ABC was
precisely that, wasn’t it?

Commissioner Johnson: There was a prob-
lem back in the 1930’s with regard to ITT’S
operation, and the suggestion was made that
it was substantially controlled by foreig?
interests. We have a provision in our AC
regarding ownership by U.S. citizens. Occa?
sionally foreigh corporations wish to hold
licences for mobile radio equipment. ..

Mr. Fortier: Is there a provision made fOF
minority equity interests by non-U.>
citizens?

Commissioner Johnson: Yes, I believe s

The Chairman: A present example comes to
my mind is Jack Kent Cook who had extec”
sive radio holdings in Canada and now is 2
broadcaster in California, and I believe SP€
cial legislation was passed through Co%
gress. ..

Senator Prowse: Yes, to make him 27
American citizen.

1

The Chairman: Senator Prowseé,

think that is right.

Mr. Fortier: That’s right. Well, that is 8¢
ownership—that is the foreign ownerShl_
aspect. Now, as far as the content is coﬂe
cerned—in your paper prepared for Th
Trade Regulation Roundtable, Associalion -
American Law Schools’ Annual Convention 19
San Francisco, California, in December, °7
you refer to how contnt control was exef’
cises, and you say that it was mainly exe
cised in five areas.

There was the direct content speciﬁca_ti,on'
the personnel policies, the financial pOllc‘et,'
the anticipatory self-censorship, and the Oury

side pressures onnmangement. I was V

Yes,
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curious to note that nowhere do you refer to
the content control which could be exercised
by the FCC. Why is that?

Commissioner Johnson: I suppose because it
is so far from the experience of mortals. In
other words, it would simply not have
Occurred to me.

Mr, Fortier; You one-hundredth of one
Percent content control that you referred to
€arlier. ..

Commissioner Johnson: Yes.

Mr. Fortier: This would be the infinitesimal
area where there has been such athing as
Content control by the FCC in the United
States?

Commissioner Johnson: I would have to
defer to you for any examples of anything
that you would recalll that would involve
Content control by the FCC.

Mr. Fortier: In vies of what you refer to as
land television programs which is the
Common fare of television stations, why is it

at you complain, you criticize and you do it
Very eloquently and very effectively, but I am
Orced to ask you the question: what has the
FCC ever done tochange the fare which is
Offered to the American viewer?

Commissioner Johnson: I think very little.
Mr. Fortier: And why is that?

Commissioner Johnson: Again, it comes

Jack to the matter of political power of the
Ndustry,

Senator
Teference?

Prowse: And you terms of

Commissioner Johnson: I beg gour pardon?

Senator And you

Prowse:
eference?

terms of

c°mmissioner Johnson:

I gues I don’t
UWderstang.

s_enaIOr Prowse: And the framework within
ich you eexrcise your authority?

| c°mmissioner Johnson: No. I think basical-
Y the FCC has ample authority under the
nom_munications Act to do anything that is
tiaulmmoral' We have been established essen-

¥ to work” in the public interest”, which
mas the phrase of congress, and it seems to
€ that that authorizes us to do very nearly
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anything that seems reasonable and is ntt
arbitrary and is grounded in some fact.

The Chairman: Mr. Fortier?

Mr. Fortier: Commissioner Johnson, your
bland programs which are not censored as to
content by the FCC, which are shown on our
Canadian television stations, not only become
bland programs, but they become U.S. pro-
grams; and this is where the CRTC has said
“Aha, we must regulate the program con-
tent”. As I am sure you are well familiar they
have issued a proposal recently which would
increase to 60ffi, the average of Canadian
content on television during any given day
and this would even include the prime-time
period.

Now, as our Prime Minister has said, living
next to the United States is like being in bed
with an elephant—the elephant is far-reach-
ing, particularly...

Commissioner Johnson: He has had a wide
range of experience, hasn’t he!

Mr. Fortier: Well, some others have been
eccluded, like Barbra Streisand!

The Chairman: May I suggest that Mr. For-
tier and the witness get back to a discussion
of mass media!

Mr. Foriiers Mr. Johnson, as a man so
immersed in the field of communications,
what are your views about a broadcasting
regulatory and supervisory agency saying to
its broadcasters ‘“You must show national fare
during a minimum 60% of the time’? Would
you term this anti-Americanism or would you
term this good policy?

Commissioner Johnson: I would term it
neither. I would term it an area of public
policy that lies well outside the jurisdiction
of a United States Federal Communications
Commissioner.

Mr. Fortier: Of that I am certain, but I am
addressing the question to you as a man well-

versed in the industry, not necessarily as a
Commissioner.

Commissioner Johnson: Well, I am not sure
that it is a matter that has anything to do
whatsoever with the industry. I think it has
all to do with the kind of Canada that you
wish to build, and I think that is a matter
about which only Canadians can know.

I, as a matter of law, would have no dif-
ficulty whatsoever justifying as within the
jurisdiction of the FCC a comparable ruling
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by our agency. It is highly unlikely that we
would ever be motivated to do so since well
in excess of 100 per cent of our programming
comes from American sources.

Senator Prowse: You would get into trouble
if you tried it?

Commissioner Johnson: Yes.

Mr. Fortier: But you could be motivated
into ruling: no more American westerns!

Senator Prowse: Oh, no!
Mr. Fortier: As an example.

Commissioner Johnson: Well, we have gone
so far as to have the Surgeon-General
enquire as to whether or not there should be
no more programmes with violence, although
that is not an honour that is limited to the
western.

Senator Prowse: What would we do with-
out Audie Murphy!

The Chairman: If I may—I am less interest-
ed in the regulatory powers of the CRTC
vis-a-vis the FCC, then I am in the whole
problem we have here. It is perhaps unfair to
ask you to comment, but I am going to
anyway. I know you well enough that you
won’t if you don’t want to, but this whole are
of Canadian content—were you going to
pursue this part, Mr. Fortier?

Mr. Fortier: Well, I have received my non-
committal answer.

The Chairman: As Mr. Fortier has said so
well, the programming of which you are so
critical is probably even more critical here
because it is coming to us with respect, which
you will appreciate, from a foreign country.

Commissioner Johnson: Yes.

The Chairman: I recall Mr. Johnson, the
first time we met; it was a hot summer even-
ing in Toronto and I remember one of the
first things you said was that you were sur-
prised to find out that on the publicly owned
broadcasting system, the CBC, at 8 o’clock
Sunday night—I suppose, the prime of all
prime times—carries Ed- Sullivan on the
national network. You found that rather
surprising.

Would you comment on that? Why did you
find that so surprising?

Commissioner Johnson: Well, I don’t like
commenting on it.
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The Chairman: I don’t want to put you in
an impossible position.

Commissioner Johnson: Well, I can com-
ment as an American on what I value about
the diversity that is offered by Canadian cul-
ture in North America. I happen to think that
everybody benefits from diversity. I think
that America is stronger and better for the
differences that do exist here in Canada, and
among those I would include the Canadian
Film Board and its product of films and the
men who have been trained under that pro-
gramme who have done some marvellous
work.

The instance you referred to follows upon 2
meeting I had with some CBC television
people about programming and midway
through that meeting I suggested that it
might be useful if we looked at the pro-
gramme log to see what in fact was on the
air, and I was indeed rather shocked to dis-
cover that this Canadian institution was tele-
vising a rather substantial quantity of Amerl-
can programming, particularly in view of the
fact that roughly 80 per cent of the Canadial
population can watch American programming
if it chooses to do so by watching it over the
air from American stations.

We discussed that subject a bit that after-
noon and I won’t repeat the position of the
CBC since that is something they should staté
if they choose to do so. But it seems to m€
that television is such an all-pervasive inflt"
ence in every society that as an Americal
official, I certainly would not feel myself in 2
position to take offence should the CRTC aP
the CBC and this Committee come to th€
conclusion that in order to develop, preserve
and extend Canadian culture that you feel }
obviously essential that the CBC engage i
nothing but a televising of Canadian telev*
sion products, because I don’t know how you
can have a society without a communication®
system, a mass communications system.

At the same time it seems to me that YOU
might very well want to make it possible for
people who live in Canada to have accesS
information from as many sources as possib e

American magazines are sold in Canad®
American films are shown in Canada 2°
unless you would wish to exclude Americ?
films and magazines and books it would 2
least be inconsistent to exclude television an
permit the others to come in here. i

I enjoy, for example, listening to CBC rad;e
in Washington, D.C., at night. I get a skyw? d
signal from CBL Toronto quite regularly ap
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Occasionally one out of Montreal, and I find it
quite enjoyable radio, quite frankly.

However, this is a matter that ultimately
Yyou will have to address. It is not your task,
after all, to serve my desire for diversity and
the opportunity to listen and to watch some-
thing different than I am able to get from my
American stations.

The Chairman: Mr. Fortier?

Mr. Fortier: Much of the criticism, and you
have been discussing a personal opinion, you
Validly direct to the programme content of
American televisions stations. Would not
Mmuch of it have been answered if your
8overnement had seen fit to create what we
¢all in Canada a national broadcasting system
Subsidized by the state?

Commissioner Johnson: Well, as you know
We now have a Corporation of Public Broad-
Casting, so-called, which holds the potential
for develcping into that kind of a system.

Senator Prowse: Is that for ETV or is it
8eneral?

Commissioner Johnson: Well, let me say a
Word about the system.

- We have now about 190 educational televi-
Slon stations, but some of these are in fact
OWned by community groups and others are
OWned by school systems or universities.

There is a programming service known as
_ational Educational Television, NET, which
istributes programmes for a general audi-
f0ce which these stations broadeast in the
®Vening. Many if not most of them during the
Ay provide instructional programming to be
Teceived within school classrooms and used as
Part of the teaching materials.

Recently this year we have added the pro-
Sramme “Sesame Street”, which scme of you
May be familiar with, which is designed to
fach reading and arithmetic to pre-school
Children in the home. It has been a fantastic
SUccess and is without question, I think, the
et undertaking whatever of public broad-
%asting in the United States and has had a

arked impact already in a few months on
I € general educational level of those 20 mil-
Ifn Americans who are under 5 years of age.

has had a very, very dramatic impact.

We now have a live network during the
we?k in the evening to permit these stations
O interconnect, at least many of them can to
B thys,
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The Ford Foundation has provided most of
the funding up until now for this system. We
had an Educational Television Facilities Act
in the early sixties which provided funds for
the building of the stations but as yet we
have had great difficulty with coming up with
any significant quality of funding for the
development of programming itself.

The Chairman: What about the idea of the
government network?

Commissioner Johnson: That has never
been held in much favour in the United
States. There is concern about government
control of the media as it is, although scme
have expressed the view that as long as you
are getting government propaganda anyway
how much better it would be to get it from a
government station than to get it from NBC,
and there is something to be said for that
view.

The Chairman: Mr. Fortier?

Mr. Fortier: You have alluded to factors
which have caused the disappearance of
many newspapers as well as the merger of
others in some of the larger cities.

Do you envisage that these same factors
may come into play in the field of electronic
media and consequently work against your
utopian view of only one media to be owned
by one person in one community?

Commissioner .Johnson: Well, I think the
concept of the common carrier cable televi-
sion system really is a whole new ball game,
because then, you see, it would be possible for
essentially any individual who wanted to put
on a programme on a one-shot basis or on a
one-programme a week basis to in effect have
his own television station.

The Supreme Court in the Red Lion deci-
sion this past year has urgeed what has been
characterized as the public right of access to
the mass media.

Senator Prowse: What were the facts in
that case?

Commissioner Johnson: That particular
case involved specifically the constitutionality
of the fairness doctrine. The Supreme Court
ruled that the fairness doctrine was constitu-
tional. The broadcasters had contended that it
was not.

But in the course of passing on the
constitutionality. . .

The Chairman: Would you like more of the
facts?
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Senator Prowse: No. I am going to say that
I would like to ask one more question on that.

The Chairman: Yes, certainly.

Senator Prowse: The fairness doctrine is
the one that calls for the provision of equal
time to dissenting views, is that correct?

Commissioner Johnson: Forgive me, I
should have provided some explanation.

Senator Prowse: ... or am I wrong?

Commissioner Johnson: You gentlemen are
much more familiar in general than most
Americans would be with our practices in
this regard, but it is a rather complicated
area. There are really three doctrines; the
fairness doctrine, the equal opportunity doc-
trine, and the personal attack doctrine.

The equal oppoertunity doctrine applies only
in political contests, and it provides that if
you put on a candidate for one party you
then have undertaken the responsibility to
provide an equal opportunity for his oppoc-
nent. That may not involve equal time
because it is a function of what time of the
day he is put on as well as how many
minutes he has and so forth.

The fairness doctrine is all encompassing.
There are some instances in which it involves
political contests because there are some
exceptions to the equal opportunity doctrine
such as newscasts. The fairness doctrine
would also cover newscast coverage of politi-
cal candidates. The fairness doctrine provides
in general that whenever a station deals with
what we call a “controversial issue of public
importance” that the station has the obliga-
tion to treat that issue fairly, which means to
provide an opportunity for all points of view
with regard to that issue to be expressed at
some time, not necessarily within the same
programme.

The personal attack doctrine provides that
when you go after an individual or a small
group of individuals, some identifiable group,
that you have an obligation to let them know,
to give them personally an opportunity to
reply, if they in some way have been attacked
on your station.

This is distinguished from the fairness doc-
trine which does not impose upon the broad-
caster the obligation to give any given
individual a right to reply, but only an obli-
gation that the point of view be expressed
perhaps by a member of his own staff.

The Chairman: What were the facts in the
Red Lion case, do you recall?
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Commissioner Johnson: This rose out of
Maclntyre’s operation in Media, Pennsylvania,
in an attack on Fred Cook. The station was
contesting that it was unconstitutional to
require them to treat this mater fairly or to
give him an opportunity to reply to the per-
sonal attack or whatever was involved.

Senator Prowse: Who is MacIntyre and
Fred Cook?

Commissioner Johnson: MacIntyre is a
broadcaster who prespares programmes, and
also owns this station, that are of such char-
acter as generally to fall within the fairness
doctrine and require an opportunity for
others to reply—or at least this is the conten-
tion that is often made. Fred Cook was anR
author whom MaclIntyre presumably charac-
terized in some way thought by Cook to bé
unfair.

The Chairman: Senator McElman, you had
a question?

Senator McElman: It wasn’t a supplemen-
tary, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Well, go ahead.

Senator McElman: Mr. Johnson, in Canada
the CRTC when it is considering an applica-
tion for a new license takes into account—
believe it is required to take into account no
just the prospective economic viability of the
applicant but the economic viability of the
existing broadcaster in that market area, an
the decisions as they have been handed dow?
bear this out.

Now, tied with that, if there were not som®€
limit upon groups or chains, as they aré
called, as to the extent in which they coul
built up a strength and members in their
chain, what would you see as the end run ©
such a dual situation?

The Chairman: Do you understand th¢
question?

Commissioner Johnson: I am not sure that !
do.

The Chairman: Well, Senator McEIman will
put it again, I think.

Senator McElman: Well, economic viability
of licensees—there is a protection of a marke
area for existing licensees?

Commissioner Johnson: Yes, sir. I beheVe ’
understand the basis of your question, but
am not sure exactly what the question is-
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§enaior McElman: There is developing in
this country greater strength in the chains or
groups.

Commissioner Johnson: Yes.

Senator McElman: If that continues—if the
Private broadcasters and radio and television
Continues to be gobbled up by chains what
Would you see as the end run of that in a
Nation of this size?

Commissioner Johnson: It seems to me
again, forgive me, as it may be the lateness of

e afternoon, but I am not sure that I under-
Stand the relationship between the first part
of your question and the second.

Are you asking me what is the ultimate
Consequence of continued and increasing
Media concentration? If so, then I don’t
Understand what relationship that has to your
Octrine about the competition in the market-
Place and the economic viability of an
Operation.

Did you mean to relate those two in your
Question?

Senator McElman: Indeed I did.

The Chairman: You don’t think they do
elate?

_Senator Prowse: I don’t quite understand
Cither,

4 Senator McElman: Well, let me put it in
he other context. In the United States as I
Oderstand it, this isn’t a pre-requisite in
Our licensing?

TCOmmissioner Johnson: That is correct.
at is the short answer and the longer
BSwer is much more complicated.

thSSnator McElman: And the end effect is
mat a new broadcaster can move into a
coarket area, and if he has dollars, he can
Qafnpete with the biggests of the chains, he
Drn provide if he will a different type of
he‘)gramming that will cut into the market,
thy, Can rise from a non-viable situation
- Ough competition, effective hard-nosed
bempetltive programming so that he does
Come viable.
oth € can in effect become viable and the
of €r station, even though it has the strength
& chain, can become less viable?

c°!nm:'u;sioner Johnson: Yes, that is correct.

t Senator McElman: Do you see with the
da > Which I think I have now tied together, a
8er of a system that demands prelicensing
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consideration of viability? Do you see it hold-
ing out prospective broadcasters. ..

The Chairman:
shutting out.

Holding out—you mean

Senator McElman: Shutting out, and the
chains building to such a strength that they
can literally close out competition?

Commissioner Johnson: I would think that
a distinct possibility, yes. By contrast, as you
have indicated, we tend to be somewhat less
concerned about the economic competitive
impact of a new station in a community if the
frequencies are available.

By and large we have created a system
with, as I indicated, 7,500 operating entities
which is a rather significant number, a
system in which virtually all of the fre-
quencies have been assigned to someone.

One of the prices we pay for that however,
it should be noted, to keep the matter in
prospective, is that with all this added pro-
gramming, if it can be called that, I am not
confident that the public is getting all that
much more in the way of diversity.

Many of these marginal operators do not
even have a wire service of any kind in their
stations, let alone a new programme.

The Chairman: And yet you still license
them?

Commissioner Johnson: Yes, that is another
problem. They are the ones that most often
fall into problems: painting the antenna
towers and keeping the engineers on duty.
They are often engaged in over-commerciali-
zation practices and their programming is
certainly not distinguished and yet on balance
I support the Commission on this particular
policy because basically I believe in competi-
tion and a competitive situation for the rea-
sons you have stated.

It does permit, in addition to all the dreck,
it does permit the possibility of someone
coming in who will offer a superior service
and being able to make his way to the top, and
I much prefer competition to protectionism
myself, even though I recognize the price that
one pays for it.

Senator McElman: Then even with the
experience that you have you would still hold
to the practice of the FCC rather than that of
the CRTC?

Commissioner Johnson: Well again I would
qualify it by saying I don’t really know the
conditions that prevail here and I presume
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that the CRTC has good reasons for what it is
doing, but within the United States, yes, I
would certainly continue to support our
policy there.

The Chairman: Mr. Fortier?

Mr. Fortier: You were quoted as saying
Commissioner Johnson, again from this Face
the Nation excerpt:

“Network officials are keeping off the
television screens anything they find
inconsistent with their corporate profits
or personal philosophies.”

In reading your paper presented last
December I certainly see what you meant by
it but I think it would be useful for the
members of this Committee if you would
expand on this all-inclusive statement.

Commissioner Johnson: Well, I would be
happy to.

As you will know from reading the tran-
script, Mike Wallace on that occasion pursued
this question at some length.

Mr. Fortier: Yes, he did.

Commissioner Johnson: In fact, the quote
reads as follows—it is on page 82 now of
“How to Talk Back to your Television Set”:
“For at the same time that network officials
can”—and I emphasize “can”—*“keep off your
television screen anything they find inconsist-
ent with their corporate profits or personal
philosophies. . .”

That sentence continues to explain that
while they are in a position to do this, the
FCC has in fact been “defending their First
amendment rights” which is the point that
that paragraph goes on to develop.

What the assertion consisted of was not the
all-inclusive assertion that network officials
were keeping off the air every single thing
that they opposed. It was rather the assertion
that they had the power to do this should
they ever decide to exercise that power,
which I then went on to document that they
have on numerous occasions done.

This particular piece engendered quite an
exchange, as you probably know. Dick Salant
of CBS Television News responded with an
article in TV Guide entitled “He has exer-
cised his right—to be wrong” in the Septem-
ber 20th, 1969 issue, and I responded in turn
with a letter to the editor in the September
27th issue of TV Guide and the Radio and
Television News Directors Association piece
which I referred to earlier on September 26th,
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1969, and anybody wishing to pursue the
matter really ought to read Mr. Salant’s attack
on me and my responses.

As I made clear there, my principal com-
plaint is simply what is not appearing in
prime time entertainment programming. It is
not just that individual items have been pro-
posed and then censored by management.

Mr. Fortier: It is a stifling of creativity in
the TV programming?

Commissioner Johnson: Well, it’s more than
stifling of creativity, that’s another problem-
That is why the stuff that is on in prime time
that is entertainment isn’t any good as
entertainment. . .

Mr. Fortier: Well, that is all part of it.

Commissioner Johnson: ....because theé
creativity has been stifled. But the corporaté
censorship point relates to the fact while you
are putting on entertainment of whatever
quality you are not giving the people infor-
mation that they need about the affairs of
their times that are important to them, an
that that too constitutes a form of censorship:

I think it is important in this connection 0
keep this in its proper perspective. It 15
reported that Mr. Tweed in New York oncé
offered the New York Times $5 million to K&
a particular story. The Times refused
offer, it should be noted parenthetically.

The point is simply that if it was worth $5
million to kill a single story, 50 or 100 yearS
ago, it clearly is worth that much today '
buy a television station. It is not necessary ¥°
control everything that appears in the news”
papers. It is only necessary to have
potential to do that on those occasions tha’
may arise, perhaps only maybe two or thre¢
times a year.

, £ 0
Senator Prowse: Like an insurance policy’

Commissioner Johnson: Yes, that is right- If
is a very cheap insurance policy. The Dornlni
can Republic offered the Mutual Broadcas'fi’;g
System, a radio network in the Unit
States—oh, I don’t recall the precise ﬁgufe’
but I think it was on the order of a milli%
dollars—to give them a guaranteed number °
minutes per month on news programl'f‘n:rl
which they could fill with propaganda fr0
the Dominican Republic. i

The point is, you can’t put a dollar valué os
the potential to keep items off or to put ite at
on, and after Dick Salant’s proud boanc thhe
CBS has never altered its content while 17
worked there, Variety reported in a long sto
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a series of documentaries which had been
very substantially altered by CBS in the
course of preparation.

Again, my principal point is that television
is failing to do its job; that, for whatever
reason, it is keeping material off the air that
the American people need to have. Whether
they are doing that out of a malicious aware-
ness that they are deliberately depriving the
beople of the information they meed is not
Teally the point. The point is that whatever
the motive, the result is the same as if that
Was what they were doing. There are
Instances of deliberate withholding.

The story was told to me by one of the
leading black announcers in the United States
of his first job with a station in the Carolinas.
He was handed a stack of 40 records and told
that he would play them.

He asked if it would be permissible for him
to report five minutes of news on the hour
and the owner of the station told him “You
are not going to educate the negroes of this
tommunity at my expense.”

Well, there is a deliberate effort. But when
You fill the airways in prime time with noth-
Ing but pap, one of the consequences is that
he people do not find out anything that they
Want to know.

Mr. Fortier: You have what I find to be a
Very excellent quote in your paper on this
Point which may be reproduced in your book.

You say, and I quote, “To verify this, ask
Yourself how many controversial programmes
€ver reach the roughly 100 hours a week of
Detwork prime time programming.”

Then you go on “How many programmes
t}aVe you seen that seriously deal with abor-

On, brutal military weaponry, sympathetic
attempts to understand the Black Panthers’
World, police brutality toward minority
8roups, opression in draft boards in high
Schools, the Justice Department’s attitude
OWard dissent, a slowdown of the administra-

On’s protection of civil rights, conflicts of

'fffrests by congressmen, anti-consumer lob-

}'mg by large corporations, racism, venereal

Sease, sexual problems of the unmarried

ad 5o on”—that is what you are saying?

Commissioner Johnson: Yes.

Mr. Fortier: Let me ask you the question:
the United States how many such con-
TOversial programmes have you seen?

In

Commissioner Johnson: Well, as one might
€Ss from the selection of that particular
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list, I think the answer would either be none
or next to none.

By and large the prime time programming,
and you are familiar with it here, is made up
in bulk of series programmes that come on
regularly every week with the exception of
NBC’s “First Tuesday” and CBS’s “CBS
Reports” and “60 Minutes”, entertainment

specials, and sort of mindless, so-called
documentaries.

The Chairman: I turn now to Senator
Prowse, but I would like to mention to the
Senators that I would like to adjourn in about
ten minutes.

Senator Prowse?

Senator Prowse: I would like to come back
to the area that we were in before if I may. I
agreed, I think that everybody is agreed, that
we are not getting from TV today what is we
think we ought to get whether or not we
expect too much.

And I think we are agreed also that the
reasoning for this is because of the structure
of the industry. It is necessary that a broad-
caster produce listeners in order that he ‘can
sell his advertising time. This is one of the
facts of life I believe, isn’t it?

Commissioner Johnson: Of course.

Senator Prowse: That we are living with
today?

Commissioner Johnson: Certainly.

Senator Prowse: And in the foreseeable

future we will probably have to continue to
live with?

Commissioner Johnson: Yes.

Senator Prowse: Now, in the face of that
situation have you any suggestion at all as to
how we may be able to persuade the industry
to provide the people with a better type of
programming than they are getting?

Commissioner Johnson: I have addressed
this problem because it seems to me to need
to harness reform to the profit system for
your very largely tilting windmills.

One way you can restructure institutions is
by establishing something like the public
broadcasting corporation, and here the CBC,
with whatever additional changes or funding
or what-not you may wish to consider.

Because as I understand it the CBC is also
receiving advertising revenue...

Senator Prowse: Approximately...
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Commissioner Johnson: 40 million...

Senator Prowse: Of a budget of $200 mil-
lion. About 20 per cent.

The Chairman: Yes, roughly 20 per cent.

Commissioner Johnson: Sometimes that 20
per cent becomes the tail that wags the dog,
however.

Senator Prowse: Yes.

Commissioner Johnson: But that of course
is a problem, that is something you know
more about than I.

The other thing that you can do and which
I have been proposing in the States is to
change the rules of the game slightly, but for
all participants at the same time, so that no
one is affected in a way different from his
competitors.

I have proposed what I call the one-third
time rule because we happen to have three
commercial networks.

The one-third time rule would provide that
each of the three commercial networks must
provide during prime time one-third of its
programming that would be something other
than the lowest-common-denominator-com-
mercially-laden entertainment fare that we
now get.

You can’t just ask Frank Stanton of CBS,
“Won’t you please put out some better pro-
grammes.” We really can’t under the institu-
tional constraints within which he is com-
pelled to function. He has a board of
directors, he has shareholders, and he has an
obligation to maximize profits. He can engage
in tokenism, and he does, and they put out
some good programmes, but he can’t really do
much beyond that unless someone will estab-
lish standards.

But if we were to establish the one-third
time rule across the board, each of the net-
works would be equal and I think that there
would be many benefits to the industry that
would result from this. They would be able to
recruit into the industry some of the young
people who are now leaving in droves. They
would take care of he mcrale problem they
have within their institutions.

Many of the best documentary producers in
America are sitting about idle now because
they have no work to do,—and this would
give them something to do and it would get
the American public and government off the
backs of the networks. It would make the
network executives feed better about them-
selves—which is not an insignificant manner
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for them personally I would think in terms of
their knowledge of the evil that they are
doing in our society.

You might provide for example—let us
just take 7.30 to 10.30—because that works
out to three hours which means one hour per
network per evening, and we put a responsi-
bility on the networks to come up with seven
hours of programming a week which was
either non-sponsored or institutionally-spon-
sored.

It could be entertainment, because it must
be interesting if people are to watch it...

Senator Prowse: Yes.

Commissioner Johnson: ...but something
other than the kind of programming that the
commercial sponsorship generally produces:
educational, cultural, live drama, public
affairs, things of that kind.

This would mean that in any given hour
during prime time, because it would be
required that this programming be stag-
gered—at any given hour of prime time
everyone would have a choice. He would still
have a choice of two networks providing him
with lowest common denominator entertain-
ment fare, so nobody is telling him what he
has to watch. He not only has a cheice, but he
has a choice of two that are providing that
kind of stuff. But he also has a choice of
something else, and I think that something
like that proposal is going to be absolutely
essential for our country.

Now, what form it ultimately takes I
couldn’t say.

Mr. Fortier: Peter Seeger also has a prop0s”
al which comes close to your one-third ratio.
think it would be interesting if you expan
upon it briefly.

Commissioner Johnson: Well, he has pro-
posed a system that would almost involvé
voting on the part of individual viewers—
the allocation of their time to various pro”
grammes—and which would compete f0F
their time to a particular programme which
would be another way of sort of simulating
subscription television market-place audienc®
response mechanism.

The Chairman: Senator Prowse?

Senator Prowse: The programmes that Wg
watch and we get—they are what I woul
probably think are the best of your Pr
grammes from the network—they find the’

way on to ours...
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The Chairman: “The Beverly Hillbillies”
and “Ed Sullivan”...

Senator Prowse: Well, there is Dr. Welby—
there is a number of programmes that
ctome through, but are these produced by the
network cr are these produced by individual
broducers?

The point I am getting at is, who produces
the programmes? Is it the network, the sta-
tions, or does somebody else come up with it
then sells them?

Commissioner Johnson: The short answer is
that they are produced by the networks. That,
however, is so short as to be totally inaccu-
rate except it is a fair response to what you’re
asking.

Many of the programmes are produced in
lelywood by production companies of one

Ind or another, but because the networks are
Virtually the sole purchasers of their product,
they in fact exercise virtual dictatorial con-
trol over the product from the selection of the
Writer to the final finished product, the
ﬁnancing of the enterprise and every other
aspect of it.

So it is really a legal technicality as to
Whether the programme was in fact produced

Y the network or it was in fact produced by
Some so-called independent party.

Senator Prowse: There really isn’t much
COmpetion—in a creative production there
Sn’t really tco much competition. What you

0 is that you get a contract with a producer
and the stations enter into contracts with the
Brodycers. . .

i Commissioner Johnson: Well, the networks
0.

Senator Prowse: Yes, the networks.

MThe Chairman: I am going to give Senator
CElman the last question.

Senator McElman: Mr. Johnson, let me
0Se a hypothetical question to you.

If a situation developed in crder to find out
hat the teeth of the FCC are, how Justice
Ould enter a situation, your Department of
sustl(:e. If you had a situation in one of the
Maller states of your union where a con-
Qe°merate effectively controlled a large per-
siéltage of the economy of that state, out-
th, € of media and in every important area of
buat- economy—itransportation, manufacturing,
glosu'IESS, financing and so on, and that con-
DErme}‘ate acquired all of the daily newspa-
S in that state, better than half or the
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television broadcast reach-through stations and
radio as well, would there be the teeth in the
FCC to rectify that situation? Would it feel it
should be rectified, first? Would it have the
teeth to it? And if it did not, would the
Department of Justice move in on such a
situation?

Commissioner Johnson: I think the answer
to all of your questions is yes.

We have had situations like that with Ana-
conda copper controlling publishing in Mon-
tana and with the Dupont Company’s control
of publishing in Delaware, and there is no
question in my mind that that kind of a
situation ought to be removed and that there
is ample authority for the FFC or the Justice
Department to take action in cases like that.

Senator McElman: Both have enough teeth
to do it?

Commissioner Johnson: I think so, yes.
Senator Prowse: Without proving...

The Chairman: I don’t want to limit ques-
tioning, but Senator Bourque has a question,
Senator Sparrow has a question—I will take
those two questions and then we really must
adjourn in fairness to the witness.

Senator Sparrow: In reference to prime
time, the witness stated that TV has altered,
referring I believe to American people, the
eating habits and sleeping habits and sex
habits. . .

The Chairman: I am not sure that he men-
tioned sex habits.

Senator Sparrow: Yes, I believe he did.

I was only going to comment that I think
probably he has changed cur eating habits
and our sleeping habits but I am not so sure
about the third!

Mr. Fortier: You are not concerned about
the first two, are you!

Senator Sparrow: How do you determine
prime time? When you refer to prime time—
we say we want Canadian content in prime
time, and so on—if it is being altered, which
comes first, the prime time or the programme
as such?

If Ed Sullivan now is prime time at 8
o’clock is it prime time because of the Ed
Sullivan show? If he was on at 4 o’clock in
the afternoon would that be prime time?

Commissioner Johnson: We define prime
time in terms of those hours when most
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people are watching. Those hours when most
people are watching, it turns out, is deter-
mined more by the time people have availa-
ble to watch television than by whatever may
happen to be on the set at the time.

Any programme shown between 7 and 11
p.m. is going to get a larger audience than
any programme shown between 2 and 5 p.m.
That may be an overstatement but not by
much.

Certainly the Ed Sullivan show at 8 p.m. is
going to get a larger audience than the Ed
Sullivan show at 3 p.m. Mason Williams has
said, “Television ought to leave you alone
during the day when you have work to do.” It
doesn’t, but most people continue to work and
they are not watching television.

It is prime because this is the time the
advertisers want; it is the time when people
are watching and basically what we do is
look at a curve showing the growth and
dimunition of the total audience thrcughout
the afternoon and evening hours and we find
that there is a great increase in the audience
around 7 to 8 p.m. which helds fairly firm
until about 10, 10.30 or 11 o’clock, at which
point there seems to be a dropping cff.

Senator Sparrow: If you change the pro-
gramming, will you drastically change those
eating and sleeping habits and the time they
would in fact watch that programme?

For instance, if you put on educational TV
an educational programme at 8 o’clock or in
prime time, where a small percentage of
people would in fact view it because it is not
the kind of entertainment they may be look-
ing for, are you suggesting it could change
the total habits of the people, that they in
fact would watch entertainment in the
afternocn?

Commissioner Johnson: I am not sure I

understand your question.

The Chairman: I think what Senator Spar-
row is suggesting—that supposing the Ed Sul-
livan Show was moved to 4 o’clock Sunday
afterncon and ran a historical programme on
Sunday evening at 8 o’clock I think he is
asking: would the audience switch to 4
o’clock and Ed Sullivan?

Senator Prowse: Would that make it prime
time in the afternoon?

The Chairman: Yes, I think that is the

question.

Commissioner Johnson: Well,—I mean, we
are defining it in terms of itself. In my defini-
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tion, prime time is that time when most
people are watching and by historical experi-
ence that time when most people are watch-
ing is between 7 and 11 p.m.

‘If through some fluke some extraordinary
programme, popular programme, were to be
scheduled at 6 o’clock in the moerning or 3
o’clock in the afternoon...

Senator Prowse: Like a moon shot!

Commissioner Johnson: ...and suddently
more pecple were watching at that hour than
at any other hour during the day, that presu-
marbly would be included as prime time, and
the advertisers would want it and the rates
would go up and so forth.

Senator Sparrow: If you wanted this par-
ticular educational programme you may have
to switch it to 8 o’clock and when that
became no longer prime time, switch it back
to 3 o’clock.

Radio used to be the prime time in the
evening now it is prime time in the morn‘
ing—it was forced into that position, is that
correct?

Commissioner Johnson: Yes. Radio’s biggest
audience now comes in what we call the drive
time, since radio in large measure is listened
to in the automobile.

Senator Sparrow: Because it was forced off
probably by television.

Commissioner Johnson: Well, essentially
more people watch television in the evenil
than listen to the radio.

The Chairman: Senator Bourque has 2
question.

Senator Bourque: I would like to ask M

Johnson. On page 12 of his brief, he says:
“I am not just talking about political 2
social dissatisfaction with the media. I 1
not just complaining that those things
would like to see in the media @° ¢
ignored. I am saying that the media ©
the United States is failing when, for
example, one contrasts all the rich, won? g
derful diversity of a nation the sizeé ©
ours with the very little diversity
appears on television.”

Does that mean that there is discrimin?”
tion? p
Now, you don’t need to answer if it is goin

to hurt your situation..

e
Commissioner Johnson: Well, I would P
happy to answer anything.




Mass
By discrimination do you mean racial
diserimination?

Senaior Bourque:
gious. . .

Well, any kind—reli-

The Chairman: I think he means essentially
racial discrimination.

Commissioner Johnson: I would certainly
not mean to exclude racial discrimination and
that is a subject which I have addressed at
great length in a series of speeches that I
8ave during 1967 and 68.

It was my view and also, I should note, that
of the Kerner Commission, that the mass
Mmedia has simply not been doing the job of
€mployment of blacks, the whole tale of the
life of the black community in America, of
bringing the information to the white com-
Munity that it should have been doing, so it is
not a subject that I have stayed away from in
any manner.

However, in this particular passage I was
Not really addressing that so much as the
totality of television’s failure to deal with all
Of the special needs and interests of the
American people.

The black community is one minority group
hat is not being adequately served by televi-
Slon, but it is no more and no less than all the
gther minority groups of roughly equivalent
1ze,

I mentioned this afternoon the young
Deople under five constitute almost as many

ericans as black Americans. Senior citi-
2ens over 65 constitute a group of equivalent
Slze, students in schools constitute a group of
almost twice the size, blue collar workers of
million.

There is really very little on prime time
Clevision that directs itself in a meaningful

d productive and constructive way to the
Jay to day lives of people who are watching

Ways that they would find compelling and
Usefy] and the ways that they would find
Personally related to their needs and
Nteregts,

That is really what I am complaining about,
articularly when you compare the diversity
N television or the absence of diversity on
Clevision with the existence of diversity in
€ other media. Magazines, theatre, recorded
Usic and so on and so forth which seem to
€ to be doing a much better job of giving an
Ceurate portrayal, a more representative por-
a :eysal of the United States than television
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I might just say one word before we break
about the impact on television upon the
national agenda.

Mr. Fortier and I were talking about this
earlier because one of the best examples I
think of this relates to corporate censorship
problems, the black lung disease issue.

Virtually all the coal miners in America
have black lung in one stage of development
or another. This comes from going into the
mine and breathing coal dust. Your lungs dis-
integrate as a result of this and you are
unable to get to the oxygen you need and you
find yourself unemployable by the time you
reach your middle years.

The miners really didn’t know about black
lung disease because nobody had ever told
them about it and there was no great desire
on the part of coal mining companies or the
mass media in the coal mining district to
make a big issue out of this.

Indeed, there were instances where pro-
grammes were prepared by doctors about
black lung which the television stations posi-
tively refused to run. I pointed this fact out
when talking to the Violence Commission,
making the point that while censorship was
going to be raised by the industry in opposi-
tion to what the Violence Commission was
doing that in fact the industry itself had par-
ticipated in censorship and shortly thereafter
there was a sudden rush of interest on the
part of television in covering the black lung
problem in West Virginia.

About two weeks after they started cover-
ing it regularly some 35,000 coal miners in
West Virginia came out of the mines for the
first time really in the history of that state
and organized on their own because this par-
ticular instance the union had been in basic
agreement with the coal mine operators.

They marched on the state capital and got
the first Workmen’s Compensation legislation
in the history of the stage for black lung
disease.

Now, what is the point I am making? The
point I am making is that when you keep this
information out of prime time that produces a
result in the society. The result it produces is
apathy, lethargy, ignorance and the failure of
the society to respond to its problems.

If you point out in prime time television
that most American business executives eat
and rather grandly by going into a restaurant,
ordering all they want to eat, signing a little
slip of paper where half of the cost will be
paid for by the American people as taxpay-
ers, the other half will be paid for by the
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American people as consumers, and none of it
whatsoever is paid for by the executive, and
point out the incongruity in a nation arguing
that a policy of this kind is only administra-
tively feasible if it is applied to an elite group
of rich but it would of course be impossible to
permit the poor to feed themselves by signing
a slip of paper requiring the cost to be paid
for by others.

If you point that out on prime time televi-
sion things happen in the United States. You
start feeding the hungry.

You point out on prime time television that
the American subsidized merchant marine is
consuming some 700 million dollars a year in
a programme that every independent econom-
ic who has ever examined it has concluded
that it has absolutely no economic benefit
whatsoever to the American people and there
will be a response.

If you point out that General Motors is
responsible not only for the lion’s share of
50,000 unnecessary deaths every year on the
highways of the United States but is also
responsible for 50 per cent of all the air pol-
lution by tonnage in the entire country and
there will be cries for reform. If you keep
that information off either because you sent
an intra-corporate memorandum saying Gen-
eral Motors is a big advertiser therefore we
don’t want to mention this or because you
don’t send the memorandum—you just put on
the Beverly Hillbillies—you keep that infor-
mation off and that produces a result as well.

As I have commented, I think NBC can
rightfully take some credit and pride in the
fact that the West Virginia legislature enacted
that legislation.

I think Rowan and Martin’s “Laugh-In” can
take some pride in what has happened as a
result of the Flying Fickle Finger of Fate
Award. They pointed out that the California
legislature had authorized used car dealers to
turn back speedometers and within a month
thereafter that legislation was repealed. They
pointed out the school system that had failed
to appropriate any money for schools for the
next year and shortly thereafter the com-
munity came up with the money to keep the
school system going.

Special Senate Commitiee

They can point with pride to these achieve-
ments but when they do they must realize
that they must also then take responsibility
for those things in our society that have not
been changed because they have for whatever
reason said nothing about it to the American
people.

That is the position of this industry in our
society in the United States and it is why I
believe with President Kennedy—the late
President Kennedy—that with great power
goes great responsibility, and this is an indus-
try that has failed to live up to that responsi-
bility and it is going to have to pay the price
of failing to do so.

The Chairman: Perhaps I could conclude
most effectively, Mr. Johnson, by quoting
very briefly from the book. In the introduc-
tion you say:

“Very few of the American people aré
performing at more than five per cent O
their capacity—their capacity to perceive,
to produce, to understand, to create, t0
relate to others, to experience joy.”

Certainly you have demonstrated today
that you are indeed one of the 5 per cent.
Your reputation preceded you both to theé
Committee and to our personal meeting last
summer.

I have always been and continue to b€
greatly impressed by your courage and bY
your progressive, optimistic and enthusiasti¢
approach to some enormous problems.

I said at the beginning that you are one Qf
the busiest people I know. We realize that if
is a great imposition to bring you here, whicl
makes us doubly grateful.

It occurs to me that at the end of your
introduction you may very well be spea\king
to this committee when you write in par
“What you hold here are the words. The¥
have piled up. In articles, opinions, testimony
and speeches. Whether or not men do thing
remains to be seen. The need is clear—som€
of the methods are at hand—it’s up to you.”

Thank you very much for helping us.

Mr. Johnson: Thank you very much, M-
Chairman, for inviting me here.

Whereupon the meeting adjourned.

Queen’s Printer for Canada, Ottawa, 1970
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ORDERS OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Wednesday, October
29th, 1969.

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator Davey moved, seconded by the Honourable Senator
Lang:

That a Special Committee of the Senate be appointed to consider and report
upon the ownership and control of the major means of mass public communication
in Canada, in particular, and without restricting the generality of the foregoing, to
examine and report upon the extent and nature of their impact and influence on
the Canadian public, to be known as the Special Committee of the Senate on Mass
Media;

That the Committee have power to engage the services of such counsel and
technical, clerical and other personnel as may be necessary for the purpose of the
inquiry;

That the Committee have power to send for persons, papers and records, to
examine witnesses, to report from time to time and to print such papers and
evidence from day to day as may be ordered by the Committee;

That the Committee have power to sit during adjournments of the Senate and
that Rule 76(4) be suspended in relation to this Special Committee from 9th to
18th December, 1969, both inclusive, and the Committee have power to sit during
sittings of the Senate for that period;

That the papers and evidence received and taken on the subject in the preceding
session be referred to the Committee; and

That the Committee be composed of the Honourable Senators Beaubien, Davey,
Everett, Giguére, Hays, Irvine, Langlois, Macdonald (Cape Breton), McElman,
Petten, Prowse, Sparrow, Urquhart, White and Willis.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.
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Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Thursday, November 6th,
1969.

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Smith:

That the names of the Honourable Senators Giguére and Urquhart be removed

from the list of Senators serving on the Special Committee of the Senate on Mass
Media; and

That the names of the Honourable Senators Bourque, Smith and Welch be
added to the list of Senators serving on the said Special Committee.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Extract from the Minutes of the proceedings of the Senate, Friday, December 19th,
1969.
With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved seconded by the Honourable
Langlois:

That the names of the Honourable Senators Bélisle and Phillips (Prince) be
substituted for those of the Honourable Senators Welch and White on the list of
Senators serving on the Special Committee of the Senate on Mass Media.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday, February 3,
1970.
With leave of the Senate,
The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Honourable
Langlois:

That Rule 76 (4) be suspended in relation to the Special Committee of the
Senate on Mass Media from 10th to 19th February, 1970, both inclusive, and that
the Committee have power to sit during sittings of the Senate for that period.

After debate, and—

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.
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Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Thursday, February 5,
1970.

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Haig:

That the names of the Honourable Senators Quart and Welch be substituted for
those of the Honourable Senators Bélisle and Willis on the list of Senators serving
on the Special Committee of the Senate on Mass Media.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday, February
17,1970.

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Connolly (Halifax North):

That the name of the Honourable Senator Kinnear be added to the list of
Senators serving on the Special Committee of the Senate on Mass Media.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday, March 3, 1970.

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Denis, P.C.:

That the name of the Honourable Senator Langlois be removed from the list of
Senators serving on the Special Committee of the Senate on Mass Media.
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.
ROBERT FORTIER
Clerk of the Senate
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Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday, March 3, 1970.

With the leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Denis, P.C.:

That Rule 76 (4) be suspended in relation to the Special Committee of the
Senate on Mass Media from 4th to 13th March, 1970, both inclusive, and that the
Committee have power to sit during sittings of the Senate for that period.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

ROBERT FORTIER
Clerk of the Senate
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Wednesday, March 18, 1970
(33)

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Senate Committee on Mass Media
met this day at 10.00 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators: Davey, (Chairman); Kinnear, McElman, Petten,
Prowse, Quart, Smith and Sparrow. (8)

In attendance: Miss Marianne Barrie, Director and Administrator; Mr. Borden Spears,
Executive Consultant; Mr. Yves Fortier, Counsel.

The following witnesses, representing The Reader’s Digest Association (Canada) Ltd.
— Sélection du Reader’s Digest (Canada) Ltée, were heard:

Mr. E. Paul Zimmerman, President;

Mr. J. Kenneth Davey, Vice-President and Secretary;

Mr. A. J. Conduit, Vice-President and Advertising Director;

Mr. John L. O’Brien, Q.C., Director;

Mr. Ralph Hancox, Editor, The Reader’s Digest, Canada;

Mr. Pierre Ranger, Managing Editor, Sélection du Reader’s Digest, Canada.

The following witness was also present but was not heard:
Mr. Jean Martineau Q.C., Director.

At 1.00 p.m. the Committee adjourned to Thursday, March 19, 1970, at 10.00 a.m.

ATTEST: DENIS BOUFFARD,
Clerk of the Committee.
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THE SPECIAL SENATE COMMITTEE ON MASS MEDIA

EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, March 18, 1970

The Special Senate Committee on Mass Media met
this day at 10 a.m.

Senator Keith Davey (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable Senators, if I may call
this session to order. Perhaps before we turn to this
Morning’s brief 1 could be allowed to read a short
Self-explanatory announcement.

The fact that Vancouver has been without its daily
"ewspaper service since February 15 is of great inter-
%t and concern to the members of this committee.

‘_'Clearly the labour dispute which, to begin with is

Vithin provincial jurisdiction, does not fall within the

Mmittee’s terms of reference which are ownership

ad contro] as well as the impact and influence of the

dian mass media. Needless to say the Committee

No intention of injecting itself into the collective
8aining process.

: ‘{\t the same time, however, the Committee is
Ously interested in what impact this loss of news-
aper service is having on Canada’s third largest city.
Par°?tdingly we asked Mr. Walter Gray, a former
Clol;,alnentary Gallery Bureau Chief for both the
€ and Mail and the Toronto Daily Star, to go to
than""ll\'er and prepare for the Committee, an ‘on-
©spot’ analysis of the socio-economic effects of the
Sence of two daily newspapers in greater Vancouver.
e C'f_a)' spent last week in Vancouver. He will pre-
Wh report to a special session of this Committee
ianh I have called for 10 o’clock tomorrow morning
00m 260 north.”

?he Witnesses this moming and the brief we are
‘iong to receive is from the Reader’s Digest Associa-
bises(canada) Ltd. and also Sélection du Reader’s
Ty t (Canada) Ltee. In welcoming you Mr. Zimmer-
in%dand the members of your team, which I will

Uce in a moment, I should remind the Senators

1S session was originally scheduled, as you may
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recall, for February 20. At the time you, sir, were
hospitalized. We are delighted that you are now able
to come — we are sorry you weren’t able to come
earlier but I am sure nothing has been lost and we are
delighted that you are here today.

Mr. Zimmerman, is seated on my immediate right,
and I think what I might do Mr. Zimmerman is per-
haps let you begin your remarks in a moment or two
and introduce the other members of your group rather
than me doing it now. The procedure we follow here,
sir, is very simple and I am sure you are familiar with
it. The brief which you prepared for us was received in
advance, indeed in advance of the former date; it was
circulated and read and studied by the Senators at that
time and probably most of us have re-read it in the last
several weeks.

We are going to ask you to make a brief opening oral
statement in which you can explain your brief, expand
upon it, add to it, say anything else which may or may
not be on your mind and then we will turn to our
questioning. We will question you on the contents of
your written brief, on the contents of your oral state-
ment, and indeed on other matters which you may not
raise in either of your briefs. As I have said to many
other witnesses, if you wish to refer any of the ques-
tions that we ask you to any of your colleagues, please
feel free to do so. Welcome, and we are delighted that
you are finally here.

Mr. E. P. Zimmerman, President, The Reader’s
Digest Association (Canada) Ltd.: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Honourable Senators, I would like to say
today, and identified by name tags, we have Mr.
Andrew J. Conduit who is sitting on my immediate
right against the wall next to the chart who is our Vice
President and Advertising Director. Mr. J. Kenneth
Davey who is sitting just two removed on my right is
our Vice-President and Secretary. Mr. Ralph Hancox,
the Managing Editor for the English edition of the
Reader’s Digest is sitting on Senator Davey’s left. Mr.
Pierre Ranger who is Managing Editor of Sélection du
Reader’s Digest is on the far end of the rostrum here,

29
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and also two of our Canadian Directors—Mr. John L.
O’Brien, Q.C., and Mr. Jean Martineau, Q.C.

May I say at the outset that I very much appreciate
the thoughts expressed by Senator Davey and for your
having postponed our appearance until today. I
unfortunately was in hospital, as Senator Davey has
referred to, on February 20, the date previously set,
but I am glad to say that now I am well and on the
way to recovery.

We would like to spend a few minutes reviewing
with you some matters which may prove of particular
interest to your deliberations, and which will supple-
ment the information you have already received in our
written brief.

The Reader’s Digest in Canada has a determined
Canadian policy which springs from its editorial and
business responsibilities as a corporate citizen of
Canada. As you will have noted from our brief, three
of our directors and all of our employees are Canadian
citizens or landed immigrants, and all our employees
are pretty well represented by that statement in the
sense of citizenship. Thirty per cent of the Digest’s
common stock in Canada is held by Canadians. The
company acts as a Canadian corporation in every way.
The company and its employees are active supporters
of charity, and participate fully in community en-
deavours.

We contribute significantly to the Canadian econo-
my since more than 90 cents of every dollar of
revenue stays in Canada. Through our influence on
other Digest affiliates, the Digest is an exporter for
Canada, on balance, in such things as paper, and pub-
lished material. As a matter of interest, annual paper
purchases in Canada by our international editions
amount to $840,000 (or some 3,500 tons) and repre-
sent 43 per cent of the total Canadian export tonnage
of this particular type of paper.

To support our operations, we employ 450 people in
Canada and indirectly generate employment for twice
that number. Among our skilled employees are 53
editorial, art and production experts, 70 programmers,
and computer personnel, and 81 sales and marketing
specialists. The company has a continuing editorial
and management development policy to develop
editorial and business techniques. We have kept our
long-term employees abreast of technology so that
they, in turn, can train junior staff.

As you are aware, magazine publishing in Canada is
highly competitive. It is in vigorous competition for
advertising revenue with television, newspaper sup-
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plements, and daily newspapers, in that order of
importance. In their attempts to meet this com-
petition, magazine publishers have taken two
significant steps: the revitalization of the Magazine
Advertising Bureau, and the publication of regional
advertising editions.

The combined circulations of the members of MAB
reach 52 per cent of all Canadians over the age of 15
Every member’s circulation is important to this pene
tration by magazines in Canada. Generally speaking,
the advantages of magazine advertising are—a selective
audience with high incomes, an attractive environment
for advertisers with the added advantages of a com”
mitted readership and an enduring message, plus the
high persuasion values of the printed word.

Clearly if any substantial part of the magazine a¥
dience is lost, the value to an advertiser of magazin®
penetration declines and advertisers will tend to turf
to other media. This is the primary reason that the
Digest is valuable to other Canadian magazines. ThiS
point should be made particularly clear—it is easily
misunderstood. Let me repeat, the total magazine 3%
dience is important to advertisers and publishers alike:
Magazine publishing in Canada would be signiﬁcaﬂﬂy
weakened if it could not offer the penetration and
coverage now available to magazine advertisers.

The Digest carries regional advertising, as do most
magazines, and newspaper supplements. Regiof
advertising editions offer selected markets to natior
advertisers and markets to advertisers in the areas I
which they wish to trade. Regional editions also
enable advertisers to test public response to 1€V
products. The Digest has 14 advertising editions »
addition to its national editions, giving an advertise’ *
choice of: the combined English and French marke"
the English or French market; combination of metrcr
politan and regional markets. We have no regi©
editorial editions since our editorial content is 4¢
signed to be of universal interest.

The major competition for national advel'ﬁsmg
revenue in Canada is among media. According t0 th
latest (Elliott Haynes) 1969 figures, national adver’
tising revenue in Canada is shared as follows:

ef
Television 42.7 per cent; newspapers 26.6 I; ;
cent; radio 14 per cent; magazines 8.9 per cx
supplements 7.8 per cent.

Over the last nine years: Television’s shar® .
creased by 75 per cent; radio’s share increas
13.8 per cent; newspapers’ share dropped bY 2
per cent:—
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And I should emphasize the word “dropped”’.

—supplements’ share dropped by 46 per cent;
magazines’ share dropped by 40.7 per cent.

These figures emphasize that national advertising
Competition is primarily by media selection and that
Competition among the media is much greater than

een individual magazines, newspapers, networks

Or stations. The Magazine Advertising Bureau is
Strongly supported by major consumer magazines for
is reason and in a similar response, The Star Weekly,
Weekend, and The Canadian combined together in
gnaMedia. Magazines, newspaper supplements and
the Canadian Daily Newspaper Publishers Association
are all aware that by actively supporting trade associa-

Ons they have the best chance of meeting com-
Petition from rival media. If the major consumer

azines in Canada enjoyed a proportion of national
d"el‘ﬁsing revenue similar to that of their counter-
Parts in the United States, their advertising revenue
Would more than double its present figure.

For the remaining few minutes I would like to turn
Our editorial content.

The principle followed by Digest editions is one of
ed costs—a principle not new to publishing in
da. By ‘sharing costs’ Canadian newspapers, in

a‘_’t: Obtain the majority of their syndicated columns,

_t°11'31 features, comics and most international edi-

l'l.al Mmaterial. News agency co-operatives, and much
O and television broadcasting in this country

oState on g similar basis for sharing their editorial
"Denses,

°dlilt‘i Teturn for the fee which each international Digest

On pays to the parent, editions are free to use
uCles for which the parent holds a variety of rights.
y ch of the material used in the Digest is competitive-
me:,‘:allable. Take, for example, “Oxbells and Fire-
by by Ernest Buckler, a Canadian writer, published
Clelland and Stewart. The Digest has used two
ta Ctions from this book. The material was available
;,eg?y Magazine publisher in Canada or elsewhere at
« e::able market rates. This principle applies to
I €In Windows” by Bruce Hutchison, published by
Dige" ans Canada, which also yielded an international
Selection. Similarly with magazine articles from
40 periodicals which yield selections for our
and other international editions.

toover the years (As you will see from Appendix III
itgy, . Main brief) we have paid increasing editorial
oy oM to Canada in the belief that a magazine of

cll"’“lation must, in some measure, reflect the
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interests and achievements, not only of its readers, but
of the country in which it circulates.

In the last five years, we have published some 100
articles, either about Canada, written by Canadian
authors, or reprinted from Canadian sources. Of these,
almost half have appeared in a variety of Reader’s
Digest editions throughout the world. As an example,
we have prepared a chart to show the circulation of
“Snowmobiles: The Cats that Conquered Winter.” Mr.
Hancox has just unveiled it and it sits on my right.
This is the story of a remarkable French-Canadian
enterprise resulting from Joseph-Armand Bombardier’s
invention. On the same chart are the titles of several
other articles about Canada, listing the number of
languages in which they were published in the Digest
and their approximate circulation world-wide.

This editorial activity in Canada represents part of a
continuing program. We are at the moment working
with some 15 freelance and other writers, preparing
some 40 projects which will eventually yield Canadian
articles for us and our other international editions.

Coupled with this, our editorial department reads or
processes some 750 pieces of contributor mail each
month containing manuscripts, anecdotes and material
that readers suggest for our pages.

To maintain an editorial balance in the magazine,
the Digest selects from a variety of sources. The
February English language issue which accompanied
our brief, will give you an idea of how this is done. It
includes material from one or another, or about a
combination of the following countries: West Ger-
many; Sweden; East Germany; the United States;
Canada; France; New Guinea; Great Britain; and Tibet.
Interspersed with this material are articles on con-
sumer protection, the art of living, medicine, nature,
science, self-help, do-it-yourself, entertainment and
humour. This is typical of all our issues and of our
international editions.

Selections from books and periodicals around the
world are augmented increasingly by material which is
specially prepared for the Digest. Some of this is
universally used in all editions, some of it relevant to
only a few, some developed particularly for one edi-
tion—as with our March articles: “The Understanding”
and “‘Canada’s Wonderful Wishing Book™ which were
commissioned from Canadian authors by our Canadian
editors. The Digest also maintains a staff of roving
editors, one of whom is a Canadian, resident in
Canada. He writes mainly, although not exclusively,
on Canadian subjects and his articles are available from
the central editorial selection to all of our editions.
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Additionally, the Canadian editors interest the
parent edition in a variety of Canadian subjects with
the result that roving editors are encouraged to write
about this country’s achievements regularly. A list
typical of their contributions can be found in Ap-
pendix III. The Canadian editions also maintain a
research staff and engage freelance writers to prepare
adaptations of articles which have been successful in
other editions. Such articles fall mainly into the cate-
gory of consumer reports such as “If You’re Thinking
of Moving” or general interest articles such as “Try
Climbing Your Family Tree” or “Shoplifting: A Na-
tional Menace.”

The editorial policy implicit in this selection has
enabled us to obtain a circulation for our two Cana-
dian editions which is guaranteed to advertisers at
1,400,000 copies each month. The loyalty of readers
enables us to maintain this circulation without diffi-
culty. In 1969, the proceeds from subscriptions sold,
exceeded the cost of obtaining those subscriptions by
a multiple of approximately 2.5. The figures provided
to the Audit Bureau of Circulation for the six months
ending December, 1969, show that 88.7 per cent of
our circulation is obtained by mail, 9.8 per cent on the
news-stands, and 1.5 per cent through agencies.

This Digest readership provides us with our primary
market for further publications. We have recently
published three books which were edited, set, printed
and bound in Canada. At present being offered to our
mailing list are: “Canada, This Land, These
People”—in both English and French—a handsomely
illustrated anthology of Canadian articles which have
appeared in our magazine; (this book has gone to its
third printing and sales to date in both languages are in
excess of 125,000 copies) and “The Canadians At
War: 1939-1945”—the only complete record of
Canada’s war effort in print today. This three-volume
set, three years in preparation, represents a substantial
editorial investment to tell the story of Canada at war.
Digest editors in Montreal found the story of Canadian
achievement and loss in official records, books, broad-
casts, magazines, newspapers, regimental and personal
diaries, even personal letters. The record was written
and compiled from these sources and the volumes
were illustrated by 850 photographs and maps to tell a
comprehensive story of Canada’s commitment. The
books were the result of a team made up of three
Canadian Digest editors, all war veterans, and our
Montreal art department—assisted by one researcher.

Now being distributed is our third major book
publishing effort: “My Secrets for Better Cooking” by
Madame Jehane Benoit. This three-volume set, again,
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was written, edited, set, printed and bound in Canada.
All these books have had an excellent reception from
Canadian reviewers and represent a further extension
of our Canadian editorial policies. Honourable Sena
tors may wish to examine some of the reviews dealing
with these publications. Copies of the books thent
selves are also available for you to peruse. These books
represent an editorial and art investment of approxi-
mately $400,000.

Supplementing these major publications are ouf
continuing series of condensed and special book
publications which we offer to our mailing lists. Thes®
hard cover books are printed and bound in Canad?
with few exceptions. The prime source for purchasers
of these books are Digest magazine readers. Our total
costs (including the magazines) for setting, printing
binding and packaging in Canada during 1969 ber”
efited the Canadian printing industry across th
country by $4,653,000. Thus when considering th®
editorial costs of the Digest in Canada, the committe®
should bear in mind that the result is a substamﬁ‘ll
investment in the economy to the direct benefit of th®
printing and publishing industry in this country. The
economy as a whole benefited from Digest operation®
in Canada in the same year by more than $17 millio™

This, honourable Senators, is a short review of owf
business and publishing activities in Canada. Th
you for your patience and for the privilege of 27
pearing before you. We will be pleased to answel ot
the best of our ability any questions you may wish
ask.”

The Chairman: Thank you very much Mr. Zimm®
man. That is a very full and comprehensive statemen
and certainly augments the written brief. I think
will begin the questioning this momning with Sens!%
Prowse and as I said if you wish to have any of ¥©
colleagues answer questions, please feel free to do &
Senator Prowse?

" )
Senator Prowse: The figure for your circulation 88
per cent obtained by mail. Is that direct mail?

Mr. Zimmerman: Yes it is.

t
Senator Prowse: That is the type of thing the
Christopher Young was writing about?

@
Mr. Zimmerman: I don’t know the specific refere”
to which you make.

st
The Chairman: Senator Prowse, please let the ¥
us in on it, I don’t know either.
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Senator Smith: I thought the whole world knew
about that one!

Senator Prowse: Christopher Young in the Ottawa
Journal . . .

The Chairman: If Christopher Young was writing in
the Ottawa Journal it was a most unusual article!

Senator Prowse: The Ottawa Citizen, 1 am sorry, and
then it was sent out, I presume, to some others. It is
Called “One Man’s War on the Digest.” Here is the
Oliginal copy. Here is the second one he got in
Tesponse to it.

Mr. Zimmerman: Yes, I do know it. I was confused
With your reference to the Journal, I personally
dled that matter, Senator, in the sense . . .

Senator Prowse: Well, that is what I gather . . .

‘The Chairman: Well, just before you go on, Mr.
Z“nmﬁman, I would like to ask if all the Senators are
fa’“iﬁar with this because if you are not we should
Pethaps explain this. Is everybody familiar with this?

Tight, please carry on.

hz:mto' Prowse: 1 figure that anyone in Canada who
4 mailing list is familiar with it, but go ahead.

Mr. Zimmerman: I think you are right.

senator Prowse: Yes.

listML Zimmerman: No doubt anyone with a mailing
Would be familiar with it.

Senatoy Prowse: Or anyone who is on a mailing list.
W}?:;‘ Zimmerman: Yes. May I also say that anyone
With f10es business with broad consumers is familiar
tirey It. T looked into this matter personally and the

Mstances are these. We received an order at

: "’"f Digest from a previously addressed mail

Motion to this individual’s home in his name that

,they wanted to order the condensed book that

Wo 1:"01ved in the matter. We did what any supplier
Piegy dof we shipped it. In the original promotion
thi. * Which was returned to us, the copy said that
enjg;"as a free book which he could read, hop‘efu.lly
V°1un; and decide whether to enjoy continuing
Vop, > If he did not wish to have continuing
any 'S would he inform us. We have no record of
Continuing correspondence from the individual.
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When we subsequently did what the office said we
would do in supplying another volume some three
months further along and send a bill with that volume,
we received back the free book; not the billed book.

Unfortunately in our system—and we learned some-
thing from this complaint, we had put into the system
the title of the free book.

Senator Prowse: This is into a computer, is it?

Mr. Zimmerman: Yes it is. Excuse me, may I correct
that, please?

Senator Prowse: Yes.

Mr. Zimmerman: The title of the billed one. When
we got the title of the free book back, which some
others had received in the normal cycle on a purchase
rather than a free basis, the computer did not accept
the credit for that billed book. At that point we read
the story in the Citizen. 1 immediately responded
having been surprised that an editor of a capital paper
would devote that much of the space on the editorial
page to a personal matter, wrote in and explained the
circumstances—and had an acknowledgement back
that he is satisfied with the case. ¢

Senator Prowse: I think in fairness it should be said
you are not the only people in Canada that use this
type of thing.

Mr. Zimmerman: Exactly.

Senator Prowse: The thing I am interested in—when
you get 88 per cent from mail . . .

Mr. Zimmerman: On the magazine?
Senator Prowse: On the magazine.
Mr. Zimmerman: That is correct.

Senator Prowse: This would be the experience of
other major magazines as well?

Mr. Zimmerman: Quite different.

Senator Prowse: How do they get theirs?

Mr. Zimmerman: From several sources. You will
recall that we said 88 per cent—88.7 I believe to be

correct—from direct mail, some approximate 10 per
cent from what you and I would call news-stand—
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freely purchased at will copies—and the balance from
agencies. The agency is an insignificant factor.

I might deal with the insignificant factor first. The
agency sales are most generally retired people who sell
to their own friends, mainly their own relatives, and it
is a very small percentage of our circulation. We will
not sell door-to-door and there is a reason for it. We
don’t want our reputation beyond our control.

Other publishers, without selecting any one because
it is very general in the publishing business, use an-
other additional method which accounts for a range of
anywhere from 35 to 50 per cent of their total circula-
tion that we do not use—what we would normally call
direct door-to-door selling. The reason we don’t use it,
as I have said, is because we cannot protect our reputa-
tion. We have never used it and we never intend to.

The second point is that it is the most costly method
of obtaining circulation. May I give you an example?

Senator Prowse: Yes.

Mr. Zimmerman: This is hypothetical but the figures
are not too off in the sense of reasoning. If we mail a
new subscriber an offer and they respond, we will
renew that subscriber the second time around; maybe
a year or two years later at a very high rate of
renewal—somewhere in the order of 60 per cent at the
low end. Whereas if you sold, from our experience, on
a door-to-door basis your renewal factor could be as
low as 25 per cent. It doesn’t take much of a business-
man to see that this is a costly circulation.

There is another point. In the original subscription
that you get door-to-door your range of recovery
would be from probably 2 per cent to maybe a 10 per
cent debit; meaning that you in many cases get less for
the subscription than in fact the so-called subscriber
paid for it. The high commissions paid to those selling
door-to-door accounts for that statement. Whereas in
our particular case, on the average, our cost of getting
subscriptions is so much lower than the revenue that
we obtain for them and I used a multiplier of 2-%4.
You can see quickly that we don’t think from our
point of view that this is the most successful way to
obtain subscriptions from a financial investment
return standpoint.

Senator Prowse: One of the things I had in mind was
that it was my recollection that a number of
magazines and periodicals in Canada over a period of
time...
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The Chairman: Excuse me, Senator Prowse. I believe
someone would like you to speak louder.

Senator Prowse: I am sorry. —who employed door
to-door salesmen, found that in order not to get
themselves into trouble, they had to give the door-t0
door salesmen 100 per cent of what it took. In othef
words, the door-to-door salesman goes out and takes
subscriptions and all he has to do is then send in ﬂ?e
list of names—he probably sends the list of names I
because this keeps him out of trouble. On the othef
hand, if they have to send in some of the money fro™
time to time, they don’t get around to sending in th®
money. Are you aware of that situation as well?

Mr. Zimmerman: Well, I am probably aware of th
technique of this type of thing and the high cost
obtaining that type of circulation, but I really coul
not comment on personal experience on the meth
between the salesman and the publisher. We have 10
experience.

Senator Prowse: What would be your percent®
return on your sale on the circulation of your sub”
scription requests?

Mr. Zimmerman: I am sorry Senator, I don’t und®”
stand.

Senator Prowse: What I mean is this. If you send 0%
an offer to me to buy the Reader’s Digest. ..

Mr. Zimmerman: Yes.

Senator Prowse: You send these out: approximately
how many of these would you send out a year . - -

Mr. Zimmerman: You mean the percentag® w
sponse, Senator?

Senator Prowse: Yes.

Mr, Zimmerman: If I could ask for your fo‘w;;
ance. We consider that the most private and confid®”

factor in our total business.
Senator Prowse: All right.

ol
Mr. Zimmerman: I wouldn’t mind discussing it
private.

t0
The Chairman: Perhaps the witness would 38‘0: ot?
send us 